
 

Page 1 of 5 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Communities Select Committee  
 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Monday, 19 May 
2014  
at 10.00 am 

Ashcombe Suite, 
County Hall, Kingston 
upon Thames, Surrey 
KT1 2DN 
 

Helen Rankin or Victoria 
Lower 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 9126 or 020 
8213 2733 
 
helen.rankin@surreycc.gov.uk or 
victoria.lower@surreycc.gov.uk 

David McNulty 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
helen.rankin@surreycc.gov.uk or victoria.lower@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Helen Rankin or 
Victoria Lower on 020 8541 9126 or 020 8213 2733. 

 

 
Members 

Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos (Chairman), Mr Chris Norman (Vice-Chairman), Mr Mike Bennison, 
Mrs Yvonna Lay, Mrs Jan Mason, Mr John Orrick, Mr Saj Hussain, Mrs Mary Lewis, Mr Chris 
Pitt, Ms Barbara Thomson, Mr Alan Young and Mr Robert Evans 
 

Ex Officio Members: 
Mrs Sally Ann B Marks (Vice Chairman of the County Council) and Mr David Munro (Chairman 
of the County Council) 
 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
The Select Committee is responsible for the following areas: 
 

Community Safety Adult and Community Learning 

Crime and Disorder Reduction  Cultural Services 

Relations with the Police Sport 

Fire and Rescue Service Voluntary Sector Relations 

Localism Heritage 

Major Cultural and Community Events Citizenship 

Arts Registration Services 

Customer Services Trading Standards and Environmental Health 

Library Services Legacy and Tourism  



 
Page 2 of 5 

PART 1 
IN PUBLIC 

 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

 
 

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 15 JANUARY 2014 AND 20 
MARCH 2014 
 
To agree the minutes as a true record of the meeting. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 92) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting. 
 
Notes: 

• In line with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 
Regulations 2012, declarations may relate to the interest of the 
member, or the member’s spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom the member is living as husband or wife, or a person with whom 
the member is living as if they were civil partners and the member is 
aware they have the interest. 

• Members need only disclose interests not currently listed on the 
Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. 

• Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests disclosed at 
the meeting so they may be added to the Register. 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item where 
they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

 

4  QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
To receive any questions or petitions. 
 
Notes: 
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 
before the meeting (13 May 2014). 

2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (12 
May 2014). 

3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 
petitions have been received. 

 

 

5  RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
A response is included following recommendations made to Cabinet on 25 
March 2014. 
 

(Pages 
93 - 94) 

6  RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of 
recommendations from previous meetings, and to review its Forward Work 
Programme. 
 

(Pages 
95 - 106) 

7  CABINET MEMBER (AND ASSOCIATE) PRIORITIES FOR YEAR 
AHEAD 

 



 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 

8  UPDATE ON MAGNA CARTA ANNIVERSARY PROPOSALS 
 
Purpose of report: Scrutiny of Services and Budgets; Performance 
Management 
 
To provide an update to the Communities Select Committee on recent and 
proposed developments of the Magna Carta 800th anniversary 
commemorations in Surrey. The Committee is asked for comment on the 
progress of the project. 
 

(Pages 
107 - 
118) 

9  PROGRESS REPORT ON COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS 
(FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS MADE AT THE ANNUAL 
SCRUTINY MEETING ON 31 OCTOBER 2013) 
 
Purpose of report: Scrutiny of Services and Budgets; Policy 
Development and Review 
 
This paper sets out progress made by the County Community Safety 
Board and District & Borough Community Safety Partnerships on 
recommendations made following the Scrutiny of Community Safety 
Partnerships held on 31 October 2013. 
 

(Pages 
119 - 
178) 

10  SCRUTINY OF EVALUATION OF PILOT SPECIALIST RESCUE AND 
CONTINGENCY CREWING CONTRACT AND PROPOSALS TO 
TENDER FOR A NEW CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CONTINGENCY 
CREWING AND SPECIALIST RESCUE 
 
Purpose of report: Scrutiny of Services and Budgets; Policy 
Development and Review; or Performance Management  
 
In 2012, Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) entered into a pilot 
contract with a private contractor to secure the provision of specialist 
rescue and contingency crewing capacity. Communities Select Committee 
is asked to scrutinise the evaluation of the pilot contract, and consider the 
proposal to renew the contract with a broadened scope. 
 

(Pages 
179 - 
186) 

11  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
Recommendation: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act. 
 
 

 

  

PART TWO IN PRIVATE 
 

 

12  SCRUTINY OF EVALUATION OF PILOT SPECIALIST RESCUE AND 
CONTINGENCY CREWING CONTRACT AND PROPOSALS TO 
TENDER FOR A NEW CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CONTINGENCY 
CREWING AND SPECIALIST RESCUE 
 
Purpose of report: Scrutiny of Services and Budgets; Policy 

(Pages 
187 - 
190) 



 
Page 4 of 5 

Development and Review; or Performance Management  
 
In 2012, Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) entered into a pilot 
contract with a private contractor to secure the provision of specialist 
rescue and contingency crewing capacity. Communities Select Committee 
is asked to scrutinise the evaluation of the pilot contract, and consider the 
proposal to renew the contract with a broadened scope. 
 
Confidential:  Not for publication under Paragraph 3 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)  
 

13  PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS 
 
To consider whether the item considered under Part 2 of the agenda 
should be made available to the Press and public. 
 
 

 

  

PART ONE IN PUBLIC 
 

 

14  UPDATE FROM THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 
 
Update from the Chief Fire Officer to the Communities Select Committee 
will focus on the Fire Transformation Programme which sets out how 
Surrey Fire and Rescue Service will transform services and their workforce 
to meet the changing demands on the Service, how the service will work 
with their blue light partners to improve services to the public and how the 
service will explore opportunities to generate income through income 
generation, cost recovery and cost avoidance. 
 

 

15  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Committee will be held at 10am on 23 July 2014. 
 

 

 
 
 

David McNulty 
Chief Executive 

Published: 8 May 2014 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings with the 
Chairman’s consent.  Please liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start 
of the meeting so that the Chairman can grant permission and those attending the meeting can 
be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 



 
Page 5 of 5 

switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

Note:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site - at 
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room and using 
the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.   
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and Democratic 
Services at the meeting 



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 10 

MINUTES of the meeting of the COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE held 
at 10.00 am on 15 January 2014 at Ashcombe Suite, County Hall, Kingston 
upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on 
Thursday, 20 March 2014. 
 
Elected Members: 
 
 * Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos (Chairman) 

  Mr Chris Norman (Vice-Chairman) 
* Mrs Jan Mason 
* Mr John Orrick 
* Mr Saj Hussain 
* Rachael I. Lake 
* Mrs Mary Lewis 
  Mr Christian Mahne 
* Mr Chris Pitt 
  Ms Barbara Thomson 
* Mr Alan Young 
* Mr Robert Evans 
 

   
 

Substitute Members: 
 
 Mr Tim Evans 

Mr Richard Walsh 
 

 
   

  
 

2

Item 2

Page 1



Page 2 of 10 

1/13 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 
 
Apologies were received from Chris Norman, Barbara Thomson and Christian 
Mahne. 
 
Tim Evans substituted for Chris Norman and Richard Walsh substituted for 
Barbara Thomson. 
 

2/13 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 31 OCTOBER, 21 & 28 
NOVEMBER 2013  [Item 2] 
 
The minutes of the meetings on 31 October, 21 November and 28 November 
2013 were agreed as true records of the meetings. 
 

3/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
None were received. 
 
The Chairman informed the Committee that she was a Spelthorne Borough 
Councillor and sat on the Planning Committee, though had not taken part in 
any discussions regarding Spelthorne fire stations. 
 
Mr Alan Young arrived. 
 

4/13 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4] 
 
Items 5 and 6 were taken before Item 4, due to the subject matter of the 
questions and submission relating to Item 7. 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
Kay Hammond, Cabinet Associate for Fire and Police Services 
Russell Pearson, SFRS Chief Fire Officer 
Eddie Roberts, SFRS Area Manager East Area Command 
Councillor Ian Harvey, Spelthorne Borough Council 
Alan Doyle, representing Spelthorne Resident Associations 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Public questions had been received from Fire-fighter Tim Jones and 
Spelthorne Borough Councillor Ian Harvery, and a written submission 
was received from Spelthorne Residents Associations. Copies of the 
questions and responses can be found attached to the minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

2. Fire-fighter Tim Jones was not present at the meeting to ask a 
supplementary question. 
 

3. Councillor Ian Harvey has invited to ask two supplementary questions 
in response to the replies he had received. Councillor Harvey stated 
that he did not believe the responses provided answered his original 
questions and requested an answer. Regarding his second question 

2

Page 2



Page 3 of 10 

he expressed surprise that the fire service that there did not appear to 
be consultation regarding the proposed Eco Park in Spelthorne. 
 

4. The Fire Service explained that Commander Watts had begun the 
consultation process and then Commander Roberts took over, and it is 
thought that Councillor Ian Harvey’s original question had been 
misplaced during the transition. They apologised for not replying to his 
question in a timely manner. The Cabinet Associate stated that she 
believed they should have had the financial information available 
during the consultation meetings in September 2013, however they 
now had the information. She apologised that this information was not 
available during the consultation process. Councillor Harvey thanked 
the officers and Cabinet Associate for their apologies. 
 

5. The Fire Service stated that potential developments, such as the Eco 
Park, were difficult when developing plans for sufficient fire cover in 
areas. There had been particular problems nationally with waste sites, 
and the Members were informed that discussions were taking place 
nationally regarding potential engineered solutions, such as sprinklers. 
The Chief Fire Officer stated that if there was a fire at the Eco Park 
then resources would be sourced from surrounding Fire Authorities. It 
was explained that the Fire Service would be involved in the 
consultation regarding an Eco Park, when it was appropriate. 
 

6. Mr Alan Doyle, who was representing eleven Resident Associations 
within the borough of Spelthorne, was invited to make a submission to 
the Communities Select Committee. Mr Doyle explained that it was felt 
that the only way to ensure appropriate fire cover in Spelthorne was 
with two full time crews at two stations. It was felt that there were 
issues regarding the location of the new fire station would mean there 
would be issues in recruiting a retained crew as members would need 
to live within five minutes of the station, as area which is covered 50% 
by green belt or water. Furthermore, he stated that the proposed site 
had access issues, which would increase response times. Overall, he 
felt that the Option 5 proposal would lead to an inequity of treatment 
for Spelthorne residents. 

 
Recommendations: None. 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: None. 
 

5/13 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE  [Item 5] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
 
 
 
 

2

Page 3



Page 4 of 10 

Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Members of the Committee queried when local businesses along the 
Prudential Ride London-Surrey route would be consulted. They were 
informed that engagement and consultation with residents and 
businesses had begun, with the next meeting arranged for 16 January 
2014 and early March. The Cabinet Member was ensuring the event 
organisers were engaging with the local communities, and assured the 
Committee that she would continue to update all Members. 
 

2. Members queried whether businesses would be indemnified against 
loses on the weekend of the Prudential Ride London-Surrey. The 
Chairman requested that this be discussed outside of the meeting due 
to volume of detail which would be required to answer the question. 
 

3. The Committee requested an update on progress in lobbying central 
government for a change in regulations to ensure the police and 
highways authorities were notified of events taking place. The Cabinet 
Member informed the Committee that constructive discussion had 
begun with the relevant civil servants, and that officers were 
discussing the matter with residents and cycling clubs within the 
county. 

 
Recommendations: None. 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: None. 
 

6/13 RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
2014  [Item 6] 
 
The recommendations tracker and forward work programme were noted. 
 

7/13 CHANGES TO FIRE ENGINE DEPLOYMENT IN THE BOROUGH OF 
SPELTHORNE  [Item 7] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
Kay Hammond, Cabinet Associate for Fire and Police Services 
Russell Pearson, SFRS Chief Fire Officer 
Eddie Roberts, SFRS Area Manager East Area Command 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chief Fire Officer gave an overview of the item, explaining that the 
proposed changes within the Borough of Spelthorne was part of a 
long-term strategic review of the Fire Service in Surrey. In 2010 work 
was done to look at ensuring equitable cover in Surrey, and this review 
suggested one 24 hour crew and one day crew in Spelthorne.  
 

2

Page 4



Page 5 of 10 

2. The Chief Fire Officer stated that there had been a decrease in the 
number of incidents in Surrey, with 2013 being the first year when 
there had been fewer than 10,000 incidents.  
 

3. The Chief Fire Officer acknowledged there had been a negative 
reaction to the proposals during the consultation period which is why 
they were suggesting option 5, a new option, as the proposal for 
Spelthorne.  
 

4. Members stated that residents were surprised that a new option was 
now being considered as they had not had the opportunity to be 
consulted on this. Residents felt that Spelthorne was unique in Surrey 
due to other parts of the county being less densely populated and built 
up. In addition Spelthorne had a number of motorways and Heathrow 
airport close by. A Member of the Committee highlighted that residents 
in the area were prepared to pay extra council tax to maintain the two 
fire stations as there was concern that insurance premiums would rise 
due to the decrease in resilience. 
 

5. The Cabinet Associate stated that they had consulted and listened to 
the responses they had received, and that was the reason for the new 
option 5 which was an affordable option. The aim was to provide an 
equitable service across Surrey whilst making savings required under 
the MTFP. They were working with national colleagues and a recent 
national review suggested on-call crews were the way forward. The 
Cabinet Associate stated that she hoped the local community would 
support the Fire Service by putting themselves forward to be on-call 
fire-fighters. 
 

6. It was stated by the Cabinet Associate that it was not possible to raise 
council tax in a particular area to protect services. 

 
7. Members felt it was important that the focus was on public safety and 

not financial benefits. Members also noted that the financial 
information had not been clearly presented. The Cabinet Associate 
informed the Committee that no site had been acquired for the new 
proposed fire station, and so no final financial information was 
available, though apologised again that sufficient financial information 
was not available during the consultation period. She stated that they 
were trying to look at the fire service in a more flexible way, such as in 
Salfords where they were converting a warehouse into a fire station. 
 

8. Members queried whether support would come from outside the 
county if there was a major incident as local fire stations within London 
were being considered for closure. The Cabinet Associate stated that 
nationally all services were looking to reduce budgets, but that 
arrangements were in place for surrounding authorities to support if an 
incident arose. 
 

9. The Committee were informed that on average there were 16 call outs 
in Spelthorne per week, half of which were automatic alarms or false 
alarms. 
 

10. Members asked about the process of a fire engine being deployed and 
a back-up fire engine being called in to support at an incident. The 

2

Page 5



Page 6 of 10 

Committee was informed that the process deployed depended on the 
situation, weather, time of day and equipment, however 67% of 
incidents were attended by one engine only. 
 

11. Members felt that it was important that if there was change it was for 
the better and some felt the option being considered did not provide 
the resilience required. The Cabinet Associate reassured the 
Committee that the option 5 proposal was for two 24 hour pumps, one 
of which was crewed full-time and the other by an on-call crew. The 
Chief Fire Officer stated that the first pump would be able to arrive 
within ten minutes and two within 15 minutes, which would still be 
meeting response times. The proposal would enable the Service to 
make £8.8m of savings and still meet the needs of residents and 
enable officers to continue to do preventative work. 
 

12. A Member informed the Committee that around 15 years ago a review 
of the Fire Service took place where they looked at the South East fire 
cover in grids, rather than on a county basis. At that time there were 
over 20,000 call outs in Surrey which had now dropped to less than 
10,000. The Member stated that if the service is evolving it was 
important to review it to ensure there was a proportionate level of 
resource. It was a Member’s view that insurance claims would rise due 
to the flooding rather than a change in fire engine deployment. 
 

13. Members suggested that highways solutions would need to be 
considered when the new location had been acquired to ensure that 
fire engines could reach incidents quickly. The Chief Fire Officer stated 
that necessary highways re-engineering would need to take place at 
the new location when decided upon. 
 

14. Members queried when officers would know if they had enough people 
to make up the on-call fire crew and what would happen if they didn’t. 
The Chief Fire Officer informed the Committee that many thousands 
lived or worked within the catchment area for an on-call crew. The 
decision as to the changes in Spelthorne and any change in the 
configuration in the future would be one for the Cabinet to make.  
 

15. Regarding the border issue, the Chief Fire Officer informed the 
Committee that he and the Cabinet Associate had an upcoming 
meeting with London Fire Brigade to discuss cover ‘over the 
boundary’. 
 

16. Members of the Committee voted on recommendation 3 and voted 
eight to three for the recommendation for option 5. 
 

17. The Committee thanked the Fire Service and unions for their excellent 
work since 23 December 2013 in responding to incidents across the 
county as a result of the severe weather. The Emergency Response 
Team were additionally thanked for their coordination and response to 
the incidents of flooding and fallen trees. 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The Committee notes the progress being made against the Public 
Safety Plan and Medium Term Financial Plan. 

2

Page 6



Page 7 of 10 

 
2. The Committee continues to support the implementation of the Public 

Safety Plan with particular reference to the proposed changes in 
Spelthorne. 
 

3. The Committee supports the inclusion of option 5 for the Cabinet 
report for 4 February 2014. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: None. 
 

8/13 DRAFT TOURISM STRATEGY  [Item 8] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
Peter Milton, Head of Cultural Services 
Barrie Higham, Heritage Manager 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Officers informed the Committee that during 2013 they had been in 
discussion with the tourism sector as the County Council did not have 
an official position on tourism. Surrey was not seen as visitor 
destination though it was viewed as a potential area of growth within 
the county’s economy, furthermore it promoted healthy lifestyles. 
There was Visit Surrey which was a lean organisation of 1.2 full time 
staff, though it was felt that there needed to be a clear identity for 
Surrey with specific focus on three geographical areas – Surrey Hills, 
Guildford and the Thames Corridor.  
 

2. The Committee were informed that there were a number of websites 
which promoted Surrey though it was felt that these needed to be 
linked together to provide a more streamlined visitor experience.  
 

3. Officers requested Member feedback on the ideas within the draft 
strategy and comments were noted on a powerpoint presentation, 
which can be found attached to the minutes. 
 

4. Members queried whether there was any evidence that there was a 
demand for tourism in Surrey as it was not a statutory obligation of the 
council to provide tourism advice. Officers stated that just under 10% 
of the Surrey economy was dependent on tourism/leisure, with around 
35,000 employed within the sector. It was felt that the sector benefited 
Surrey residents due to the facilities available. Furthermore, with a 
growing number of trips made to Surrey destinations, from 194 million 
in 2006 to 224 million in 2012 it was felt that there was a demand and 
tourism was a competitive market. 
 

5. Members felt it was inappropriate to compare Surrey to Bath or Oxford 
as those locations had central points of focus whereas Surrey was a 
diverse county. It was felt that ‘lean and mean’ maybe a better 

2

Page 7



Page 8 of 10 

approach for the county and that it was important for the council to 
have a coordinating position only as many of the Districts and 
Boroughs were involved in tourism within their own areas.  
 

6. The Committee stated that not all residents would be in favour of 
increased tourism within the county, in addition greater numbers of 
tourists may create an adverse effect with people feeling that Surrey 
tourist destination were too crowded.  
 

7. Members felt that the brand for Surrey could be its diversity as it had 
race courses, the Surrey Hills and urban areas, and that it was just a 
few miles from London. 
 

8. Members suggested that Visit Surrey should be the focus of tourism 
for Surrey and that officers could consider requesting profitable 
tourist/leisure organisations contribute financially to the coordination of 
the sector within Surrey. It was further suggested that approved, 
successful organisations should be asked to include a Surrey logo on 
their marketing materials, thus providing a link for visitors. In addition, 
Members suggested that an app should be developed which would a 
central point of information for visitors to Surrey, providing links to a 
variety of websites and organisations. 
 

9. It was felt by Members that a relatively small investment into Visit 
Surrey and an app could provide the desired results of coordinating 
the organisations and providing a central point of contact and 
information for visitors. A policy change was considered to not to be 
necessarily required. 
 

10. Members suggested that last year Media Students or interns could be 
taken on by Visit Surrey to assist in better promoting Surrey as a 
destination and within its coordination role. This was in line with the 
Council’s policy of more apprenticeships and would be beneficial for 
the young person also.  
 

11. The Cabinet Member stated that many of the suggestions made by the 
Committee were already being considered, or were in action, and that 
it was important that the Council supported the tourism/leisure sector 
as it assisted in creating a strong economy within the county. It was 
important that the Council took advantage of opportunities when they 
arose.  
 

12. Members stated that Surrey was not the location for large conferences 
of more than 350 delegates as there were sufficient conference 
centres in London which catered for this number. Furthermore, it was 
stated that if there was a demand for a large conference centre then 
the private sector would respond. The Committee felt that business 
tourism required less work than private tourism.  

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The Committee to scrutinise the final Tourism Strategy before 
approval by Cabinet. 
 

2

Page 8



Page 9 of 10 

2. The Committee feels that the role of the County Council in tourism is 
one of coordination. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided:  
 
The slides from the Committee meeting to be circulated to Members. 
 
Committee next steps: 
 
The Select Committee to scrutinise the final Tourism Strategy at a future 
meeting. 
 

9/13 GRANT CRITERIA AND FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES GUIDE  [Item 9] 
 
Declaration of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
Laura Langstaff, Head of Procurement 
Jeremy Taylor, Procurement & Commissioning Partnership Manager 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Committee were informed that the documents they were provided 
with within the agenda pack was in draft format as they were still being 
consulted on until the end of January 2014. Officers stated that 
Member involvement in the grant approval process was in regards to 
the budget setting only. 
 

2. The Chairman requested the Committee did not discuss the grants 
received by organisations as this would be raised with the service 
separately. 
 

3. The grant criteria was the start of improving the grant award process 
and bringing it in line with the process of contract approval, with 
awards of up to £999,999 being agreed by the Cabinet Member, and 
over £1 million by Cabinet. 
 

4. The Cabinet Member stated that the current policy was for services to 
be provided at best value and this was often achieved by awarding 
grants to the voluntary sector. The organisation which received grants 
was reviewed to ensure they were in line with Council priorities, such 
as providing dementia support. The Cabinet Member stressed the 
importance of the voluntary sector to the Council, and that this policy 
changed the process of commissioning grants only. 
 

5. Members stated that they felt that Surrey Compact should be more 
influential within the grant process and should not have to apply for 
grants itself. The officers confirmed that they intended to strengthen 
the links with Surrey Compact and that they received a three year 
grants for their services. The Cabinet Member informed the Committee 
that Surrey Compact had a new Chairman and that the Committee 
may wish to invite them to a future meeting. 
 

2

Page 9



Page 10 of 10 

6. The Committee felt that many of the organisations which received 
funding were local and it would be better these grants which were 
below £10,000 were agreed by the Local Committees. Members 
requested that a briefing be given to the Local Committee Chairman’s 
Group regarding how Local Committees could be involved within the 
grant process.  
 

7. Members queried whether the list of grants awarded included those 
awarded by Members Allowance scheme, and whether grants below 
£10,000 were cost effective due to administrative fees. Officers stated 
that many organisations were receiving multiple small grants each 
year, and that officers were in the process of trying to make the small 
grants process simpler by discussing the process with organisations to 
find out what aspects of the application forms they do not like.  
 

8. Officers assured the Committee that part of the new grants process 
there would be an appropriate level of monitoring in place and that in 
the past they had been required to recoup monies when they were not 
been spent appropriately.  
 

Recommendations: 
 

1. The Committee would like to see Surrey Compact be more influential 
in this new policy. 
 

2. The Chairman to speak to the service to decide how to relay the 
Committee’s concerns about the grant list to the service. 
 

3. The service to consider more Local Committee involvement for smaller 
local grants. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: None. 
 

10/13 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 10] 
 
The Committee noted the next meeting of the Communities Select Committee 
would be held on 20 March 2014. 
 
The Committee were requested to attend a private workshop with the Health 
Scrutiny Committee on 22 January 2014 at 2pm at Fire HQ in Reigate. This 
workshop would consider the Blue Light Service Collaboration and Public 
Safety Plan. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 1.10 pm 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

2

Page 10



��

�

Communities Select Committee 15th January 2014 

Item 4: Public questions 

Submitted by: Fire-fighter Tim Jones via Spelthorne Councillor Ian Harvey 

Question:  

Since the availability of Retained Crews is currently woeful (and has been for some 

time now), where used in Surrey, will you guarantee that Spelthorne will have a full 

24/7 response from IT'S Retained Crew, especially when the vast majority of the 

proposed catchment area is non-residential, non-commercial? 

 

Response: 

Historically Surrey, its boroughs, districts and parishes all have a long tradition of 

drawing on people from local communities to support the fire service in delivering its 

services and today retained fire-fighters, who are employees just like full-time 

fighters, play an important role in Surrey Fire and Rescue Service. There are 10 

retained fire stations across Surrey providing a cost effective, reliable and vital on-

call cover where members of the local communities respond via a pager system to 

the full range of emergencies just as their whole-time colleagues do. Depending on 

the type of cover provided and the time of day retained staff may respond from home 

or a place of work. 

Anyone can be a retained fire-fighter, as long as they meet the entry criteria and are 

able to respond to the station within the required time. That can and does include 

staff who work as whole-time fire-fighters and there are a number of whole-time fire-

fighters in Surrey who work both systems either for Surrey or other Fire and Rescue 

Services. Being a retained fire-fighter can complement many different lifestyles but it 

does require a range of personal skills such as understanding, reliability, flexibility 

and the ability to work within a team. While prospective candidates don’t need any 

qualifications there is a selection process which includes physical and practical tests 

and a medical.  

As a borough Spelthorne has a population which provides a large number of people 

to draw upon to establish a retained unit at the new location. With an average 

population density of about 17 people per hectare the demographics of Spelthorne 

offer distinct advantages when considering retained fire-fighters. The estimate is that 

for the required response time there are 27,517 people in the 18-59 age categories. 

In comparison Cranleigh (Waverley Borough Council’s website records a population 

of 11,241) and Oxted (Tandridge District Council website states a population of 

11,000), both of which are successful retained units, only draw from a catchment in 

the order of 5,000 people each. 

Minute Item 4/13

Page 11

2

Page 11



��

�

As with the current arrangements and the new proposed “On-call” contracts for 

retained staff Surrey Fire and Rescue Service will continue to work to ensure that 

delivery against the response standard is achieved and in doing so will seek to 

ensure that the right people with the right skills and equipment operating out of 

appropriate locations is secured to make the people of Surrey safer in their 

communities. 

Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos  
Chairman of Communities Select Committee 
 

Page 12

2

Page 12



��

�

Communities Select Committee 15th January 2014 

Item 4: Public questions 

Submitted by: Spelthorne Borough Councillor Mr Ian Harvey 

Question 1:  

How is it possible to come up with a proposal that has such far reaching and 

potentially serious consequences and expect its public consultation to be taken 

seriously (and the public to have confidence in both the consultation and proposed 

changes) when clearly there has been no credible financial analysis carried out, and 

if such analysis has been carried out, why has it not been provided (at the very least, 

in confidence to relevant Borough Councillors / Local Committee members)? 

�Response: 

The intention of Surrey County Council and that of the Fire Service is to maintain a 

balanced budget in 2013/14 and through the medium term financial plan to continue 

to deliver a combination of service improvements through transformations and 

implementation of planned budget reductions to secure efficient and effective 

delivery of front line services. The Fire Service has carefully considered and planned 

how best to operate within a reduced budget and in doing so has sought to generate 

opportunities to gain improvements in the deployment of fire engines across the 

county in order to deliver continued improvement in performance against the Surrey 

Response Standard.  

Phase 1 of the Public Safety Plan proposed changes to the crewing arrangements at 

Staines fire station to day crewing, which requires less staff, whilst  keeping one 24/7 

whole-time crewed fire engine at Sunbury as part of an incremental change within 

the borough. The phase 2 proposal supported our strategic intention of securing 

performance improvements against the Surrey Response Standard whilst at the 

same time contributing towards the planned revenue savings that the service had 

committed to in the medium term financial plan and ensuring a more equitable 

provision of fire cover across the county. Phase 1 was not invoked because a 

location was identified in an area that the response modelling had suggested would 

generate improvements and this was referred to as the “optimum location”.   

The recent consultation in Spelthorne proposed the closure of two, 24/7 whole-time 

crewed fire stations and the relocation to a new site with one 24/7 whole-time crewed 

fire engine. There are two financial components to this proposal; firstly the revenue 

savings which will be generated by reducing and redeploying a number of whole-

time staff to a new fire station in Spelthorne but also to other fire stations and 

secondly the capital costs associated with relocating into a new, efficient, fit for 

purpose fire station that not only supports our continued commitment to delivering a 

high quality service to the people of Surrey but also provides an opportunity for Fire, 

Police, Ambulance and other partner agencies to work even closer together, possibly Page 13

2

Page 13



��

�

from one location. In doing so greater efficiencies and integration would flow, thereby 

supporting Public Service transformation and securing more effective and earlier 

joint prevention work. 

As part of its planning process the Service considered a number of options which 

were communicated as part of the consultation. They are repeated here but they 

now include their associated costs; 

• Option 1: To do nothing and maintain the status quo. The current annual 
operational costs (which are the direct costs of fire-fighters) of maintaining 
one fire engine at each of the two locations in Spelthorne (Sunbury and 
Staines) are in the order of £2.12million. In effect this equates to each 1 fire 
engine 24/7 whole-time fire station having annual operating costs in the order 
of £1.06million. This option would not yield any of the revenue savings 
required in the medium term financial plan neither would it deliver any 
improvements against the Surrey Response Standard across the county. 

• Option 2: Implement the Public Safety Plan Phase 1 deployment (24 hour 
cover at Sunbury, 12 hour day cover at Staines). As previously mentioned this 
option was not progressed due to the opportunity to move to phase 2 because 
a site had been identified within the area that generated improvements in the 
Surrey Response Standard. 

• Option 3 (a): Close Sunbury and maintain Staines. Based on the operating 
costs this would have generated revenue saving’s in the order of £1.06million 
through the reduction in establishment by not having Sunbury fire station but 
would have left the Service in a premises which is not owned by Surrey 
County Council and would have seen personnel remain in a premises that is 
in need of some considerable amount of on-going planned and reactive 
maintenance due to the age of the buildings. 

• Option 3 (b): Close Staines and maintain Sunbury. This option generates the 
same amount of savings (£1.06million) as option 3(a) because of the 
reduction in establishment by not having Staines fire station but the Service 
would be located in premises that are owned by Surrey County Council. Again 
the premises are in need of some considerable amount of on-going planned 
maintenance due to the age of the buildings. Both option 3(a) and 3(b) do not 
fit with the optimised location by virtue of their geographical locations and 
therefore there is no improvement in the Surrey Response Standard. 

• Option 4: Implement the proposal for a new fire station at an optimised 
location within the borough with one 24/7 whole-time crewed fire engine. Just 
like options 3(a) and 3(b) the revenue savings are in the order of £1.06million 
because of the reduction in establishment levels. By moving to a location 
based on the information provided by the analysis and modelling there will be 
an improvement in the overall Surrey Response Standard as follows; 1st 
response to all 2+ fire engine incidents from 80.8% to 82.5%, 2nd response to 
all 2+ fire engine incidents from 86.7% to 90.5% and 1st response to other 
emergencies from 96.8% to 98.9%. 

Page 14

2

Page 14



��

�

During the consultation suggestions came forward with regard to other options which 

included having one new centrally located fire station but two 24/7 whole-time 

crewed fire engines. By comparison this configuration has an annual running cost of 

£1.95million and only yields a revenue saving in order of £170,000 per annum which 

is far short of the revenue savings required. 

The consultation process did provide valuable information which resulted in another 

option being explored, considered and put forward in order to address the concerns 

expressed by Spelthorne residents and local leaders and which is now referred to as 

option 5 in the paper placed before the Communities Select Committee. Option 5 

suggests a new centrally located fire station with one 24/7 whole-time crewed fire 

engine and one 24/7 fire engine staffed by people who are on-call (part-time staff 

who are available on a pager system from their place of work or at home) from the 

local community and who are trained to the same standards as whole-time staff. 

Surrey Fire and Rescue Service already operate this type of duty system in other 

parts of the county, for example, at Walton, Guildford and Haslemere. Under this 

option, 18 new local jobs would be created and would need to be recruited from 

within a 4-5 minute response footprint of the new location who would then commit to 

being available at least 54 hours each week and who would respond to the fire 

station having been alerted via a pager system. The annual operating costs of 18 

staff on this “On-call” system are in the order of £170,000. This would be in addition 

to the costs of the one 24/7 whole-time crewed fire engine. Therefore option 5 

delivers in the order of £800,000 of revenue savings but secures two fire engines in 

Spelthorne which is what most of the feedback indicated and generates 18 new 

employment opportunities in the borough whilst at the same time delivering 

improvements in the response standard. There is an initial one off start up cost of 

creating a new “On-call” crew in Spelthorne of around £80,000 associated with 

marketing, recruiting, training and providing the equipment to the new unit. 

With any of the above options there are a number of associated cost savings as 

follows; 

• Property running costs which are estimated at £35,000 per year per building 
based on the current building stock but future running costs will be dependent 
upon the final property solution and build type, 

• Small savings in associated staff costs for training and personal protective 
equipment, future equipment and vehicle replacements. It must be noted that 
option 5 provides a small saving in future equipment costs but it does not 
deliver any savings against the vehicle replacement fund.   

Finally there are the capital costs of the new build. The project is still at the pre-

planning stage and therefore detailed capital costs for a new build and subsequent 

disposals are not currently known. However, the estimated net capital cost is 

anticipated to be in the region of £2million to £3million. The estimated capital cost of 

acquiring a site and building a new fire station in Spelthorne, and the associated 
Page 15

2

Page 15



��

�

capital receipts from the possible disposal of Sunbury Fire station (Staines being 

owned by the Water Company) have been allowed for within an overall fire station 

rationalisation budget of £10.5m within the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 

The final build, design and contract awards will be subject to a separate cabinet 

paper. 

The consultation process has highlighted that there were gaps in the information that 

we presented to the public. As with previous consultations we will review the 

comments, feedback and experiences of the past 6 months and we will seek to 

incorporate them into future consultations. 

 

Question 2:  

How can the potential significantly increased risk arising from the construction and 

operation of the Charlton Lane “gassifier” (especially given the fate of its Scottish 

“cousin”) not be assessed and taken account of in the proposed reduction in 

Spelthorne Fire cover? 

Response: 

Throughout the public consultation reference was made to the planned Waste 

Management facility at Charlton Lane, Shepperton, referred to as the “Eco-Park”. In 

particular, concerns were voiced with regard to the increase in risk because of the 

nature of that facility and that by reducing the number of fire appliances in 

Spelthorne the risk may be increased further.  

In responding to this question the Service will outline how it approaches the 

management of risk, and in particular fire risk in the community and how it 

contributes to supporting community resilience.  

Surrey Fire and Rescue Service conduct assessments of the risks for which it has a 

statutory responsibility which are defined by the Fire and Rescue Service Act 2004. 

The analysis draws upon various data and information sources including the 

Community Risk Register produced by Surrey Local Resilience Forum, census data 

and information from partner agencies. That analysis identifies the prevailing types of 

risks against which we then plan the delivery of our services.  In Surrey the risks 

include fires in the home, fires in commercial and public buildings, Road Traffic 

Collisions and life threatening special services. Our main focus is on reducing the 

incidence of deaths and injuries associated with fires. This can be seen in figure 1 

below.  

 

 

Page 16

2

Page 16



�

Figure 1 The prevailing risks across Surrey for which Surrey Fir

statutory duty 

Surrey Fire and Rescue is also 
Contingencies Act 2004.  Under that legislation
of the risk pertaining to major incidents. A major inci
emergency that requires the 
of the emergency services, and generally requires t
indirectly of large numbers of people
such as the fire in Buncefield
flooding or a large, protracted common
(2011). Surrey Fire and Rescue Servi
Forum (SLRF) monitor events that happen in order
infrastructure and activities (for example
led to major incidents elsewhere in the UK and overse
and Rescue Service also consider
produced by the Surrey Local Resilience Forum 
contingencies, their likelihood and potential impact
combination of reviewing national and international h
recognising the potentially hazardous activities undertaken across the 
the Community Risk Register it can be seen that risk
“Industrial explosions and major fires
Community Risk Register records the likelihood of th
“medium to low” with the associated impact as being “
recorded as being “medium” with the associated contro
Major Incident Plan & SLRF Plan
operator emergency plans and 

The prevailing risks across Surrey for which Surrey Fire and Rescue has a 

scue is also a Category 1 Responder within the Civil 
Under that legislation we also contribute to the 

the risk pertaining to major incidents. A major incident can be defined as 
emergency that requires the implementation of special arrangements by one or mo
of the emergency services, and generally requires the involvement, directly or 
indirectly of large numbers of people”. This could be a large scale industrial accident 
such as the fire in Buncefield, Hertforshire (2005) or a wide area event such as 
flooding or a large, protracted commons fire such as Swinley Forest

Surrey Fire and Rescue Service and its partners in Surrey Local Resilience 
monitor events that happen in order to identify whether the type of 

infrastructure and activities (for example, industrial sites, chemical sites) that have 
led to major incidents elsewhere in the UK and overseas exist in Surrey.  

considers the publicly available Community Risk Register
Local Resilience Forum which lists a wide range of civil 

contingencies, their likelihood and potential impact. They are identified by a 
combination of reviewing national and international historical incidents, and by 

hazardous activities undertaken across the 
the Community Risk Register it can be seen that risk reference HL7
Industrial explosions and major fires” would be seen to apply to the 

Community Risk Register records the likelihood of this type of incident happening as 
“medium to low” with the associated impact as being “minor”. Overall the risk is 
recorded as being “medium” with the associated control measures being the 

& SLRF Plan, Category 1 responder plans / procedures
and Legislative controls. 

��

e and Rescue has a 

 

he Civil 
contribute to the assessment 

dent can be defined as “An 
implementation of special arrangements by one or more 

he involvement, directly or 
This could be a large scale industrial accident 

(2005) or a wide area event such as 
fire such as Swinley Forest, Berkshire 

rtners in Surrey Local Resilience 
dentify whether the type of 

industrial sites, chemical sites) that have 
as exist in Surrey.  Surrey Fire 

ailable Community Risk Register, 
which lists a wide range of civil 

. They are identified by a 
ncidents, and by 

hazardous activities undertaken across the County. From 
 Fire / Explosion 

” would be seen to apply to the “Eco-Park”. The 
is type of incident happening as 

. Overall the risk is 
l measures being the Surrey 

1 responder plans / procedures, Site 

Page 17

2

Page 17



�

Surrey Fire and Rescue Services approach to risk mitiga

and continues to be, to develop integra

identified priorities in the most cost

various initiatives across our Community Fire Prevent

teams and Emergency Response arrangements

and Rescue Service’s approach to risk assessment identifies and estimate

predominant risks for which a response is required by

“accepted” responsibility by S

community based fire prevention and protection activity can be shown to r

those risks. As one would expect the frequency and type of incident v

locality to another but by approaching it in this way

protection activity to be co-ordinated and integrated to provide an efficient use

resources.  

The level, type and distribution of our prevention,

will then aim to reduce risk “as low as reasonably practicable

resources available to Surrey 

deployed by engaging in partnership with others. They wi

manner as to be proportionate to the identified ris

highest priority. A good example of this type of appro

work with Adult Social Care

have identified key “at risk” groups including peopl

with mental health difficulties and people with mobil

can be found in our publication 

This integrated approach to the management of risk is

fire service. We work with a wide range of partners on a statutory basis as we

those in the private and voluntary sector (see figure 2 below)

���������	����
����������������	��������������������������������

Surrey Fire and Rescue Services approach to risk mitigation and management has, 

to be, to develop integrated risk reduction initiatives to address 

identified priorities in the most cost-effective way. These are then embedded into 

various initiatives across our Community Fire Prevention, Community Fire Protection 

Emergency Response arrangements. As has been outlined S

approach to risk assessment identifies and estimate

predominant risks for which a response is required by statute, or needed as an 

“accepted” responsibility by Surrey Fire and Rescue Service; and for 

prevention and protection activity can be shown to r

one would expect the frequency and type of incident v

locality to another but by approaching it in this way it allows our prevention and 

ordinated and integrated to provide an efficient use

The level, type and distribution of our prevention, protection and response resources 

aim to reduce risk “as low as reasonably practicable” by utilisatio

urrey Fire and Rescue Service, as well as those that may be 

deployed by engaging in partnership with others. They will be applied in such a 

manner as to be proportionate to the identified risk. The highest risks will attrac

highest priority. A good example of this type of approach has been in relation to our 

work with Adult Social Care. By studying the trends in fire deaths and injuries we 

have identified key “at risk” groups including people over 65 years of age, peopl

with mental health difficulties and people with mobility problems (more information 

can be found in our publication “Keeping you safe from fire”).  

This integrated approach to the management of risk is not solely dependent on the 

th a wide range of partners on a statutory basis as we

e private and voluntary sector (see figure 2 below) 

	����
����������������	�������������������������������� 

��

nd management has, 

ted risk reduction initiatives to address 

effective way. These are then embedded into 

ion, Community Fire Protection 

outlined Surrey Fire 

approach to risk assessment identifies and estimates the 

 statute, or needed as an 

; and for which 

prevention and protection activity can be shown to reduce 

one would expect the frequency and type of incident varies from one 

 it allows our prevention and 

ordinated and integrated to provide an efficient use of 

 protection and response resources 

” by utilisation of the 

, as well as those that may be 

ll be applied in such a 

k. The highest risks will attract the 

ach has been in relation to our 

By studying the trends in fire deaths and injuries we 

e over 65 years of age, people 

ity problems (more information 

 not solely dependent on the 

th a wide range of partners on a statutory basis as well as 

 

Page 18

2

Page 18



��

�

This approach spans all of our community fire prevention, protection and response 

arrangements. The “Eco-Park” is one example where the safe operation of the site is 

the responsibility of many people and regulatory bodies of which the fire service is 

one. Any new building is subject to a planning regime followed by compliance with 

building regulations and then, if it is a licensed operation or premises compliance 

with the various legislative framework that applies.  

The role of the fire service community fire protection teams within the built 

environment is to ensure that premises are safe with regard to fire and fire related 

hazards and their associated risks. It does that by visiting premises to ensure 

compliance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 and through 

statutory consultation frameworks with other bodies such as local borough Building 

Control departments. Statutory frameworks have designated lead bodies whether it 

is the Local Authority, Environment Agency or Fire Service, all of whom will have 

powers confirmed upon them under the legislation. Such frameworks may also state 

when the different bodies will be required to share information and whether any 

responses must or may be considered. With regard to the “Eco-Park” the Fire 

Service will provide a response under Part B (Approved Document B) of schedule 1 

of the Building Regulations which covers the requirements with respect to fire safety 

when an application is received by the local authority or approved inspector. 

Architects, designers, the operators, managers and the Environment Agency will all 

contribute to the safe and effective operation of the premises. It is not the sole 

responsibility of the Fire Service to manage the risk. 

The Waste industry has suffered from a number of high profile fires but the number 

of fires at waste recycling sites has decreased in 2012 with The Environment Agency 

stating that the number of waste recycling fires has decreased by almost 30%. The 

Chief Fire Officers Association (CFOA) has recognised that there is the potential for 

these types of incidents to “have a huge impact not only on the local community and 

environment but also to the economy via enforced road closures and the 

commitment of significant fire-fighting resources”. In an effort to reduce the potential 

for such fires to occur and mitigate the impacts of those that do, CFOA are working 

in partnership with organisations such as the Environment Agency and the Wood & 

Tyre Recycling Association to examine incident statistics and review existing 

guidance. They are also seeking to work with site operators to improve safety and 

lobby the government for decisive action, including legislative change where 

necessary. CFOA has welcomed the issue of an Environment Agency Technical 

Guidance Note “Reducing Fire Risk at Sites Storing Combustible Materials” to 

reduce the frequency and impact of fires at waste and recycling sites. The guidance 

clarifies the measures that waste sites must take to minimise the risk of fires and 

pollution and it will be adopted by the various regulatory bodies. 

Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos  
Chairman of Communities Select Committee 
 

Page 19

2

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 20



 population (%) incidents (%) 1 engine (%) 2 engines (%) 

Spelthorne      95 598      (8.4)   1 067       (7.3)   1          (2.9)   2          (5.7) 

Surrey 1 132 390 (100.0) 14 659  (100.0) 34     (100.0) 35     (100.0) 

 

· 1 x 24/7 Crew engine + 1 x Retained Crew engine is unequal treatment 

· Only Surrey borough on “Middlesex” bank – bridges mean longer response, pinch 

points 

· Third runway, Ecopark, M3, M25, reservoirs, river – extra risks 
 

 

Unsuitability of proposed site for Retained Crew 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Summary 

 

· Safety of Residents 

· Practicality of Operation 

· Equity of Treatment 

 

all mean 2 full time crews at 2 stations in Spelthorne 

Unsuitable access 

 
In/out access for Retained Crew or appliances to 

proposed fire station site off the Fordbridge 

Roundabout is impractical and dangerous. 

 

The proposed site can only reasonably be 

accessed from the north-west-bound (south) side 

of the dual carriageway A308 (ß). Retained Crew 

coming from Staines or Ashford would have to 

travel on other (longer) routes to access the 

north-west-bound carriageway further south 

(near BP petrol station intersection). 

Unsuitable recruitment/response area 

  

Retained Crew contracts stipulate a 5 minute 

response from receiving alarm to arriving at the fire 

station. 

 

Reservoirs, Green Belt and fewer commercial 

employers around the proposed site mean the pool 

of potential Retained Crew is much reduced. 

 

Compared with Walton fire station, the potential 

pool would be 50% smaller. Walton itself has 

difficulties recruiting/keeping Retained Crew. 

 

ß 

Page 21

2

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 22



��
�
��
��

�	

�
�

�

�

�
��

��
��

�
�	

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�

�

��
�
�
��

��
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	


��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	


��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�

Minute Item 8/13

Page 23

2

Page 23



�
�
�
��
��
�
�
		


�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�


�
��

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�
	
�
�
�	

�
��

��

�


	
��
�
�
�


�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��

��

��

�

�	
��
�
��

��
�
�
�


�

�
�
��

	
�

�

�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�

��

�
�
��
��

�
�
�	

��
	
��

�

�


�
�
��
�
�
��


�
	
�

�
�
��

 

�
�
��

�
�
�

��

�

��

	
��

�
��

�
�

	
��
�
��

!
��

�	
��

	
�

��
�
�

��

��
�
�
��

�
�	

�
�
��

�
�
	
��
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

��
��

!
	
��


�
�
"�
��

��

�

�
"�
��

��
�
�	

��
	
��


�

�

�

��

��
�
�

��

��
�
��

��
��

��
	

�

��
�
�	

��
#
�
�


�
�
��

�
��

��
	
��
�	

��
�
��

�
��

�
��
�
�


�
�
�
��

Page 24

2

Page 24



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
	�
�

��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
	�
�

��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
	�

�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
	�

�
��
��
��
�
		
�
�

Page 25

2

Page 25



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
	�
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
�

��
�
��
��

��
��


��

�
��
	

�
��
�

��
	�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��



�


��

�


	�


�
��
�

��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�


�	


��
��

�
�	


�
	

�


��
�

��


��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��

��
	�
�
�
��
��

�
	�
�
�
��
�

�
�
		


�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
	�

�
�
�
�


��
�
�
		
��
�
	

Page 26

2

Page 26



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
	�
�
��
���
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
 
�
��
��
��
�
		
�
��
�

!
"�
�
	�
��
�
		
�
�
#�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
��
!
"�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
		
�
�
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�!

�
�
��

Page 27

2

Page 27



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

$�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
	�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�

�
�


�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
��

��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
� 

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
%

Page 28

2

Page 28



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
�
�	


�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�

�
�
&�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
	

��
�
'

Page 29

2

Page 29



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
��

�
�
		
�
�
���
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�(

�
	�
"�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�	
�
�
	�
��
�)
�
�
�
�
�

*
��
	�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

*
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�'
''

Page 30

2

Page 30



�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

T
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

V
is
it
 S
u
rr
e
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

L
e
a
n
 a
n
d
 m
e
a
n
 =
 g
o
o
d
 

in
 t
h
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n

P
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t?
 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

tu
rn
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 V
is
it
 

S
u
rr
e
y.

D
&
B
’s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
/p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
  

to
u
ri
s
m
 –
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
is
.

V
is
it
 S
u
rr
e
y
 t
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te

S
u
rr
e
y
’s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

to
u
ri
s
m
.

Page 31

2

Page 31



�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

B
ra
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
S
u
rr
e
y

B
ra
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 

S
u
rr
e
y

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
b
o
u
t 

b
ra
n
d
in
g
 S
u
rr
e
y
 a
s
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
c
y
c
lin
g
 

to
u
ri
s
m

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 n
a
tu
ra
l 

b
e
a
u
ty
, 
ju
s
t 
m
ile
s
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n

R
a
c
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
, 
S
u
rr
e
y
 

H
ill
s
, 
u
rb
a
n
 a
re
a
s

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

S
u
rr
e
y
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
lo
g
o
?
 B

u
t 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 D
&

B
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 

lo
g

o
s
. 
D

o
e

s
 t
h

e
re

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 o
n

e
 l
o

g
o

 

fo
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
?

 Y
E
S
 –
th
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

o
n
e
 S
u
rr
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
.

U
s
e
 S
u
rr
e
y
 H
ill
s
 T
V
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 ?

Page 32

2

Page 32



�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

W
e
b
 o
ff
e
r 

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

P
o
lic
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
V
is
it
 

S
u
rr
e
y
 b
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 s
it
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

lin
k
s
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
it
e
s
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 

V
is
it
 S
u
rr
e
y
 w
e
b
s
it
e
?

A
p
p
 –
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ts
 t
o
 

v
is
it
o
r 
a
tt
ra
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
u
n
ty
 

L
e
a
n
 a
n
d
 m
e
a
n
 –
b
ri
n
g
 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 

to
g
e
th
e
r.
 C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 w
e
b
 o
ff
e
r.

Page 33

2

Page 33



�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

P
o
li
c
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

W
e
 a
re
 o
n
ly
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
n
g
  

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
s
o
 

d
o
n
’t
 n
e
e
d
 p
o
lic
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

S
k
ill
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 l
e
is
u
re
 

in
d
u
s
tr
y
 –
h
o
w
 c
a
n
 w
e
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 s
k
ill
s
?
 M
o
re
 o
f 
a
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
S

C
C

 a
re

 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
  
ta

lk
in

g
 t
o

 

u
n

iv
e

rs
it
ie

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
is

. 

S
u

rr
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 a
re

 g
o

in
g

 

to
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
/i
n
te
rn
s
h
ip
s
 

a
t 
V
is
it
 S
u
rr
e
y
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
to
u
ri
s
m
 i
n
 S
u
rr
e
y
?

Page 34

2

Page 34



�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

H
o
w
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

v
is
it
o
r 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
?

Im
p
ro
v
e
 r
o
a
d
s

Im
p
ro
v
e
 c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
it
te

r 
p

o
lic

y.
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
b
o
u
t 
c
o
s
ts
 o
f 

d
o
in
g
 t
h
is

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 p
la
c
e
s
 t
o
 s
ta
y

J
o
in
 u
p
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

D
is
tr
ic
ts
 a
n
d
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
s
, 
a
n
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
it
te

r 
p

o
lic

y.
 

Page 35

2

Page 35



�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 

ra
c
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
, 
g
o
lf
 

c
o
u
rs
e
s

N
e
e
d
s
 l
e
s
s
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

–
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 v
e
n
u
e
s
 w
e
ll 

p
ro
m
o
te
d

D
o
 w
e
 n
e
e
d
 b
ig
g
e
r 

v
e
n
u
e
s
?
 M
a
x
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 =
 

T
w
o
 a
ir
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 o
u
r 

b
o
rd
e
rs
. 

If
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 m
a
s
s
 d
e
m
a
n
d
, 

th
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
w
ill
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
.

3
0
0
/3
5
0
. 
D
o
n
’t
 s
e
e
 S
u
rr
e
y
 

a
s
 a
 v
e
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
la
rg
e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
im
ila
r 
u
rb
a
n
 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
.

Page 36

2

Page 36



�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�

•
T
o

u
ri

s
m

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 –
s
o

 w
h

a
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

o
le

?

–
S

u
rr

e
y
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

o
u
ri
s
m

, 
o
v
e
r 

3
5
,0

0
0
 

jo
b
s

–
T
o
u
ri
s
m

 =
 u

s
e
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

•
Is

 t
h

e
re

 a
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

to
u

ri
s
m

 i
n

 S
u

rr
e

y
?

–
Y

e
s
 –

a
 g

ro
w

in
g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

•
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 
to

u
ri

s
m

?

Page 37

2

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 38



Page 1 of 11 

MINUTES of the meeting of the COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE held 
at 10.00 am on 20 March 2014 at Woking Adult Learning Centre, Bonsey 
Lane, Westfield, Woking, GU22 9PR. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on 
Monday 19 May, 2014. 
 
Elected Members: 
 
 * Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos (Chairman) 

* Mr Chris Norman (Vice-Chairman) 
* Mrs Jan Mason 
* Mr John Orrick 
* Mr Saj Hussain 
* Rachael I. Lake 
* Mrs Mary Lewis 
* Mr Christian Mahne 
  Mr Chris Pitt 
* Ms Barbara Thomson 
  Mr Alan Young 
  Mr Robert Evans 
 

Substitute Members: 
 
 Mrs Margaret Hicks 

 
In attendance 
 
 Mrs Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 

  
 

2

Page 39



Page 2 of 11 

11/14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 
 
Apologies were received from Alan Young, Chris Pitt and Robert Evans.  
 
Margaret Hicks subsituted for Alan Young. 
 

12/14 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 15 JANUARY 2014  [Item 2] 
 
The minutes were approved as an accurate record of the meeting. 
 

13/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
Mr Saj Hussain informed the Committee that Surrey County Council leased 
the premises of Knaphill Library from his family.  
 
Mr John Orrick informed the Committee that his wife worked for a Surrey 
library. 
 
There were no additional declarations of interest.  
 

14/14 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4] 
 
None were received. 
 

15/14 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE  [Item 5] 
 
The Committee noted the responses to recommendations from the Cabinet 
Member and Procurement & Commissioning. 
 

16/14 RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
[Item 6] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses:  
 
Peter Milton, Head of Cultural Services 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Members queried when the Committee would receive an update on 
plans regarding the Magna Carta celebrations and were informed that 
an update would be provided in July 2014. 
 

2. The Chairman requested Members to provide feedback on the grant 
funding list which had been circulated to the Committee following a 
recommendation made at the last meeting under item 9. Members 
stated that they felt that they did not have enough information to make 
specific comments on the list, but that the small grants were not cost 
effective due to the administrative costs associated with processing 
them. 
 

3. The Chairman informed the Committee that a Member Reference 
Group to act as a sounding board for the revision of the Fire and 

2

Page 40



Page 3 of 11 

Rescue Service Public Safety Plan was to be set up, and the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman would decide upon the membership as 
a number of Members had volunteered to be a part of the group. 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman to decide upon the membership of 
the Fire and Rescue Service Public Safety Plan Member Reference 
Group. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: 
 
The Committee to consider the Forward Work Programme and 
Recommendations Tracker at its future meetings. 
 

17/14 THE VISION FOR SURREY LIBRARIES  [Item 7] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Peter Milton, Head of Cultural Services 
Rose Wilson, Library Operations Manager 
Janet Thomas, Libraries Programme Manager 
Helen Leech, Virtual Content Manager 
Chris Fardon, Arts Council England 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Officers provided the Committee with a short presentation, the slides 
of which can be found attached to the minutes. They informed 
Members that physical visitors to libraries was declining slowly, as was 
being seen nationally, but that virtual usage was increasing by 20% 
annually. One in six people were still visiting the library in person 
however. 
 

2. Five apps had been developed for the library service including Zinio 
which provides access to magazines subscribed for by the library 
service. The impact of e-books was still unknown to the service, with 
many publishers still not selling the rights to e-books to libraries. This 
was a national issue which was being looked into. 
 

3. There were challenges within the virtual element of the library in that 
not all library staff had email accounts, there was a need for an online 
booking system for the 400 events run annually within libraries, and a 
project was ongoing to microchip all books so customers can check-
out books in one go. 
 

4. The service was moving to introduce a ‘creative journey’ for customers 
to encourage readers to consider new types of literature. Furthermore, 
they were trying to encourage new users to visit libraries by arranging 
talks by well-known authors, such as winners of the Booker Prize. 

2

Page 41



Page 4 of 11 

 
5. The Libraries were working to strengthen communities by tackling 

difficult areas of life by helping people to find support and advice e.g. 
through specialist reading groups. 
 

6. Since 2005, the officers felt that the service had been well supported 
by the Council, however eight libraries were in need of becoming self-
service and 22 were in need of refurbishment. Self service libraries 
provided some efficiencies while refurbishment provided a distinctive 
look which linked all Surrey libraries, in addition to making the spaces 
more useable as the new furniture could be moved for events. 
 

7. The service stated that it was important that attention was also given 
to the external aspect of libraries, with more people shopping online, it 
was more of a priority that libraries were positioned well on high 
streets. For many communities the library is their only noticeable 
Surrey County Council service. 
 

8. The Surrey Library service was performing well as it had been 
shortlisted for the library service of the year award and Woking Library 
had been chosen to be the flagship library for the South East for World 
Book Night. It was important to the service to maintain the good 
position of Surrey libraries. 
 

9. Officers informed Members that it was difficult to compare the costs of 
virtual and physical books as only 2% of the libraries’ budget was 
spent on e-books due to the difficulties of accessing the books from 
publishers. There was a government review looking into the access of 
e-books and it was hoped that it would lead to greater availability of 
books which could then be lent to customers, however Surrey library 
e-books could not be rented on Kindles but could be read on tablets. 
 

10. The service explained the resource pressures in providing community 
events and programmes in areas such as domestic abuse, dementia, 
mental health and looked after children. The Arts Council England 
(ACE) felt that libraries could be formally commissioned to do more of 
this type of work within the community. The Cabinet Member felt that 
with Public Health being placed within the Council, more work could be 
done in this area as the team had the responsibility to commission 
services in this area. The service highlighted how libraries were central 
to many communities and a space where people could receive help 
without feeling like they were dealing with an institution. 
 

11. Members felt that it was important that libraries had a policy regarding 
signposting customers to further help or providing social support, as  it 
was important that highly trained people provided such support. The 
Library Service confirmed their role as one of signposting where 
specialised help and support is required.  
 

12. The Committee were disappointed that the service did not have a 
specific IT budget for IT development and felt that development would 
be vital to the continued success of the service to enable it to respond 
to the changing needs of the public. 
 

2

Page 42



Page 5 of 11 

13. Members were concerned regarding the number of part-time posts 
within the library service and felt that it meant people were unable to 
develop their careers within the library service. Officers stated that 
they had far less full-time posts than in 80s and 90s which was in 
response to opening times, rotas and staff costs. They were however, 
discussing how this could be changed, but they did not feel part time 
work held people back in developing their careers. 
 

14. Officers informed the Committee that they would like to develop two 
services further – processing Blue Badge applications and bus 
passes, however there were issues in being issued with licences to 
perform these tasks. 
  

15. Members suggested that libraries should work more closely with high 
street bookshops so as to ensure people were able to access books; 
however officers stated that to-date there had been no uptake when 
offers were made to bookshops to share the library space. 
 

16. Officers stated that workshops had been completed at the Community 
Partnered Libraries on the new technologies that had been introduced 
to help people to access services online. 
 

17. Members stated that libraries should concentrate on enabling people 
to access services, including IT services, and suggested that the 
service should explore funding opportunities from the education sector 
who provide funding for improving access to STEM (science, 
technology, engineering and mathematics) subjects. 
 

18. Members felt that Local Committees should look at the role of libraries 
within their areas and have a role in assessing and prioritising what 
services should be provided within each. Officers felt that it was 
important that the service remained complimentary and relevant to 
other services provided within the community. 
  

19. The Arts Council England representative informed the Committee that 
the Surrey library service was held in high regard, and that 
Cambridgeshire library service was in a similar situation and was an 
organisation which Surrey could share good practice with.  
 

20. Members suggested that an avenue to explore could be the streaming 
of live performances of opera, ballet or theatre in the library. The Arts 
Council England (ACE) representative stated that this was something 
the organisation was very interested in as it brought in new audiences 
into the library and introduced others to new forms of art. The ACE 
were in conversation with television broadcasters regarding the 
possibility. Library officers stated that the issue would be to ensure the 
venues were adequate to hold large events, such as having enough 
toilets.  

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The Communities Select Committee approve the overall direction of 
travel for Surrey County Council libraries in relation to the Arts Council 
England goals and aspirations for libraries. 
 

2

Page 43



Page 6 of 11 

2. The Library service to work with the Head of Procurement and 
Commissioning to explore options for the Library service to be formally 
commissioned by other county council services to deliver events and 
programmes on their behalf, and to report back to the Select 
Committee. 
 

3. The Library service to explore the funding opportunities from the 
education sector in respect of STEM (science, technology, engineering 
and mathematics) subjects to improve IT provision in Surrey libraries. 
 

4. The Library Service to talk to other libraries on a similar journey to 
create the library of the future, to share best practice and learning. 
 

5. That the Chief Digital Officer work with the Library service to develop 
their IT provision as part of the Council’s development of their Digital 
Strategy. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: None. 
 

18/14 THE VISION FOR COMMUNITY LEARNING & SKILLS  [Item 8] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Peter Milton, Head of Cultural Services 
Paul Hoffman, Principal Community Learning and Skills 
Anu Chanda, Deputy Principal 
Cheryl Brown, Curriculum Manager – Family Programmes 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
Two adult learners from the Family Learning Programme  
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Officers provided the Committee with a presentation, slides of which 
can be found attached to the minutes.  
 

2. The Committee were informed that the service generates £1.6 million 
annually, mainly through fees, and pays the county council around 
£850,000 annually for the buildings and infrastructure of the seven 
sites. 
 

3. Funding for the service had fallen around 20% in the last seven years 
due to no rise in line with inflation.  
 

4. Despite East Surrey College holding the contract for the provision of 
adult learning for the east of the county, Surrey County Council 
provided family learning across the whole of Surrey. 
 

5. The Committee were reminded of the Public Value Review (PVR) 
which recommended in 2012, the need to develop an overarching 
marketing strategy and plan centred on an effective interactive web 
presence to drive increased participation rates and income. The 

2

Page 44



Page 7 of 11 

Committee were disappointed to note that improvement of the quality 
of the service’s web presence and creating functionality to provide 
online enrolment still remain outstanding from the PVR implementation 
plan.  Officers showed the Committee examples of other counties’ 
adult learning websites which were standalone and were interactive 
and engaging. Furthermore, these counties had seen a dramatic 
increase in enrolments after the websites had been developed and 
online enrolment introduced. 
 

6. Officers felt that they had driven up standards within adult learning and 
hoped this would be reflected within the Ofsted inspection, which was 
expected in late 2014. The inspection in 2010 had been good, but new 
inspection standards had been introduced which required the service 
to continue to improve, with currently around 74% of classes at a good 
standard. 
 

7. Over 500 learners had enrolled on accredited learning programmes in 
English and Maths, which enabled them to work towards GCSEs. In 
addition, the service was working with Job Centre Plus to develop 
personal and work skills courses which enables job seekers to find 
new jobs and gain confidence. The money for these courses come 
with the referrals from the Job Centre Plus. 
 

8. The service has over 500 learners enrolled who have learning 
difficulties and/or disabilities which requires supported learning. 
 

9. Family learning was available in all 11 Boroughs and Districts, though 
they concentrated on super output areas and areas of identified need 
for learning. The link with the child separates the family learning 
programme from all other learning provided. An child identified as 
requiring learning support would often have parents who have learning 
challenges and it is important to market the family learning service as 
helping the  child as well as the parent as it has been noted that 
Family Learning increases child development by 15%.  
 

10. Family Learning is marketed through word of mouth, leaflets at 
schools and identification of children at school. Classes are tailored to 
the needs of the students and have defined outcomes. 
 

11. Two students from the Family Learning programme attended the 
meeting to answer Members questions. They stated that their children 
saw the service as beneficial as their parents now could help them 
with their homework and had more confidence, along with improved 
English. They aimed to find employment and were looking to enrol on 
more classes, such as courses on childcare. 
 

12. The learners informed Members they had to wait two weeks only until 
their classes started and that tutors had assisted them in arranging 
childcare.  
 

13. Members were disappointed that a new website had still not been 
developed 18 months after the PVR recommendations and queried 
what the holdup had been. They were informed that the service was 
reliant on the Information Management Team and the Digital Delivery 
team, and that they would prefer to have a standalone website 

2

Page 45



Page 8 of 11 

separate from the county council website in order to actively promote 
their service. The Cabinet Member stated that the appointment of a 
Chief Digital Officer would help in the speeding up of the development 
of a website. 
 

14. The Committee strongly felt that the new website needed to be a 
priority for the service and developed by the summer, so that residents 
could enrol online for courses starting in September 2014. 
 

15. Members queried who had responsibility for ensuring new immigrants 
had an understanding of English. Officers stated that they were 
contracted to deliver courses on English as a foreign language under a 
contract with the Skills Funding Agency, and that if a person has some 
English then they can go on an improvement course. Furthermore they 
were working with specific communities, such as the Ghurkha 
community, which they hoped would be self sustaining in the future.  
 

16. The Committee expressed concern that the provision in the east of the 
county was not good. Officers informed Members that East Surrey 
College were performing well, however Surrey County Council were 
looking at the possibility of opening a centre in Dorking as an initial 
step to moving back into the east of the county, however it was felt 
that there was very little chance of gaining the contract back. 
 

17. Members were concerned that due to East Surrey College not 
providing as much outreach provision, communities in high areas of 
deprivation such as those in Epsom & Ewell, were unable to 
participate in learning opportunities. The Cabinet Member suggested 
the Committee invite East Surrey College to answer Members queries 
regarding the provision of adult learning in the east of the county. 
 

18. Officers were confident that online courses would not impact their 
number of learners for the next five to ten years, due to the nature of 
the classes offered. However, often students were completing online 
courses in parallel to their courses with Surrey.  

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The Committee supports the service’s bid to establish a highly 
effective independent web presence to markets its courses and 
engage in e-commerce. 
 

2. The Committee support a review of the service’s progress, its plans for 
the future and its commitment to quality improvement. 
 

3. The Committee support the identification of new sources of funding 
and the removal of barriers to support service growth. 
 

4. The Committee request that the Chief Digital Officer work with the 
Community Learning and Skills service to develop a standalone 
website to enable online booking for courses and effectively market 
the service. This is to maximise the potential of the service and ensure 
its sustainability. Report back to the committee on progress of 
development in three months. 

 

2

Page 46



Page 9 of 11 

Actions/further information to be provided: 
 
East Surrey College to be invited to attend a future Communities Select 
Committee meeting to discuss the provision of adult learning in the east of the 
county. 
 
Committee next steps: 
 
To receive an update from the Chief Digital Officer and the Adult Learning 
Service in three months on progress on delivering a new website for adult 
learning.  
 

19/14 AUDIT REPORT: ADULT & COMMUNITY LEARNING 2013-2014  [Item 9] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Frank Mannion, Compliance Auditor 
Peter Milton, Head of Cultural Services 
Paul Hoffman, Principal Community Learning and Skills 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Compliance Auditor informed the Committee that internal audit 
had reported high priority recommendations in the Management Action 
Plan that would assist the service to prioritise resource allocation for 
the recommendations for improvements. The auditor was satisfied with 
the progress of the actions. The Management Action Plan had been 
agreed with the Service. 
 

2. The auditor would report progress to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. This takes place for audit reports every six months. 
 

3. The service stated that they had invited Internal Audit to review the 
service as they were in a period of transition and wanted some advice 
on their performance. 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The report was noted by the Committee. 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: 
 
The Committee to review Internal Audit reports which have attracted an audit 
opinion of either “Major Improvement Needed” or “Unsatisfactory”, and/or 
those with high priority recommendations, within its Terms of Reference. 
 

20/14 REPORT FROM THE CHAIRMAN  [Item 10] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: 

2

Page 47



Page 10 of 11 

 
Liz Mills, Chief of Staff, Surrey Fire & Rescue Service 
Helyn Clack, Cabinet Member for Community Services 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman informed the Committee that on Monday 17 March 
2014 a private Communities Select Committee workshop took place to 
discuss, in detail, the proposed savings and draft Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) for the Surrey Fire and Rescue Service 
(SFRS). This had been briefly covered during the Communities Select 
Committee budget workshop on 20 February 2014.  
 

2. The following Members attended the meeting on 17 March 2014: 
Denise Saliagopoulos, Chris Norman, Jan Mason, Mary Lewis and 
Barbara Thomson. At the workshop, SFRS presented the case for 
change within the service in the context of changes in demand and 
demographics, environmental changes, different ways of working and 
budget pressures. On the basis of the presentation and member 
discussion on 17 March 2014, the majority of members present agreed 
to put forward the attached tabled report to discuss at the 
Communities Select Committee meeting. It was being proposed that 
the recommendations in this report be submitted to the Cabinet 
meeting on 25 March 2014 to be considered alongside the MTFP 
2014/19. 
 

3. The Committee agreed to move into Part Two, under Section 110A of 
the Local Government Act 1972, which allowed for the public to be 
excluded from the meeting during consideration of the item of 
business on the grounds that there would be likely disclosure of 
exempt information under paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Act. 
 

4. The Committee received a presentation from the Chief of Staff on the 
case for change and voted upon the recommendations presented in 
the attached report. Eight members voted for the recommendations 
and two voted against. 
 

5. The Committee voted to not publicise the minutes of the Part Two 
discussion. 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. The recommendations from the attached tabled report be submitted to 
the Cabinet meeting on 25 March 2014 to be considered alongside the 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/19. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: None. 
 
Committee next steps: None. 
 

21/14 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 11] 
 
The Committee noted the next meeting of the Communities Select Committee 
would be on 19 May 2014. 

2

Page 48



Page 11 of 11 

 
Members were asked to note that they were invited to attend the Environment 
& Transport Select Committee meeting on 24 April 2014 to scrutinise an item 
on the County Council’s Flood Event Response. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 1.30 pm 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

2

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 50



T
h

e
 V

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
o
 C

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
e
le

c
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e

2
0
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

Minute Item 17/14

Page 13

2

Page 51



�
V
ir
tu
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 &
 I
T
 i
n
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

�
H

e
le

n
 L

e
e

c
h

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

�
T
h
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 e
v
e
n
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

�
J
a

n
e

t 
T

h
o

m
a

s

�
R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 &
 l
ib
ra
ry
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

�
R

o
s
e

 W
ils

o
n

�
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 (3

) 

�
A

rt
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d
’s

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 

�
W

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 t
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 f
o

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 b

e
 

�
W

h
a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 in
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 
o

f 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 

Page 14

2

Page 52



W
h

a
t 

a
re

 w
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 
IT

-w
is

e
?

H
e
le

n
 L

e
e
c
h

A
c
ti
n
g
 V

ir
tu

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

S
u
rr

e
y
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

@
h
e
le

n
le

e
c
h

Page 15

2

Page 53



V
ir

tu
a

l 
V

is
it

s

Page 16

2

Page 54



P
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 g

o
in

g
 m

o
b

il
e

�

�
“T
a
b
le
t 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 d
o
u
b
le
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,
 r
is
in
g
 f
ro
m
 1
1
%
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 2
4
%

.”

�
“O
v
e
r 
h
a
lf
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 (
5
1
%
) 
n
o
w
 o
w
n
 s
m
a
rt
p
h
o
n
e
s
, 
a
lm
o
s
t 

d
o
u
b
le
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 a
g
o
 (
2
7
%
).

”

Page 17

2

Page 55



P
il

o
ti

n
g

 t
a

b
le

ts
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff

�
4
0
 S
a
m
s
u
n
g
 G
a
la
x
y
 T
a
b
 2
s

�
O
n
e
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 A
 a
n
d
 B
 l
ib
ra
ry

�
P
re
lo
a
d
e
d
 w
it
h
 l
ib
ra
ry
-r
e
la
te
d
 a
p
p
s

Page 18

2

Page 56



A
p

p
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c

�
S
u
rr
e
y
 L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 (
c
a
ta
lo
g
u
e
)

�
O
v
e
rd
ri
v
e
 (
e
B
o
o
k
s
)

�
O
v
e
rd
ri
v
e
 (
e
B
o
o
k
s
)

�
O
n
e
C
lic
k
D
ig
it
a
l 
(e
A
u
d
io
b
o
o
k
s
)

�
Z
in
io
 (
m
a
g
a
z
in
e
s
)

�
N
a
x
o
s
 (
m
u
s
ic
)

w
w
w
.s
u
rr
e
y
c
c
.g
o
v
.u
k
/l
ib
ra
ry
a
p
p
s

Page 19

2

Page 57



E
b

o
o

k
s

�
T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
s
 o
w
n
in
g
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
o
n
e
 d
ig
it
a
l 

re
a
d
in
g
 d
e
v
ic
e
 j
u
m
p
e
d
 f
ro
m
 1
8
%
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 t
o
 

2
9
%
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
. 

2
9
%
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
. 

P
e
w

 R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 

�
O
n
e
 i
n
 f
iv
e
 U
K
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 (
2
2
%
) 
h
a
s
 a
n
 e
-r
e
a
d
e
r.

O
fc

o
m

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

Page 20

2

Page 58



W
h

a
t 

S
u

rr
e
y
’s

 d
o

in
g

 a
b

o
u

t 
e
b

o
o

k
s
:

�
S
u
rr
e
y
 i
s
 a
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
C
h
ie
f 

L
ib
ra
ri
a
n
s
 D
ig
it
a
l 
/ 
e
b
o
o
k
s
 g
ro
u
p

�
C
o
-c
h
a
ir
 o
f 
S
h
e
lf
 F
re
e

�
S
C
L
 /
 S
ie
g
h
a
rt
 p
ilo
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts

�
E
-b
o
o
k
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic

�
S
e
lf
-p
u
b
lis
h
in
g

Page 21

2

Page 59



S
m

a
ll

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
e
’r

e
 d

o
in

g

�
2
3
 T
h
in
g
s

�
M
in
e
c
ra
ft
 p
la
y
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s

�
G
e
o
c
a
c
h
e
s
 i
n
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s

�
S
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 –

n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

P
in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r.
li

�
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
fo
r 
M
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 E
x
tr
a
 a
n
d
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
rr
e
y
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y

Page 22

2

Page 60



Im
m

in
e

n
t 

IT
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

�
R
F
ID
 b
o
o
k
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
y
s
te
m
, 
a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

u
p
g
ra
d
e

�
E
m
a
il 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff

�
E
m
a
il 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff

�
E
v
e
n
t 
b
o
o
k
in
g
 s
o
ft
w
a
re

�
A
re
n
a
 –
n
e
w
 c
a
ta
lo
g
u
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic

�
P
ro
je
c
t 
U
n
ic
o
rn
: 
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 a
n
d
 S
u
rr
e
y
 

S
u
p
e
rf
a
s
t 
B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d

�
U
p
 s
k
ill
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs

Page 23

2

Page 61



C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

is
c

u
s

s
io

n
 1/

3

V
ir

tu
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 

T
h
e
 e
x
p
o
n
e
n
ti
a
l 
g
ro
w
th
 o
f 
v
ir
tu
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 v
o
lu
m
e
  

w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
to
 s
u
s
ta
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
le
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
A
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 

w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
to
 s
u
s
ta
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
le
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
A
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 

ti
m
e
 m
a
n
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
a
n
t 
u
s
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
. 
D
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
e
re
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 r
e
b
a
la
n
c
in
g
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
lib
ra
ry
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

v
ir
tu
a
l,
 a
n
d
 i
f 
s
o
, 
h
o
w
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 b
e
 r
e
w
o
rk
e
d
 t
o
 d
o
 t
h
is
?

T
h
e
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 n
o
 I
T
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
it
s
 o
w
n
. 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
IT
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 i
s
 h
e
ld
 

w
it
h
in
 I
M
T
. 
It
  
c
o
v
e
rs
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
ic
 b
o
o
k
 i
s
s
u
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
w
it
h
 n
o
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
IT
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 A
s
 I
T
 i
s
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 k
e
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

w
o
u
ld
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 o
r 
c
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
to
 

s
a
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
n
 I
T
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t?

Page 24

2

Page 62



T
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 e

v
e
n

ts
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

J
a
n
e
t 
T
h
o
m
a
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 S
u
rr
e
y
 L
ib
ra
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e

Page 25

2

Page 63



“R
e

a
d

in
g

 i
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

in
d

 w
h

a
t 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

o
d
y
” 

(R
ic
h
a
rd
 S
te
e
le
 –
e
s
s
a
y
is
t 
a
n
d
 d
ra
m
a
ti
s
t)

“.
.f

a
r 

fr
o

m
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

p
ti
v
e

, 
re

a
d

in
g

 i
s
 a

 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 i
ts

e
lf
 a

n
d

 i
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

rs
to

n
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
” 

(D
e
m
o
s
)

Page 26

2

Page 64



T
h

e
 b

a
s

e

�
P
e
b
b
le
 c
a
rd
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d

�
S
u
m
m
e
r 
R
e
a
d
in
g
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 2
0
1
3
 –
1
7
,0
0
0
+
 c
h
ild
re
n
 @
 

£
1
.5
0
 p
e
r 
c
h
ild

£
1
.5
0
 p
e
r 
c
h
ild

�
R
e
a
d
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 –
7
0
0
+
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
ty

�
7
6
0
 l
e
a
rn
e
rs
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 b
a
s
ic
 I
T
 s
k
ill
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 (
2
0
1
3
) 

�
L
ib
ra
ry
 D
ir
e
c
t 
–
s
e
rv
in
g
 1
7
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 +
 2
2
 h
o
m
e
s
 (
p
ilo
t)
 w
it
h
 

ro
o
m
 f
o
r 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

�
5
2
6
 c
h
ild
re
n
/f
a
m
ili
e
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 F
a
m
ily
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 W
e
e
k

Page 27

2

Page 65



E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti

v
e
 j

o
u

rn
e
y

�
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 j
o
u
rn
e
y

�
P
e
b
b
le
’s
 R
e
a
d
in
g
 A
d
v
e
n
tu
re

�
O
ff
 t
h
e
 P
a
g
e
 –
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 B
o
o
k
 A
w
a
rd
 a
n
d
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l

�
S
u
rr
e
y
 R
e
a
d
in
g
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e

�
C
re
a
ti
v
e
 d
is
p
la
y
s
 –
p
ri
z
e
 w
in
n
in
g
 t
it
le
s

�
L
iv
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 m
a
jo
r 
a
u
th
o
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 W
ri
te
rs
 B
o
o
k
e
d
 

(n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
w
a
rd
)

�
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
fe
s
ti
v
a
ls
 a
n
d
 m
a
jo
r 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
rs

Page 28

2

Page 66



S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

�
D
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
6
 o
f 
th
e
 9
 S
C
C
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

�
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 A
b
u
s
e
 (
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
w
a
rd
)

�
D
e
m
e
n
ti
a

�
D
e
m
e
n
ti
a

�
T
a
c
k
lin
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
lif
e
 –
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
re
a
d
in
g
 w
e
ll

�
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 (
e
.g
.L
e
tt
e
rb
o
x
 c
lu
b
)

�
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 J
o
b
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 (
W
e
lf
a
re
 t
o
 w
o
rk
)

�
C
o
u
n
ty
w
id
e
 w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 g
ro
u
p

�
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

�
S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
re
a
d
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s

•
V
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
4
0
0
 o
v
e
r 
3
 d
is
c
re
e
t 
a
re
a
s
)

Page 29

2

Page 67



E
v
e

n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
h
e
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 w
o
rk
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
s
 h
ig
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
(s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 l
if
e
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
) 
fo
r 
a
 

s
m
a
lle
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
G
e
n
e
ra
lly
 n
o
t 
c
o
s
tl
y
 i
n
 p
u
re
 o
u
tl
a
y
 (
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
e
tc
),
 i
t 
c
a
n
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

is
c

u
s

s
io

n
 2

/3

s
m
a
lle
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
G
e
n
e
ra
lly
 n
o
t 
c
o
s
tl
y
 i
n
 p
u
re
 o
u
tl
a
y
 (
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
e
tc
),
 i
t 
c
a
n
 

b
e
 c
o
s
tl
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 t
im
e
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 a
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 e
ff
o
rt
. 
W
it
h
 a
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
lim
a
te
 y
e
t 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
, 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w
h
a
t 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 w
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 k
in
d
s
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 

a
re
a
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
is
 f
ie
ld
 m
o
re
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
th
a
n
 o
th
e
rs
?

T
h
e
 l
ib
ra
ry
 b
u
ild
in
g
 a
s
 a
 f
o
c
a
l 
p
o
in
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t.
 O
u
r 

v
ir
tu
a
l 
p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 e
x
te
n
d
s
 o
u
r 
re
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 o
u
r 
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 d
ra
w
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
. 

S
h
o
u
ld
 w
e
 c
re
a
te
 m
o
re
 e
v
e
n
ts
 i
n
 n
o
n
-l
ib
ra
ry
 v
e
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 n
o
n
-u
s
e
rs
?

Page 30

2

Page 68



R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 &

 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

R
o
s
e
 W

ils
o
n

L
ib
ra
ry
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r

S
u
rr
e
y
 L
ib
ra
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e

Page 31

2

Page 69



L
ib

ra
ry

 r
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

&
 s

e
lf

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

�
5
3
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s

�
2
2
 s
ti
ll 
to
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h

�
8
 n
e
e
d
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e

�
£
4
.3
 m

ill
io
n
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te

�
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 o
b
s
o
le
te

Page 32

2

Page 70



D
e
s
ig

n
 &

 L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

�
E
v
o
lu
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
ib
ra
ry
 d
e
s
ig
n

�
W
i-
fi

�
F
le
x
ib
le
 s
p
a
c
e
s
-
m
o
v
e
a
b
le
 s
h
e
lv
in
g
, 
s
e
a
ti
n
g
, 
c
ro
w
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s

�
V
is
ib
ili
ty
, 
s
ig
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 b
ra
n
d
in
g

�
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
re
 m
o
re
 l
ik
e
 r
e
ta
il 
th
a
n
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
S
C
C
 s
e
rv
ic
e

�
S
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
lib
ra
ri
e
s

�
A
n
c
h
o
r 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

�
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
q
u
a
rt
e
rs
q
u
a
rt
e
rs

Page 33

2

Page 71



R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 &

 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

W
it
h

 d
e

c
lin

in
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 r

o
le

/r
o

le
s
 f

o
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

is
c

u
s

s
io

n
 3

/3

g
o

in
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
?

W
o

u
ld

 i
t 
b

e
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

m
a

lle
r,

 h
ig

h
e

r 
q

u
a

lit
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
r 

re
ta

in
 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

n
e

tw
o

rk
?

If
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 b
e

 o
n

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
h

o
u

rs
 

o
f 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

o
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

ro
le

s
 b

e
 

re
ta

in
e

d
?

Page 34

2

Page 72



A
d

u
lt

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

S
e
le
c
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

2
0
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4

Minute Item 18/14

Page 35

2

Page 73



O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 A

d
u

lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e

•
W

h
a

t 
w

e
 d

o

•
H

o
w

 a
re

 w
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

•
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n

•
N

u
m

b
e

rs
 e

n
ro

lle
d

•
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

Page 36

2

Page 74



T
h
e
 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
C
e
n
tr
e
s

Page 37

2

Page 75



A
 T
im
e
 o
f 
C
h
a
n
g
e

•
T
h
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 P
V
R

•
N
e
w
 S
k
ill
s
 s
e
ts
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 o
u
r 

N
e
w
 S
k
ill
s
 s
e
ts
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 o
u
r 

s
ta
ff

•
U
n
fi
n
is
h
e
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s

•
K
e
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

•
W
h
a
t 
is
 h
a
p
p
e
n
in
g
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y

Page 38

2

Page 76



C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 W
e
b
s
it
e
s

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w
w
w
.k
e
n
ta
d
u
lt
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.c
o
.u
k
/

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.a
s
p
ir
e
s
u
s
s
e
x
.o
rg
.u
k
/

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.s
u
rr
e
y
c
c
.g
o
v.
u
k
/l
e
a
rn
in
g
/a
d
u
lt
-

le
a
rn
in
g

Page 39

2

Page 77



A
 F

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 F

u
tu

re

•
W
h
e
re
 n
e
x
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e

–
m
o
re
 a
d
u
lt
 s
k
ill
s
?

•
W
h
a
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 u
s
 t
o
 b
e
s
t 
s
e
rv
e
 

•
W
h
a
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 u
s
 t
o
 b
e
s
t 
s
e
rv
e
 

o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
?

•
W
h
e
n
 O

fs
te
d
c
o
m
e
s
 c
a
lli
n
g

•
H
o
w
 t
o
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
it
s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
?

Page 40

2

Page 78



Im
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
a

c
c

re
d

it
e

d
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

E
n

g
li
s
h

 &
 M

a
th

s

•
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

th
e

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

 w
a

s
 o

v
e

r 

5
0

0
 

5
0

0
 

•
F
u
n
d
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
n
d
 M
a
th
s

n
e
e
d
s
 -
b
o
th
 G

C
S

E
q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  
a
n
d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 Y

o
u

r 
E

n
g

li
s
h

/M
a
th

s
c
o
u
rs
e
s
 (
1
0
 

w
e
e
k
s
) 
fo
r 
le
a
rn
e
rs
 n
o
t 
q
u
it
e
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
a

G
C
S
E
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

Page 41

2

Page 79



O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
u
te
r 
T
ra
in
in
g

•
O

u
tr

e
a
c
h
: 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 J
o
b
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
s
k
ill
s
, 
w
o
rk
 s
k
ill
s
, 
b
a
s
ic
 

c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 m
o
n
e
y
 s
k
ill
s
: 

•
A

c
c
re

d
it

e
d

 C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

Page 42

2

Page 80



S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 

F
a
m

il
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

•
S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
: 
W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

lif
e
 s
k
ill
s
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
F

a
m

il
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
: 
E
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 b
y
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

Page 43

2

Page 81



Page 44

2

Page 82



F
a
m
il
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

•
T

h
e
 C

h
il

d
, 

th
e
 ‘

H
o

o
k
’ 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 E

n
g

a
g

e

•
A

 L
e
a
fl

e
t 

in
 a

 B
o

o
k
 B

a
g

�
�

. 
W

o
rd

 o
f 

M
o

u
th

! 

•
T

a
il

o
re

d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 

Page 45

2

Page 83



F
a
m

il
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

g
e
n

d
a
s

A
d

u
lt

 
s
k
il

ls
 a

n
d

 
e
m

p
lo

y
a
b

i
li

ty

H
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 w

e
ll

 
b

e
in

g

T
h

e
 B

ig
 

S
o

c
ie

ty

T
h

e
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
F

a
m

il
y

C
h

il
d

 
p

o
v
e
rt

y
 

a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b

il
it

y R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 

re
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t
C

u
lt

u
re

 
a
n

d
 s

p
o

rt

T
ro

u
b

le
d

 
fa

m
il

ie
s

Page 46

2

Page 84



N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
w
a
rd
s
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

•
P

re
s
e
n

ti
n

g
 -

R
a
c
h

e
l 

&
 R

u
b

in
a
%

..
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 

fr
o

m
 N

e
w

 M
o

n
u

m
e
n

t 
F

a
m

il
y
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 G

ro
u

p
 

Page 47

2

Page 85



M
a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
1

•
In
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
e
 h
a
v
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
k
ill
s
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 r
ig
h
t?

Page 48

2

Page 86



M
a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
2
 

•
Is
 t
h
e
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
's
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

th
a
t 
 a
 s
ta
n
d
 a
lo
n
e
 w
e
b
 s
it
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 w
a
y
 

it
 c
a
n
 g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 i
t 
c
a
n
 g
e
t 
it
s
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 r
ig
h
t?
  

Page 49

2

Page 87



M
a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
3
 

•
H
o
w
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
q
u
ir
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 i
ts
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 w
o
rk
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 F
a
m
ily
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
?

Page 50

2

Page 88



M
a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
4
 

•
O
fs
te
d
a
re
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 t
o
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 L
A
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
's
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 -
is
 S
e
le
c
t 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
?

Page 51

2

Page 89



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 90



COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

Item under consideration: PROPOSED DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR THE 

SURREY FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE, IN LINE 

WITH THE PROPOSED MTFP 2014-19  
 

Date Considered: THURSDAY 20 MARCH 2014 
 

1 Further to discussions at a Communities Select Committee budget 
workshop on 20 February 2014 and a further Fire Service workshop on 
Monday 17 March 2014, the Communities Select Committee discussed the 
draft Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and direction of travel for the 
Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) at its meeting on Thursday 20 
March.   

 
2       During these discussions, SFRS have presented on the case for change 

within SFRS in the context of changes in demand and demographics, 
environmental changes, different ways of working and budget pressures. 
This is not an exclusive list.  

 
3 On the basis of these discussions, the Committee voted 8 to 2 in favour of 

the below recommendation, which the Committee asks the Cabinet to 
consider alongside the MTFP 2014-19 which is being presented to Cabinet 
for approval on Tuesday 25 March 2014.  

 
Recommendation: 

 
The Communities Select Committee recommends:   

 
a) That the proposed direction of travel for the Surrey Fire and Rescue 

Service, in line with the proposed MTFP 2014-19, be supported.  
 
The Member Reference Group being formed to act as a sounding board 
for the revision of the Surrey Fire and Rescue Services Public Safety Plan 
(which will detail the changes required for the service), will closely 
scrutinise the development of this plan and report back to the 
Communities Select Committee as required. 

 
b) That the Surrey Fire and Rescue Service, supported by its County Council 

colleagues, ensure that robust plans are in place for consultation with 
stakeholders and residents on the revision of the Public Safety Plan.  
 

 
DENISE SALIAGOPOULOS 

Chairman of the Communities Select Committee 

Minute Item 20/14

Page 53

2

Page 91



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 92



CABINET RESPONSE TO COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
PROPOSED DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR THE SURREY FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE, 
IN LINE WITH THE PROPOSED MTFP 2014-19 
 
The Communities Select Committee recommends: 
 

a. That the proposed direction of travel for the Surrey Fire and Rescue Service, in line 
with the proposed MTFP 2014-19, be supported. The Member Reference Group 
being formed to act as a sounding board for the revision of the Surrey Fire and 
Rescue Services Public Safety Plan (which will detail the changes required for the 
service), will closely scrutinise the development of this plan and report back to the 
Communities Select Committee as required. 
 

b. That the Surrey Fire and Rescue Service, supported by its County Council 
colleagues, ensure that robust plans are in place for consultation with stakeholders 
and residents on the revision of the Public Safety Plan. 
 

Response 
 
The Cabinet Member for Community Services thanked the Communities Select Committee 
for their support re. the direction of travel for Surrey Fire and Rescue and endorsed the 
formation of a Member Reference Group. She also confirmed that robust plans would be in 
place for consultation with stakeholders and residents on the revision of the Public Safety 
Plan. 
 
Mrs Helyn Clack 
Cabinet Member for Community Services 
25 March 2014 

5

Item 5

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE 2013-2014 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER – 19 May 2014  

 
The recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their 
recommendations or requests for further action. The tracker is updated following each Committee.  Once an action has been 
achieved and reported to the Committee, it will be removed from the tracker.  
 

Date of 
meeting  

Item Recommendations/Actions Achieved or still outstanding? Deadline Responsible 
 Cabinet 

Member/Member
/Officer 

15  
JANUARY 
2014 

GRANT 
CRITERIA AND 
FUNDING 
OPPORTUNITIES 
GUIDE 

That the Chairman speak to 
the service to decide how to 
relay the Committee’s 
concerns about the grant list to 
the service. 
 

ACHIEVED 
 
The Committee clarified at its 
meeting on 20 March 2014 that they 
felt that they did not have enough 
information to make specific 
comments on the grant list, but that 
they felt the small grants were not 
cost effective due to the 
administrative costs associated with 
processing them. This feedback was 
passed onto the Procurement and 
Commissioning team.  

May 2014 Laura Langstaff 
Rachel Crossley 
Susie Kemp 
Helyn Clack 
Denise Le Gal 

6

Item
 6

P
age 95



20 MARCH 
2014 

VISION FOR 
SURREY’S 
ADULT 
LEARNING 
SERVICE 

That the Chief Digital Officer 
work with the Adult Learning 
Service to develop a stand 
alone website to enable on-line 
booking for courses and 
effectively market the service. 
This is to maximise the 
potential of the service and 
ensure its sustainability. Report 
back to the Communities 
Select Committee on progress 
of this development in 3 
months time.  
 

ONGOING  
 
The Chairman has sent a letter to the 
Chief Digital Officer (copying in 
relevant officers and cabinet 
members) with this recommendation 
to take forward. It has become 
apparent that the Head of Information 
Technology and the Head of 
Customer Services together with 
Cultural Services, not the Chief 
Digital Officer, are responsible for 
taking this recommendation forward. 
The recommendation will be 
amended to reflect this.   Their 
response is as follows: 
• Adult Learning, IMT and 

Customer Services have been 
working on this.   

• The Adult Learning web pages 
are currently being redesigned 
and a new 'course finder' module 
is being developed.  The 'go-live' 
for these improvements is June 
14. 

• The new Adult Learning web 
pages will take advantage of the 
new website design.  The new 
approach allows individual 
Services much greater flexibility 
over the 'look and feel' whilst, still 
presenting a single, coherent 
overall SCC website for 
customers. 

July 2014 Mark Irons 
Paul Brocklehurst 
Peter Milton 
Paul Hoffman 
Susie Kemp 
 
Helyn Clack 
Denise Le Gal 
 

6

P
age 96



   An update report on progress of 
development of Adult Learning 
website and online enrolment has 
been added to the agenda for July 
2014. 
 

  

20 MARCH 
2014 

VISION FOR 
SURREY’S 
LIBRARY 
SERVICE 

The Library Service to work 
with the Head of Procurement 
and Commissioning to explore 
options for the Library Service 
to be formally commissioned 
by other County Council 
Services to deliver events and 
programmes on their behalf 
and to report back to the Select 
Committee.  
 

ONGOING 
 
The Chairman has sent a letter to the 
Head of Procurement and 
Commission and the Head of Cultural 
Service, (copying in relevant officers 
and cabinet members), with this 
recommendation to take forward. 
Response: 
• Libraries senior management 

team have been briefed.  
• Exploratory meeting with Laura 

Langstaff is being scheduled for 
end of May. 

• Information will be gathered from 
other library services who are 
carrying out paid commissioned 
work (end of June). 

• Work to develop model for Surrey 
libraries (end of July). 

• Market commissioning to suitable 
County Council internal 
customers (September). 

• Pilot project running in October. 

Further 
update for 
tracker in 
July  2014 

Laura Langstaff 
Peter Milton  
Rose Wilson 
Susie Kemp 
 
Helyn Clack 
Denise Le Gal 

6

P
age 97



20 MARCH 
2014 

VISION FOR 
SURREY’S 
LIBRARY 
SERVICE  

The Library Service to explore 
the funding opportunities from 
the education sector in respect 
of STEM subjects (science, 
technology, engineering and 
mathematics), to improve IT 
provision in Surrey libraries. 

ONGOING  
 
The Chairman has sent a letter to the 
Head of Cultural Services (copying in 
relevant officers and cabinet 
members) with this recommendation 
to take forward. 
 
Response: 
• Information will be gathered on 

Government and education 
approaches to encouraging study 
and delivery of STEM subjects 
(end of July) 

• Contact and explore funding with 
a range of potential partners (end 
of September) 

• Assess stem strategies as 
possible source of funding/IT 
initiatives and report to Select on 
viability. 

 

Update for 
tracker in 
September 
2014 

Peter Milton  
Rose Wilson 
Susie Kemp 
 
Helyn Clack 
 

6

P
age 98



20 MARCH 
2014 

VISION FOR 
SURREY’S 
LIBRARY 
SERVICE 

Surrey’s Library Service to talk 
to other libraries on a similar 
journey to create the library of 
the future, to share best 
practice and learning.  
 

ONGOING   
 
The Chairman has sent a letter to the 
Head of Cultural Services (copying in 
relevant officers and cabinet 
members) with this recommendation 
to take forward. 
 
Response: 
• Will Increase range of activities to 

collect user and non-user 
feedback and ideas to inform 
planning 

• Senior library staff to research 
and attend a range of policy 
briefings workshops and seminars 
looking at the future of libraries 
(ongoing) 

• Library staff to proactively exploit 
current contacts, professional 
groups and peers to look at best 
practice (ongoing) 

 

Update for 
tracker in 
September 
2014 

Peter Milton  
Rose Wilson 
Susie Kemp 
 
Helyn Clack 
 

6

P
age 99



20 MARCH 
2014 

VISION FOR 
SURREY’S 
LIBRARY 
SERVICE 

That the Chief Digital Officer 
work with the Library Service to 
develop their IT provision as 
part of the Council’s 
development of their Digital 
Strategy. 

ONGOING  
 
The Chairman has sent a letter to the 
Head of Cultural Services (copying in 
relevant officers and cabinet 
members) with this recommendation 
to take forward. It has become 
apparent that the Head of Information 
Technology, Head of Customer 
Services, Head of Procurement and 
Cultural Services, not the Chief 
Digital Officer is responsible for 
taking this recommendation forward. 
The recommendation will be 
amended to reflect this.    
 
Response: 
• Libraries to create discussion 

paper on library IT issues and 
future needs (end of July) 

• Libraries and Head of Cultural 
Services to meet with Head of 
Procurement and Head of IMT to 
agree options to be explored and 
develop action plan ( August) 

• Commence work on a range of 
options (September) 

 

Update for 
tracker in 
September 
2014 

Mark Irons 
Paul Brocklehurst 
Laura Langstaff 
Peter Milton 
Rose Wilson 
Susie Kemp 
 
Helyn Clack 
Denise Le Gal 
 

6

P
age 100



20 MARCH 
2014 

REPORT FROM 
THE CHAIRMAN 
(SFRS – MTFP 
2014-19 
SAVINGS) 

The recommendations from the 
tabled report be submitted to 
the Cabinet meeting on 25 
March 2014 to be considered 
alongside the Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2014/19. 

ACHIEVED  
 
The recommendations from the 
tabled report were submitted by the 
Chairman to the Cabinet meeting on 
25 March 2014. 
 
The response from the Cabinet is 
included in the papers for this 
meeting.  

May 2014 Chairman of 
Communities 
Select Committee 
 
Helyn Clack  

 

6

P
age 101



P
age 102

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 

COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE:  
DRAFT FORWARD WORK PLAN 2014 

 

Date  
 

Proposed Item Why is this item proposed?  Contact Officer / 
Member 

Proposed Method of 
Handling 

19 May 2014 – Ordinary meeting – County Hall 

19 May 2014  Magna Carta  Update on Magna Carta anniversary proposals Peter Milton  
Susie Kemp  
Helyn Clack  

Report to Committee 

19 May 2014 Community 
Safety  

Progress report on Community Safety Partnerships 
following annual scrutiny meeting on 31 October 2013 

Gordon Falconer 
Jane Last  
Yvonne Rees 
Helyn Clack  
Kay Hammond 

Report to Committee 

19 May 2014 
 

SFRS – 
Contingency 
Crewing and 
Specialist 
Rescue Contract 

Scrutiny of evaluation of pilot contingency crewing 
contract and proposals to tender for a new contract  
that covers specialist rescue and contingency crewing 
and further develops innovative partnerships and new 
improved ways of working. 

Russell Pearson 
Dave Sargeant 
Helyn Clack  
Kay Hammond 

Report to Committee 

23 July 2014 – Ordinary meeting – County Hall 

23 July 2014 Trading 
Standards - RIPA 

Scrutiny of annual report on Surrey Trading 
Standards use of the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 

Steve Ruddy  
Yvonne Rees  
Helyn Clack  

Report to Committee 

23 July 2014 VCFS 
infrastructure 
organisations 

Scrutiny of full year performance information, analysis 
and trends on delivery of outcomes of VCFS 
infrastructure 

Rachel Crossley 
Saba Hussain 
Susie Kemp 
Helyn Clack 

Presentation/Report to 
Committee [Invite new 
Chairman of Surrey 
Compact] 

23 July 2014  Adult Learning  Update on progress of development of Adult Learning 
website and online enrolment 

Paul Brocklehurst  
Mark Irons 
Paul Hoffman 
Peter Milton 
Susie Kemp  
Helyn Clack 
 

Report to Committee 

6

P
age 103



Page 2 of 3 

Date  
 

Proposed Item Why is this item proposed?  Contact Officer / 
Member 

Proposed Method of 
Handling 

23 July 2014 
 

Fire Service 
Public Safety 
Plan 

Scrutinty of progress against developing a draft 
refreshed Public Safety Plan 2025 

Russell Pearson 
Dave Sargeant 
Helyn Clack  
Kay Hammond 

Report to Committee 

25 September 2014 – Ordinary meeting – County Hall 

25 
September 
2014 

Fire Service 
Public Safety 
Plan 

Scrutiny of draft refreshed Public Safety Plan 2025 Russell Pearson 
Dave Sargeant 
Helyn Clack  
Kay Hammond 

Report to Committee 

25 
September 
2014 
 

Trading 
Standards – 
proposals for new 
service 

Scrutiny of business case for a new joint trading 
standards service with Buckinghamshire County 
Council from 2015 

Steve Ruddy  
Yvonne Rees  
Helyn Clack 

Report to Committee 

19 November 2014 – Ordinary meeting – East Surrey College  

19 
November  
2014 

Adult Learning  Scrutiny of adult learning provision in the east of the 
County  

Paul Hoffman 
Peter Milton  
Susie Kemp 
Helyn Clack 

Report to Committee 
Invite East Surrey 
College to host meeting  

 

To be scheduled for 2014/15 

TBC - 2014 Community Safety 
Partnership 

Annual Scrutiny of Surrey’s Community Safety 
Partnerships 

Gordon Falconer 
Jane Last  
Yvonne Rees 
Helyn Clack  
Kay Hammond 

Report to Committee 

TBC Governance of 
Cultural Services  

Scrutiny of options for governance of cultural 
services  

Peter Milton 
Susie Kemp 
Helyn Clack  

Report to Committee 

TBC  Draft Tourism 
Strategy  

Scrutiny of developed draft tourism strategy (before 
it is presented to Cabinet for approval) 

Barrie Highham 
Peter Milton  
Susie Kemp 
Helyn Clack  

Report to Committee 

6

P
age 104



Page 3 of 3 

TBC – 
Spring 2015 

Fire Service Public 
Safety Plan 

Scrutiny of the refreshed final Public Safety Plan Russell Pearson 
Dave Sargeant 
Helyn Clack  
Kay Hammond 

Report to Committee 

 

6

P
age 105



P
age 106

T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

1 
 

 

 
 
 

Communities Select Committee 
 

19 May 2014 
 

Magna Carta 2015  

 
 

 
Purpose of the report: to provide an update to the Communities Select Committee 

on recent and proposed developments of the Magna Carta 800th anniversary 

commemorations in Surrey. The Committee is asked for comment on the progress of 

the project.  

 

Relevance: the aim of these recommendations is to celebrate our heritage, raise the 

profile of the area, increase economic growth and enhance existing facilities to 

encourage healthier lifestyles.  

 

Background: the sealing of the Magna Carta in Runnymede is a major part of 

Surrey's heritage and cultural identity, and the 800th anniversary (15 June 2015) will 

be an occasion of national and international prominence and significance. The 

Runnymede Meadow site witnessed the sealing of the Magna Carta which 

established the Rule of Law and Human Rights and effectively challenged for the 

first time the divine right of Kings. The County Council is working with local, national 

and international partners to ensure that the 800th anniversary is celebrated and a 

lasting legacy is created by raising the profile of the area, attracting inward 

investment - for the benefit of residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8

Item 8

Page 107



  

2 
 

 INTRODUCTION: 

 
1 In December 2012, in response to the local bid for Heritage Lottery Fund 

(HLF) funding for a proposed visitor centre, SCC requested that officers 
develop a Masterplan for the site together with proposals for the Magna Carta 
800th anniversary celebrations. In July 2013, Surrey County Council’s Cabinet 
approved funding of £1 million towards a partnership project to celebrate the 
800th anniversary of the sealing of the Magna Carta in Runnymede and to 
bring a lasting legacy to the area.  

2 Surrey County Council has been working closely in a leadership role with key 
stakeholder organisations (Runnymede Borough Council, National Trust, 
Royal Holloway University of London (RHUL), Brunel University and the 
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead) to develop and implement these 
ambitious plans.  At a national level, all partners are represented on the 
Magna Carta 800th Committee. This ensures coordination with national plans 
for celebrating the 800th anniversary.  

3 Surrey County Council and the National Trust have jointly appointed a Project 
Manager, Geri Silverstone, whose principal role will be to oversee the 
delivery of the plans for 15 June 2015 and the anniversary weekend and be 
the key contact for all partners. Roles and responsibilities have been clearly 
defined, and the governance structure that involves the principal partners and 
stakeholders in the project has been set up.  

ANALYSIS: 

 
4 Surrey County Council is supporting this scheme because of the tremendous 

importance of Magna Carta in terms of heritage, education, economic 
development, tourism and civic pride in our county. Through the events in 
2015 and the legacy of an enhanced visitor offer, the profile of the area will 
be improved both nationally and internationally which will benefit the 
economy of the area. This report covers: 

5 The legacy – one of the key ambitions for the 2015 anniversary (at both local 
and national level) is to provide improved visitor facilities and interpretation 
arrangements at the historically important site in Runnymede with minimal 
impact on the natural environment.  

6 Celebration events – creating an event programme that will raise the profile 
of the area, bring the community together to participate in a variety of cultural, 
healthy and educational pursuits, and provide an international celebration 
worthy of the occasion.  

UPDATE ON THE PROPOSALS: 

 
The Legacy  
 

7 Runnymede and Ankerwycke offer sanctuary in an urbanised landscape, and 
it is this landscape which in many ways is the legacy of the Magna Carta.  
This project will better tell the stories of Runnymede and Magna Carta; 
improve the conservation of the historic landscape and the buildings within it; 
provide a more comprehensive and considered learning offer in conjunction 
with our partners; and encourage more people to come and spend time at 
this unique place. An option Masterplan was produced for the partnership in 

8

Page 108



  

3 
 

summer 2013 and many elements of the project are based on its 
recommendations. 
 

8 The vision for the legacy is based on a regional park concept to create a 
culturally branded destination and tourism identity for the Runnymede area - 
with the aim to increase economic benefit to the vicinity through increased 
visitor numbers and promote awareness of the national and international 
historic significance of the location – its heritage, countryside, wildlife, 
landscape conservation and bio-diversity of the area. This will be achieved by 
raising the profile of Runnymede and its environs.  Historic Egham will, 
overtime – and as the destination marketing brand develops - be promoted 
as the “gateway” to “Magna Carta Country” – thereby generating an 
economic dynamic to support the growth/regeneration of the rural area and 
associated towns.  

9 The area will embrace the site of the sealing of the Magna Carta, 
Runnymede Pleasure Ground (which has been agreed by the Pleasure 
Ground trustees’), the ancient historic Meadows/NT Runnymede estate, 
Wraysbury, Ankerwycke, the Magna Carta and Kennedy memorials – as well 
as including the Commonwealth Air Forces Memorial and its adjacent 
woodland setting. The diverse habitats at Runnymede are rich in flora and 
fauna and represent a distinctive landscape area to be promoted for 
conservation and access. The Langham Pond area of the National Trust 
estate is a designated Site of Special Scientific Interest and therefore 
protected under legislation. Key to the concept would be the promotion of 
access to the wider adjacent countryside and landscape for leisure and 
recreation purposes – land-based on the southern stretch and water- based 
activities on the northern section of the park.  

10 Additional funding for the project is being sought on behalf of the partnership 
through a Heritage Lottery Fund application. The bid will seek support for 
long term improvements to the Runnymede Meadow and Runnymede 
Pleasure Ground sites as well as creating a gateway to the area from the 
town of Egham. An initial application of £4,317,980 was submitted in April 
2014, and if successful, a full bid for a 5 year legacy project will be submitted 
in 2015.  

11 There will be increased visitor numbers, which will require greater safety for 
pedestrians crossing the A308 Windsor Road. There are plans for controlled 
pedestrian crossing points, traffic calming and speed reduction measures – 
these will be funded from the Highways departments existing budget and, 
along with road resurfacing – are due to be completed before June 2015. The 
Communities Select Committee will be kept fully informed of the traffic 
management recommendations, for which there will be a subsequent report. 

12 The plan to improve the visitor offer includes: 

a. Improving and enhancing visitor facilities by better utilising existing 
buildings such as toilets, cafes, and educational facilities. 

b. Safe pedestrian access across the A308 Windsor Road.  

c. Providing a lasting legacy of the sealing of the Magna Carta through 
an iconic commission in the landscape of a British memorial for 
Magna Carta. A number of possible locations have been identified in 

8

Page 109



  

4 
 

the Landscape Masterplan – two are in the Meadows flood plain and 
the brief requires that any structure / installation in this location must 
address flooding issues – the National Trust, as landowner, will work 
directly with artists regarding this matter. A selection of artists have 
been shortlisted and will be submitting proposals based on the brief – 
for selection.  

d. Improved interpretation through digital smartphone technology which 
is being designed by Royal Holloway University, and will be ready for 
testing by the end of 2014. 

e. Creating the economic dynamic to support the growth and 
regeneration of Egham and surrounding areas which will inform the 
Egham and Royal Holloway University of London (RHUL) 
Masterplans. These Masterplans are in development and will create 
an additional inward investment into the area and provide a significant 
revitalisation/improvement to the town centre and local economy.  

f. Promoting awareness and understanding of the national and 
international historic significance of Runnymede and the surrounding 
area.  

g. Improving access to, movement around and understanding of the 
areas heritage, countryside, wildlife and biodiversity. This will include 
improvements to the Thames Path, walking and cycling trails around 
the area, and improved opportunities for boat trips along the river. 

h. Creating a new range of volunteering opportunities in the following 
areas: walking guides, rangers, visitor welcome, research, 
administration, operational support (tea room, exhibition space, 
education resource coordinator).   

i. Work with partners, particularly RHUL and Brunel University, to 
deliver a resource which can be used to deliver significant education 
programmes to a wide range of stakeholders, including school age 
children (KS3, KS4, KS5), university students and staff 
(undergraduate, postgraduate and research), and the wider public 
through local youth groups and initiatives such as the University of the 
Third Age. 

Celebration Events 
 

13 Awareness raising events in 2014 and early 2015 will increase interest in 
preparation for the major celebratory events on the weekend of the 800th 
anniversary and subsequent activities on the site during the summer 
months/school holidays. The events will range from high profile events 
attracting international attention, to community events involving celebrations 
with local residents.  

14 The 15th June 2014 will be used as a ‘one year to go’ event, to take place on 
the Runnymede Meadows to raise awareness and increase the profile of the 
project.  

8

Page 110



  

5 
 

15 A Magna Carta themed event will be delivered by Surrey Arts at the Royal 
Albert Hall on 12th May 2015, providing an opportunity to showcase a range 
of high quality local music and drama at an iconic venue.  

16 The weekend of 13th and 14th June 2015 will be Eghams’s Magna Carta Day 
on Saturday, and an exciting new festival is being planned at the Royal 
Holloway University on Sunday, which it is hoped will become an annual 
occasion.  

17 The partnership is working with the Houses of Parliament to ensure 
Runnymede is fully involved with all of their initiatives and national 
celebrations, such as ‘Liber-teas’ that will be enjoyed during the weekend; 
and a number of arts projects that they are currently developing.  

18 Monday 15th June 2015, the 800th anniversary of the sealing of Magna Carta, 
it is anticipated that this occasion will be marked by the attendance of 
national and international dignitaries. 

19 During the summer of 2015, projects will take place in Egham, to ensure that 
visitors continue to spend time in the town and as a gateway to access the 
Runnymede Meadows and also on the National Trust Meadows.  

CONSULTATIONS: 

 
20 Regular consultation has taken place with key stakeholders - see Annex A. 

Previous meetings attended by the partnership are listed in Table 1, and the 
forward plan of stakeholder engagements are listed in Table 2. Consulted 
sources are listed in Annex B, and a summary of the 2013 consultation 
results displayed in Annex C.  

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
21 The views of the Communities Select Committee will be fully considered and 

inform the work of the Magna Carta Surrey Partnership.  

22 The Communities Select Committee will be kept informed on the 
developments   of the programme through periodic reports to the Committee, 
the Communities Select Committee Bulletin and the Magna Carta Surrey 
Partnership Newsletter (in conjunction with coordinated cross organisational 
communication).  

 
Contact Officer: 
 
Susie Kemp  Assistant Chief Executive Susie.Kemp@surreycc.gov.uk  
Peter Milton   Head of Cultural Services Peter.Milton@surreycc.gov.uk 

8

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 

CONSULTATION ACTIVTY LOG & FORWARD PLAN 
 

• In 2013, the Magna Carta Surrey Partnership collated a total of 430 (108 online and 
322 forms) completed from the public via a range of consultation techniques 
including; electronic survey link, hardcopy surveys and email inbox 
(magna.carta@surreycc.gov.uk). The summary of the collated results can be seen in 
Annex C.  
 

• Runnymede Borough Council conducted public consultation in 2012, to collate the 
public’s comment on how the 800th anniversary of the Magna Carta should be 
commemorated.  
 

• An activity log of various meetings and events attended by the partnership can be 
seen in Table 1. The consultation forward plan can be seen in Table 2.  
 

• NB: Please note that, pending the success of the HLF bid application, an audience 
development manager and educational coordinator will be employed to engage with 
communities and audiences.  

 

Table 1.  Activity Log - Previous Public Face to Face Events and Meetings 

Date 
 

Group Consulted 
 

Location 
 

4th March 2013 Stakeholders  
Egham 
 

27th May 2013 National Trust Visitors 
Runnymede Meadows  
 

29th May 2013 General Public 
Egham High Street 
 

11th June 2013 
Wraysbury Skiff and Punting 
Club Members 

Egham 

11th June 2013 Egham Residents Association 
Egham 
 

15th June 2013 General Public 
Magna Carta Day - 
Egham 

20th June 2013 Local Chamber of Commerce 
Egham 
 

22ndJune 2013 General Public 
Englefield Green - 
Village Fair 

24th June 2013 Local museums 
Runnymede 
 

29th June 2013  General Public 
Virginia Water  
Carnival  Capers 

19th Sept 2013 Charter Towns meeting 
LGA Smith Square 
 

17th October 2013 
Speakers’ Advisory 
Committee  

Westminster 

6th November 2013 Stakeholders / general public  
Egham  
 

9th December 2013 Member Briefing 
County Hall  
 

24th February 2014 Local Committee 
Runnymede 
 

15th April 2014 Cabinet briefing County Hall  

8

Page 113



Annex A 

 

29th April 2014 
Runnymede Association of 
the Arts  

Thorpe Village Hall 

 
 

Table 2. Forward Plan - Public Face to Face Events and Meetings 
 

Date 
 

Group to consult 
 

Location 
 

14th June 2014 General Public 
Stall - Magna Carta Day 
Egham 

15th June 2014 General Public 
Runnymede Meadows 
‘799 event’ 

17th June 2014 Stakeholders / general public 
Egham (RHUL) event and 
lecture 

19th June 2014 Stakeholders / general public 
Egham Strodes College 
 

21st June 2014 General Public 
Stall - Englefield Green 
Village Fair (Carnival 
Capers) 

28th June 2014 General Public 
Stall - Carnival Capers 
Virgina Water 

1st July 2014 Stakeholder 
Runnymede Business 
Forum  

11th Sept 2014 Stakeholders / general public 
Egham Strodes College 
 

15th January 2015 Stakeholders / general public 
Egham Strodes College 
 

14th May 2015 Stakeholders / general public 
Egham Strodes College 
 

 
 

8

Page 114



Annex B 

LIST OF CONSULTEES  
 
The Magna Carta Surrey Partnership have engaged with a range of stakeholder groups to 
date, covering a variety of Environmental, Community, Cultural, Business, Landowners, 
Education and Government agencies, including: 
 
Environmental: 
CPRE Runnymede 
National Trust  
Natural England 
Open Spaces Society 
 
Community: 
Egham Residents Association 
Englefield Green Residents Association 
The Runnymede Access Liaison Group 
 
Cultural: 
American Bar Association 
Cherstey Museum 
Chertsey Society 
Egham Museum 
Magna Carta 800th Committee 
Magna Carta Action Community Group 
Runnymede Arts 
 
Business 
Chelgate 
Egham Chamber of Commerce 
French Brothers 
Karnak Travel  
Runnymede Business Network 
Runnymede Hotel 
Runnymede Pleasure Ground Trust 
Thames Alive 
 
Land holders: 
American Bar Association (Magna Carta Memorial) 
Culture Department RBWM 
JFK Memorial 
RAF Memorial 
Visit Surrey 
Windsor and Maidenhead 
Wraysbury Skiff and Punting Club 
 
Government: 
All County Councillors for Runnymede 
Communities Select Committee 
Houses of Parliament 
Ministry of Justice 
RBC Councillors (Project Councillors and Ward) 
Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 
Runnymede Borough Council 
Runnymede Local Committee 
SCC Assistant Chief Executive 

8

Page 115



Annex B 

SCC Cabinet Member for Communities and Events 
SCC Chairman – Communities Select Committee 
SCC Chief Executive 
SCC Chief Finance Officer 
SCC Leader 
SCC Monitoring Officer 
Surrey County Councillors for Runnymede 
Wraysbury Parish Council 
 
Education: 
All County Councillors for Runnymede 
BBC 
Brunel University  
Communities Select Committee 
Magna Carta School – all local schools 
Royal Holloway University London 
Runnymede Local Committee 
Runnymede School Confederation 
Strodes College 
 

8

Page 116



Annex C 

SUMMARY OF MAGNA CARTA CONSULTATION  

 
 
1. Introduction: 
 

• The objective of this consultation exercise is to understand the wishes and 
aspirations of as many local people and visitors as possible. These views are being 
used to inform the plans for a Magna Carta celebration and tourism destination. 

 
Number of responses received: 430 (108 online and 322 forms completed) 
 
2. Key findings: 
 
Relevance 

• 96% of people agree that: Runnymede should be promoted as the location where the 
Magna Carta was sealed. 

 
Creating a legacy: 

• 83% of people agree that the area (Meadows, RPG and Ankerwyke) should be 
enhanced. 

• 84% of people agree that memorials should be refurbished as necessary. 

• 98% of people feel information should be provided, and the most popular 
suggestions were digital (website and smartphone apps). 

 
Respondents felt that: 

• The existing facilities most in need of improvement are the toilets, car park and 
catering. 

• New facilities that could be considered include family activities, gift shop and cafe. 

• Boating, walking and cycling are popular activities that could be improved. 
 
Events: 

• There are a broad range of suggestions, those that feature the strongest being 
historical re-enactments, medieval fairs, concerts and family fun days. 

 
3. Other Issues: 

• A308 traffic and speed 

• Improve transport links to the area 
 

8

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

 
 
 

Communities Select Committee 
19 May 2014 

Progress Report 
Community Safety Partnerships 

 
 

Purpose of the report:  This paper sets out progress made by the County 
Community Safety Board and District & Borough Community Safety 
Partnerships on recommendations made following the Scrutiny of Community 
Safety Partnerships held on 31 October 2013. 

 

Introduction: 

 
1. Following the Police and Justice Act 2006, Local Authorities are required 

to undertake annual scrutiny of Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs).  
Surrey County Council’s Communities Select Committee can meet the 
requirements of the Act as it has legal power to scrutinise and make 
reports or recommendations regarding the functioning of the responsible 
authorities that comprise a Community Safety Partnership. 

 
2. The last scrutiny of Community Safety Partnerships took place on the 31 

October 2013 and the following updates are provided in response to 
recommendations made at that meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Police and Fire Service safety campaigns be 
supported and driven through the Community Safety Board (CSB) 

 
3. Both the Police and Fire Service are represented on the CSB and are 

encouraged to submit agenda items that require support, including any 
up and coming Safety Campaigns. 

 
4. The Domestic Abuse agenda is already well supported by a multi agency 

DA Communications Group, a sub group of the DA Development Group, 
which co-ordinates high profile countywide campaigns and the annual 
Domestic Abuse Awareness week.  A key achievement of this group was 
the launch of the countywide Surrey Against DA website:  
http://www.surreyagainstda.info/ .  The intention is to replicate this joint 
communications model for issues relating to Anti Social Behaviour. 

 
5. Membership of the DA Communications Group is as follows: 

o Surrey County Council, Community Safety 

9

Item 9

Page 119



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

o Surrey Police, Communications 
o Surrey County Council, Communications 
o Surrey County Council, CSF Communications 
o Surrey County Council, Libraries 
o Woking Borough Council, Community Safety 

 
6. Future plans include the development of a central Community Safety 

website, managed and maintained by the Surrey Community Safety 
Team, through which messages and information on a wide range of 
crime and anti social behaviour issues can be coordinated. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: District, borough and county organisations are 
encouraged to explore closer collaborative working among Community 
Safety Partnerships in the County. 

 
District and Borough Community Safety Partnerships 
 
7. Local CSPs were asked to provide evidence of closer collaboration for 

the purpose of this report.  Individual responses are provided in Annex 
1. 

 
East Surrey Community Safety Partnership 
 
8. The community safety landscape has changed radically over the last two 

years; the arrival of the PCC, direct Home Office funding ceasing, huge 
pressure on all partners budgets, and the creation of new health 
structures.  

 
9. Currently each district and borough authority in East Surrey has its own 

Community Safety Partnership (CSP) involving district and county 
members and officers, Police, Fire & Rescue, Clinical Commissioning 
Groups and a range of other partners. 

 
10. Discussions amongst the responsible authorities across Mole Valley, 

Reigate & Banstead and Tandridge CSPs have identified a desire to 
form a single East Surrey Community Safety Partnership. This builds 
upon co-ordinated delivery and single representation across these CSPs 
that has already been established over a number of years. 

 
11. It was felt that the time was right to consider whether the benefits of 

three CSPs outweigh the overheads. A look at community safety 
strategies would suggest that the issues facing the boroughs are broadly 
similar with the addition of some uniquely rural crimes in some 
authorities. Clearly volumes and blend of crimes will differ driven by 
population numbers, demographics and geography, but this is an issue 
for the Police to address in deploying their resources and not an 
argument for individual CSPs. Given the pressures set out above it was 
felt there was logic in moving towards “a cluster CSP”. 

 
12. Benefits / added value: 

• A merged East Surrey CSP would provide enhanced strategic 
leadership to reduce crime & disorder,  

9

Page 120



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

• A merged CSP would also increase efficiencies through a 
reduction in meetings for County-wide partners, a reduction in 
administration requirements across the three CSPs and reduced 
bureaucracy through a single Community Safety Plan which 
would enhance streamlined delivery on shared issues. 

• Locality-specific issues would continue to be addressed through 
the borough and district based Community Incident Action 
Groups and Joint Action Groups. 

 
13. The Home Office is supportive of CSPs merging where this is felt to 

improve local delivery and the reduction of anti social behaviour and 
crime. The Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner, Kevin Hurley, has 
also stated his support for this approach within Surrey. 

 
14. Currently a formal proposal to create an East Surrey CSP is being 

considered by the responsible authorities and the district and boroughs 
concerned.  Approval has been given at all Committees where presented 
so far.  The proposal will go to Local Committees for information in June 
and it is expected that the first meeting of the Joint East Surrey CSP will 
take place mid-July 2014. 

 
Surrey Domestic Abuse Strategy 
 
15. This has now been published.  A detailed annual action plan was 

discussed at the DA Development Group meeting in December with work 
stream leads being agreed. The action plan is now being populated by 
the leads with the group monitoring its delivery and in turn reporting to 
the Community Safety Board on progress and raising with them any 
issues or blockages to delivery. 

 
16. Membership of the DA Development Group is as follows: 

o Surrey County Council: 
� Community Safety 
� Children, Schools and Families 
� Adult Social Care 
� Surrey Safeguarding Children Board 
� Surrey Safeguarding Adults Board 
� Public Health 

o Surrey Police 
o East Surrey Domestic Abuse Outreach Service (Lead Provider) 
o Surrey and Sussex Probation Trust 
o Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
o Crown Prosecution Service 
o Surrey and Borders Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
o Woking Borough Council 
o Tandridge District Council 

 
Multi Agency Anti Social Behaviour Strategy 
 
17. Since the scrutiny meeting on 31 October 2013 the County Community 

Safety Team has led on the development of a multi agency Anti Social 
Behaviour Strategy for the County. The strategy and delivery plan is 
provided in Annex 2. 

9

Page 121



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

 
18. This strategy has been developed by a multi agency ASB steering group 

in response to the ASB Crime and Policing Act 2014, which received 
royal assent in March this year. 

 
19. The key focus of the strategy is how, in partnership, we can provide 

effective support to victims of anti social behaviour, ensuring that 
together we understand better the impact ASB can have on their lives 
and ensure processes are in place to protect them from further harm. 

 
20. The strategy also focuses on preparation for the new tools and powers 

introduced by the Act to tackle ASB.  The Community Safety Team are 
working closely with partners to develop a range of briefings and training 
to assist CSPs in the transition from the old powers to new ones. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: District, Borough and partner organisations be 
encouraged to establish a set list of substitutes for CSP meetings to 
allow for consistent attendance at these meetings. 

 
21. Progress against this recommendation is provided in Annex 3. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: The Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner write 
to the Home Secretary regarding the issues raised by the Committee in 
relation to Domestic Homicide Reviews. 

 
22. Jeff Harris, the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner, wrote to the 

Home Secretary outlining concerns about the costs and timescales 
involved in conducting Domestic Homicide Reviews, against a back drop 
of significant reductions in both financial and human resources available 
to Community Safety Partnerships.  The response received from Norman 
Baker MP, Minister for Crime Prevention, is provided in Annex 4. 

 
23. The Community Safety Board has since adopted this issue as a priority 

and it was agreed that a pool of trained staff should be created who 
could sit on, and most importantly, Chair future DHRs.  The aim being to 
achieve a reciprocal arrangement where CSPs provide support to each 
other and avoid the considerable expense of buying in outside 
consultants. 

 
24. To this end the Surrey Community Safety Team organised and funded a 

one day training session delivered by a leading expert in the field of 
Domestic Homicides, which took place on 24 January 14.  The day was 
well attended by representatives from 10 out of the 11 CSPs in Surrey. 

 
25. A letter is due to be sent from the Chair of the Community Safety Board 

to Chairs of CSPs, strongly urging them to identify who would be best 
placed to Chair a DHR and nominate them to join the central pool of 
experts able to respond to future DHRs as they occur.  If it is required, 
further training can be provided, in the form of a two day intensive DHR 
Chair’s training course, to further enhance the knowledge and skills of 
this pool. 

 

9

Page 122



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

26. The above training was originally provided by the Home Office, although 
they have no plans to repeat it.  However, SCC’s Community Safety 
Team is in contact with the professionals that designed and delivered 
this training, so it could be commissioned specifically for Surrey 
colleagues. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That Surrey County Council is encouraged to use 
its representation in schools to educate and raise awareness of 
domestic abuse at all levels, including primary and secondary schools. 

 
The following response was received from Linda Kemeny, Cabinet Member 
for Schools and Learning, in relation to this recommendation.  
 
27. “In this connection, I am pleased to advise that awareness of domestic 

abuse issues is delivered through the Child Protection Liaison Officer 
network, the training for which takes place on a termly basis in each of 
Surrey's four education quadrant areas.  This involves all of Surrey's 
Primary and Secondary schools.  In addition, there is an Education 
Toolkit available to schools to support their work in this area. 

 
28. Information about the Surrey Against Domestic Abuse campaign, which 

runs from 27th January until 16th February 2014, was included in the 
Assistant Director of Schools' Bulletin which is sent to all Head teachers 
and Chairs of Governors of Surrey's maintained schools.” 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That County communication and education 
programmes on domestic abuse be offered to both independent and 
state schools. 

 
The following response was received from Linda Kemeny, Cabinet Member 
for Schools and Learning, in relation to this recommendation.  
 
29. “Further work to create closer links with independent schools is being 

planned by the Education Safeguarding Group, and I would be pleased 
to write to you again in, say, six months time to appraise the Committee 
of the Group's progress.” 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
encourage the National Association of Police and Crime Commissioners 
to raise the issue of domestic abuse and support a national campaign to 
raise awareness. 

 
30. This issue has now been superseded by the Home Secretary’s 

announcement to set up a national group to oversee improvements in 
the police response to domestic abuse following the publication of the 
HMIC report, Everyone’s business: Improving the police response to 
domestic abuse, published in March 2014.  Surrey’s PCC, Kevin Hurley, 
has written to the Home Secretary asking to be part of that group. 

 
31. Each force area has been provided with their own summary report.  

Surrey’s report is provided in Annex 5. 
 

9

Page 123



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

32. Going forward, all Police and Crime Commissioners will be expected to 
work closely with Chief Constables to draw up force action plans to 
improve police performance in tackling domestic abuse.   

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contacts:  
 

• Gordon Falconer, Community Safety Senior Manager 

• Louise Gibbins, Community Safety Officer 
 
Contact details: 
 
gordon.falconer@surreycc.gov.uk  Tel: 0208 541 7296 
louise.gibbins@surreycc.gov.uk    Tel: 0208 541 7359 9

Page 124



Annex 1 
Communities Select Committee 

19 May 2014 
Progress Report - Community Safety Partnerships 

 
RECOMMENDATION: District, borough and county organisations are encouraged to 

explore closer collaborative working among Community Safety Partnerships in the County. 
 

Elmbridge  There are no current collaborative projects with Spelthorne & Runnymede 
although they are in communication and look for possibilities in sharing or 
working together as opportunities arise. 

Epsom & Ewell Epsom & Ewell CSP were involved initially in the discussions to establish an 
East Surrey CSP and decided that they would not join at the present time.  
The Family Support Programme in Epsom & Ewell is delivered in 
collaboration with Elmbridge and Spelthorne Boroughs and the domestic 
abuse outreach provider also works across these areas so Epsom & Ewell 
may have more in common with these areas currently although joining the 
East area in the future hasn't been ruled out. 

Guildford Guildford CSP works collaboratively with the other CSPs in the West 
Division. The Community Safety Officers meet regularly to update each other 
on their actions and initiatives and to explore opportunities for working 
together. 

Mole Valley Mole Valley CSPs are part of the collaboration working towards creating an 
East Surrey Community Safety Partnership. The aim is to enhance 
community safety and local delivery by collaborating more and sharing 
resources. There are many benefits of this and together they hope to 
increase their chances of joint funding bids and cut down on meeting 
duplication. 

Reigate & 
Banstead 

Tandridge CSP are part of the collaboration working towards a merged East 
Surrey CSP (Mole Valley,Reigate & Banstead & Tandridge), currently the 
proposal report is going through individual organisations for consultation and 
approval.  It is intended that the individual local committees will also receive 
the report at their next scheduled meetings. 

Runnymede There are no current collaborative projects with Spelthorne & Elmbridge 
although Runnymede is currently without a dedicated Community Safety 
Officer.   A new appointment is due to take up the position in June 2014. 

Spelthorne Spelthorne have collaborated with Runnymede and Elmbridge on past 
projects such as radio broadcasts over Christmas regarding drink driving and 
displays on the rolling television screen at Ashford St Peters hospital 
regarding support services available via CSP Partners.  However as there is 
no longer any government funding directly available to CSPs, money for 
projects has become very tight.  Discussions have been had with Elmbridge 
regarding possible future joint projects with funding accessed via the Police 
and Crime Commissioner’s Office, and they will be discussed with the new 
Runnymede Community Safety Officer once they are in post. 

Surrey Heath Surrey Heath Community Safety Partnership are part of the Western Cluster 
and their Community Safety Board representative is the Surrey Heath Chief 
Executive who represents the cluster of Guildford, Woking and Waverley. 
The west cluster work collaboratively to maximise their output, this can be 
demonstrated by joint working relating to community safety campaigns 
hosted by Eagle Radio, recent examples of this include: in-considerate 
parking and fires. 

Tandridge Tandridge CSP are part of the collaboration working towards a merged East 
Surrey CSP (Mole Valley,Reigate & Banstead & Tandridge), currently the 
proposal report is going through individual organisations for consultation and 
approval.  It is intended that the individual local committees will also receive 
the report at their next scheduled meetings. 

9

Page 125



Waverley Waverley CSP undertakes collaborative working with the other CSPs in the 
West Division. The Community Safety Officers meet regularly to update each 
other on their actions and initiatives and to explore opportunities for working 
together. Eagle Radio campaigns, Domestic Abuse services and campaigns 
and feedback from various meetings, training, summits are some of the 
current areas. 

Woking Woking CSP currently do joint work on Eagle Radio campaigns with Surrey 
Heath, Guildford and Waverley CSPs and there is the county wide Domestic 
Abuse work that they all support.  Woking CSP will continue to explore 
opportunities to work together collaboratively where appropriate. 

 

9

Page 126



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Surrey Multi-Agency Anti Social Behaviour Strategy 

 

 

 

 
2014-2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CSB 

Community Safety Board  
 

 

9

Page 127



2 

 

1. Introduction 
 

The phrase Anti Social Behaviour takes in a range of nuisances, disorder and crimes which 

affects people’s lives on a daily basis.  It looks different and feels different in every area 

and to every victim.  What is considered anti social by one person can be acceptable to 

another.  The Home Office describes Anti Social Behaviour as, ‘any aggressive, intimidating 

or destructive activity that damages or destroys another person’s quality of life’. 

 

Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) covers a wide range of incidents and is dealt with by a number 

of different agencies.  If ASB is not dealt with appropriately and in a timely manner it can 

have a devastating impact on the lives of individuals, families and communities.  It is widely 

recognised that single agencies cannot tackle ASB alone and must work in partnership to 

address the issues. 

 

Issues that can be considered as ASB include: 

· Rowdy, noisy behaviour in otherwise quiet neighbourhoods 

· Night time noise from houses or gardens, especially between 11.00pm and 7.00am 

· Threatening, drunken or intimidating behaviour 

· Vandalism, graffiti and fly-posting 

· Litter and fly-tipping rubbish 

· Aggressive begging 

· Drinking in the street 

· Setting off fireworks late at night 

· Abandoning cars 

 

Some ASB such as threats, damage to property and dealing or buying drugs, are clearly 

criminal acts and should always be reported directly to the police. 

 

What is not Anti Social Behaviour? 

 

ASB can be difficult to define, and although annoying, there are some types of behaviour 

that are not classed as anti social: 

· Children playing in the street or communal areas - unless they are causing damage to 

property 

· Young people gathering socially - unless they are rowdy, inconsiderate and being 

intimidating to individuals 

· Being unable to park outside your own home  

· DIY and off road car repairs- unless these are taking place late at night or early in the 

morning  

 

2. Purpose of this Strategy 
 

This strategy sets how Surrey’s Community Safety Partnerships, at both county and 

district/borough level, will work together to reduce the harmful effects of ASB over the 

next three years, building upon the excellent partnership work already operating and 

ensuring that together we continue to drive down incidents of ASB and sustain residents’ 

high levels of public confidence and satisfaction. 

 

 

9

Page 128



3 

 

Putting Victims First 

 

A key focus of this strategy will be how we can provide effective support to victims of anti 

social behaviour, ensuring that together we understand better the impact ASB can have 

on their lives and ensure processes are in place to protect them from further harm. 

 

Our priority will be the identification and protection of high risk or vulnerable victims of 

ASB.  A vulnerable person is one whose experience of ASB, and resulting harm, is likely to 

be more significant because of their individual personal circumstances. 

 

3. Scope of the Strategy 
 

This strategy covers those ASB reduction activities that require a partnership approach and 

are common across the county of Surrey.  The strategy does not include those individual, 

bespoke, ASB interventions and solutions that are developed and delivered at the local 

district and borough Community Safety Partnership level.  These local activities are 

outlined in each of the 11 CSP Partnership Plans. 

 

4. The National Context 
 

This strategy has been developed in response to the ASB Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 

The Act contains a variety of measures to protect the public, including from anti-social 

behaviour, dangerous dogs, forced marriage, sexual harm and illegal firearms used by 

gangs and in organised crime.  It also includes changes to improve the provision of services 

to victims and witnesses. 

 

The Act includes the following key provisions to tackle ASB: 

· Simpler, more effective powers for tackling ASB, which provide better protection for 

victims and communities, act as a real deterrent to perpetrators and give victims a say in 

the way their complaints are dealt with. 

· Replacement of the existing 19 powers to deal with ASB with six faster, more effective 

ones. 

· Landlords given powers to deal swiftly with the most serious ASB committed by their 

tenants. 

· Victims given the power to ensure that action is taken to deal with persistent ASB through 

the new community trigger, and a greater say in what form of sanction an offender 

receives out of court through the new community remedy. 

 

In addition to the above, this strategy also takes into account the findings of Her Majesty’s 

Inspector of Constabulary (HMIC) report, ‘A Step in the Right Direction’, published in June 

2012, following the latest HMIC inspection.  This report found that: 

· Performance when dealing with ASB has improved in every Police Force 

· Further information is needed as victim satisfaction varies across England and Wales 

· More needs to be done to identify and respond to those victims most at risk of harm 

 

 

 

 

9

Page 129



4 

 

New Powers 

 

Under the Act, 19 existing tools/powers to deal with ASB will be reduced to six.  Anti Social 

Behaviour Orders (ASBOs) and some other court orders would be abolished and replaced 

by two new tools: 

 

· The Criminal Behaviour Order (CBO) issued by any criminal court against a person who has 

been convicted of an offence to tackle the most persistently anti social individuals who are 

also engaged in criminal activity, and 

· The Injunction to Prevent Nuisance and Annoyance (IPNA) to stop or prevent individuals 

engaging in ASB quickly, before problems escalate. 

 

Unlike ASBOs, both these orders could have positive requirements as well as prohibitions 

attached to them.  As is the case with ASBOs, breach of a CBO would be a criminal offence 

with a maximum prison sentence of five years.  Breach of a IPNA would be punished as 

contempt of court with unlimited fine or up to two years in prison. 

 

New community protection orders would replace a range of other orders and powers to 

deal with environmental ASB, ASB in specific public places and various premises closure 

powers. 

 

The introduction of these new tools and powers will lead to a significant training need, for 

both police staff and their community safety partners. 

 

Community Trigger and Community Remedy 

 

The ASB Crime and Policing Act includes two new measures which are designed to give 

victims and communities a say in the way ASB is dealt with: 

 

· The Community Trigger, which gives victims the ability to demand action, starting with a 

review of their case, where the locally defined threshold is met. 

· The Community Remedy, which gives victims a say in the out-of-court punishment of 

offenders for low-level crime and ASB. 

 

Delivery of this strategy should ensure that Surrey’s communities are satisfied with the 

response they receive to a reported ASB issue.  However, if a community trigger does occur 

we need to ensure valuable lessons are learnt and acted upon to prevent further triggers. 

 

5. The Local Context 
 

Overall satisfaction with Surrey as a place to live remains very high, and residents’ 

confidence and satisfaction in the police and local authorities in dealing with crime and anti 

social behaviour has improved in the past three years.   However, sustaining a reduction in 

these key areas during a time of economic hardship and shrinking public sector funding will 

be challenging. 

 

While the latest results from the Residents’ Survey suggest improving perceptions in 

Surrey, reductions in funding will put pressure on local authority provision of relevant 

services, such as those for young people or environmental health, and carry a risk of 

9

Page 130



5 

 

reversing this trend.  As such, partnership working needs to continue to prioritise anti 

social behaviour in two ways, first through a commitment to addressing public concerns 

through visible joint agency working and secondly, through better integrated services 

focused on the most vulnerable victims and intensive service users. 

 

Further information about ASB and other crime and disorder priorities for Surrey are 

contained in the Surrey Single Strategic Assessment. 

 

Links with other relevant Surrey strategies and initiatives 

 

This strategy links with a number of existing county-wide strategies and initiatives that 

already contribute to the reduction of ASB.  These include: 

 

Police and Crime Plan 

for Surrey 

In particular the Police & Crime Commissioner for Surrey intends to: 

· Monitor how Surrey Police and Criminal Justice partners improve 

their support for victims of crime and ASB 

· Review the community safety funding and grants they give to 

partners who support victims to ensure value for money is achieved  

· Ensure that they look after those people most vulnerable in our 

society 

Community Safety 

Partnership Plans 

Crime and anti social behaviour is tackled in every local district and 

borough area by multi-agency Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs).  

Each CSP is required to set clear and robust priorities for their area and 

develop activities driven by reliable evidence that meet the needs of 

local communities.  These activities are outlined in each CSP’s 

partnership plan. 

Youth Justice 

Strategic Plan 

2013-16 

 

Uses restorative approaches to prevent offending, address offending 

effectively, improve victim satisfaction, raise public confidence and 

where appropriate to divert young people from the criminal justice 

system (including young people who are looked after). 

Surrey Family 

Support Programme 

The intention of the programme is to target those families who have, 

and cause, the most problems in their local communities. It plans to 

turn around the lives of families stuck in a cycle of unemployment, 

alcohol abuse, anti-social behaviour and truancy. 

Surrey Fire & Rescue 

Service Prevention 

Strategy 2011-15 

Includes a well developed set of intervention initiatives to address fire 

setting and reduce road casualties amongst young people including Fire 

Wise, the Youth Engagement Scheme (YES) and Safe Drive Stay Alive. 

Drive Smart Road 

Safety & Anti-Social 

Driving Strategy 

· Reduce and prevent death and injury on Surrey’s roads 

· Reduce and prevent anti-social driving on Surrey’s roads 

· Increase public confidence that Surrey County Council and Surrey 

Police will work together to tackle anti social driving 

· Increase customer satisfaction after complaining about anti-social 

driving to the police. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

Page 131



6 

 

6. Vision 
 

We aim to improve understanding of, and our response to, incidents of anti social 

behaviour in all our communities. We intend to reduce instances of anti social behaviour 

and the numbers of people who are involved in anti social behaviour as victims and 

offenders. Where anti social behaviour does occur, we are committed to putting the victim 

first, particularly if they are vulnerable or a repeat victim. 

 

7. Aims and objectives 
 

Aim One: Improved, victim focused, response to ASB across Surrey 

 

Objective: 

· Facilitate a co-ordinated response across Surrey to legislative changes and the introduction of 

new ASB tools and powers under the ASB Crime and Policing Act 

· Implement a risk assessment process that identifies high risk cases particularly where the 

victim is vulnerable, or a repeat victim 

· Facilitate effective information sharing including shared IT that allows a more joined up 

approach to victims at risk and case management of perpetrators 

· Improve support for victims of ASB through district and borough based Community Safety 

Partnerships 

 

Aim Two: Improved understanding of Anti Social Behaviour in local communities 

 

Objectives: 

· Deliver effective communication at both local and county level to ensure that professionals and 

communities alike have a better understanding of ASB and are aware of the action that can be, 

or has been, taken to address it 

· Undertake community engagement that identifies community concern, priorities and harm at a 

neighbourhood level and involves communities in resolutions where appropriate 

 

Aim Three: Reduce the damaging effects of ASB through long term problem solving 

 

Objectives: 

· Use problem solving approaches to deal with issues that are affecting a community or section 

of the community 

· Deliver effective education and engagement activities to reduce ASB and victimisation in the 

long term 

 

8. Implementation and monitoring 
 

This strategy sets out a programme of partnership activity over the next three years.  The 

delivery plan will be updated regularly in order that progress can be monitored by Surrey’s 

multi agency Community Safety Board. 

 

  
 

Contact for further information: Louise Gibbins, Community Safety Officer, Surrey County Council 
 

Email: louise.gibbins@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

9

Page 132



7
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 O

N
E

 

 

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

LA
N

 

 A
im

 O
n

e
: 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
, 

vi
ct

im
 f

o
cu

se
d

, 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 A
n

ti
 S

o
ci

a
l 

B
e

h
a

vi
o

u
r 

a
cr

o
ss

 S
u

rr
e

y
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

s:
 

K
e

y
 A

ct
io

n
s 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
S

ta
tu

s 
K

e
y

 C
o

n
ta

ct
/L

e
a

d
 A

g
e

n
cy

 

 
 

 

F
a

ci
li

ta
te

 a
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 

a
cr

o
ss

 S
u

rr
e

y
 t

o
 l

e
g

is
la

ti
v

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 A
S

B
 

to
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
o

w
e

rs
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
S

B
 

C
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 P

o
li

ci
n

g
 A

ct
 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 

co
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

re
sp

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

T
ri

g
g

e
rs

 i
n

 S
u

rr
e

y
 

 
 

D
e

b
b

ie
 S

ti
tt

 

R
e

ig
a

te
 &

 B
a

n
st

e
a

d
 B

C
 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

 

o
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

S
a

fe
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
in

 

p
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 A
S

B
 

to
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
o

w
e

rs
 

 
 

Lo
u

is
e

 G
ib

b
in

s 

S
u

rr
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l  

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 

co
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 A

S
B

 

p
o

w
e

rs
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

A
S

B
 C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 P
o

li
ci

n
g

 A
ct

 

 
 

Jo
 G

ri
m

sh
a

w
 

S
u

rr
e

y
 P

o
li

ce
 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 

co
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 R
e

m
e

d
y

 w
h

ic
h

 g
iv

e
s 

vi
ct

im
s 

a
 s

a
y

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

co
u

rt
 

p
u

n
is

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 f
o

r 
lo

w
 

le
v

e
l 

cr
im

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B
 

 
 

A
m

y
 M

cL
e

o
d

 

O
ff

ic
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
C

C
 &

 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 

B
lo

w
e

r 

S
C

C
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
fo

r 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 r
is

k
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 t
h

a
t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 c

a
se

s 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 v

ic
ti

m
 i

s 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
o

r 
a

 r
e

p
e

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 c
a

ll
 

h
a

n
d

li
n

g
 s

y
st

e
m

 f
o

r 
in

ci
d

e
n

ts
 o

f 

A
S

B
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
a

n
d

 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s 
a

re
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

a
t 

fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
 

 
 

S
u

p
e

ri
n

te
n

d
e

n
t 

C
h

ri
s 

M
o

o
n

 

S
u

rr
e

y
 P

o
li

ce
 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

F
a

ci
li

ta
te

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

sh
a

ri
n

g
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 s
h

a
re

d
 I

T
 t

h
a

t 

a
ll

o
w

s 
a

 m
o

re
 j

o
in

e
d

 u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 

vi
ct

im
s 

a
t 

ri
sk

 a
n

d
 c

a
se

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

 

o
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 w

e
b

-b
a

se
d

 

sy
st

e
m

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 r

e
a

l-
ti

m
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
s 

to
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 v

ic
ti

m
s 

a
n

d
 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

 o
f 

A
S

B
 c

a
se

s.
  

 
 

S
u

p
e

ri
n

te
n

d
e

n
t 

M
a

tt
 G

o
o

d
ri

d
g

e
 

S
u

rr
e

y
 P

o
li

ce
 

S
a

fe
ty

N
e

t 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 

9

Page 133



8
  

o
 

R
e

vi
e

w
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
 t

h
e

 S
u

rr
e

y
 

C
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 D

is
o

rd
e

r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 P
ro

to
co

l 
to

 e
n

su
re

 

co
n

fi
d

e
n

t,
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

e
xc

h
a

n
g

e
 a

m
o

n
g

st
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

S
a

fe
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 

 
 

Lo
u

is
e

 G
ib

b
in

s 

S
u

rr
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

 

Im
p

ro
ve

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
vi

ct
im

s 
o

f 
A

S
B

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 b

a
se

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 

o
 

C
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
e

m
e

 

‘p
u

tt
in

g
 v

ic
ti

m
s 

fi
rs

t’
 

 
 

Lo
u

is
e

 G
ib

b
in

s 

S
u

rr
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

h
e

re
 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s 
in

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k

 

ca
se

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 m

u
lt

i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 C

IA
G

s 
fo

r 
ca

se
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 
 

Lo
u

is
e

 G
ib

b
in

s 

S
u

rr
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

                    

9

Page 134



9
  

A
im

 T
w

o
: 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
A

n
ti

 S
o

ci
a

l 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
 l

o
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

s:
 

K
e

y
 A

ct
io

n
s 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
S

ta
tu

s 
Le

a
d

 A
g

e
n

cy
 a

n
d

 K
e

y
 C

o
n

ta
ct

 

 
 

 

D
e

li
ve

r 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 

a
t 

b
o

th
 l

o
ca

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

ty
 l

e
ve

l 
to

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
ls

 a
n

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
li

k
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

A
S

B
 a

n
d

 a
re

 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 a
ct

io
n

 t
h

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

, 

o
r 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
, 

ta
k

e
n

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 i

t 

o
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
k

e
e

p
in

g
 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 a

t 
a

 l
o

ca
l 

le
ve

l 

 
 

Le
a

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

o
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 A

S
B

 w
e

b
si

te
 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
o

th
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
ls

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li

c 
o

n
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s,

 t
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 p

o
w

e
rs

 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
a

ck
le

 A
S

B
 

 
 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 C

a
rp

e
n

te
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l  

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

o
 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

 j
o

in
t 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s 

st
ra

te
g

y
 t

o
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
h

o
w

 S
u

rr
e

y
’s

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
w

il
l 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 A
S

B
 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s 
ca

m
p

a
ig

n
s 

to
 t

h
e

 

S
u

rr
e

y
 p

u
b

li
c.

 

 
 

Le
a

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
s 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
n

ce
rn

, 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
rm

 a
t 

a
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 

le
v

e
l 

a
n

d
 i

n
vo

lv
e

s 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

in
 r

e
so

lu
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

o
 

In
cr

e
a

se
d

 u
se

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
s 

w
it

h
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
fo

cu
s 

o
n

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 t

h
e

 ‘
cu

lt
u

ra
l 

g
a

p
’ 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 o
ld

e
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 r
e

su
lt

in
g

 i
n

 o
ve

r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

in
ci

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

vo
lv

in
g

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

 
 

Le
a

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 

S
u

rr
e

y
 Y

o
u

th
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

A
S

B
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

          

9

Page 135



1
0

 

 

A
im

 T
h

re
e

: 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 d

a
m

a
g

in
g

 e
ff

e
ct

s 
o

f 
A

S
B

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
b

le
m

 s
o

lv
in

g
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

s:
 

K
e

y
 A

ct
io

n
s 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
S

ta
tu

s 
Le

a
d

 A
g

e
n

cy
 a

n
d

 K
e

y
 C

o
n

ta
ct

 

 
 

 

U
se

 p
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g

 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

e
s 

to
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 A
S

B
 

is
su

e
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 a

ff
e

ct
in

g
 a

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 o

r 
se

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

o
 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 t

o
o

lk
it

s 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
se

a
rc

h
 

a
n

d
 b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
in

 t
a

ck
li

n
g

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 A
S

B
 i

ss
u

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

. 

 
 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 C

a
rp

e
n

te
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 T
e

a
m

 

S
u

rr
e

y
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

o
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 w

e
b

-b
a

se
d

 s
y

st
e

m
 t

o
 

fa
ci

li
ta

te
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 c

a
se

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 A

S
B

 i
ss

u
e

s.
 

 
 

S
u

p
e

ri
n

te
n

d
e

n
t 

M
a

tt
 G

o
o

d
ri

d
g

e
 

S
u

rr
e

y
 P

o
li

ce
 

S
a

fe
ty

N
e

t 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
to

 

re
d

u
ce

 A
S

B
  

a
n

d
 v

ic
ti

m
is

a
ti

o
n

 

in
 t

h
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

o
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
si

x 
Y

o
u

th
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

ch
e

m
e

 (
Y

E
S

) 

co
u

rs
e

s 
e

a
ch

 y
e

a
r,

 e
a

ch
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 u

p
 t

o
 

1
4

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
s 

b
e

in
g

 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 i
n

, 
o

r 
a

t 
ri

sk
 o

f,
 a

n
ti

-s
o

ci
a

l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

 

 
 

M
a

rk
 T

a
y

lo
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
 F

ir
e

 &
 R

e
sc

u
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
S

a
fe

 D
ri

v
e

, 
S

ta
y

 A
li

ve
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
s 

to
 u

p
 t

o
 1

4
,0

0
0

 1
6

 -
 1

9
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s 

e
a

ch
 y

e
a

r,
 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 p
o

si
ti

ve
ly

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
 t

h
e

ir
 a

tt
it

u
d

e
 

to
 d

ri
vi

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ro

a
d

 

tr
a

ff
ic

 c
o

ll
is

io
n

s,
 i

n
ju

ri
e

s 
a

n
d

 d
e

a
th

s 

in
vo

lv
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

 
 

M
a

rk
 T

a
y

lo
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
 F

ir
e

 &
 R

e
sc

u
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
a

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
fi

re
 s

a
fe

ty
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 u

p
 t

o
 3

0
 0

0
0

 t
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
s 

o
f 

a
n

ti
 s

o
ci

a
l 

a
n

d
 u

n
sa

fe
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

su
ch

 a
s 

h
o

a
x 

ca
ll

s 
a

n
d

 

d
e

li
b

e
ra

te
 f

ir
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
. 

 
 

M
a

rk
 T

a
y

lo
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
 F

ir
e

 &
 R

e
sc

u
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 a
n

d
 t

im
e

ly
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 t
o

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 

S
F

R
S

, 
a

s 
d

e
li

b
e

ra
te

 f
ir

e
 s

e
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 

th
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
e

n
 p

la
ci

n
g

 t
h

e
m

se
lv

e
s,

 t
h

o
se

 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
t 

ri
sk

. 

 
 

M
a

rk
 T

a
y

lo
r 

S
u

rr
e

y
 F

ir
e

 &
 R

e
sc

u
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 

9

Page 136



Annex 3 
Communities Select Committee 

19 May 2014 
Progress Report - Community Safety Partnerships 

 
RECOMMENDATION: District, Borough and partner organisations be encouraged to 

establish a set list of substitutes for CSP meetings to allow for consistent attendance at 
these meetings. 

 
Elmbridge  The statutory Partners on the Elmbridge Community Safety Partnership are 

encouraged to have both an executive Board member and an operational 
officer member to provide continuity at meetings and to assist in taking 
forward the operational work of the CSP. 

Epsom & Ewell Epsom & Ewell CSP doesn't currently have named substitutes.  However as 
a result of the Chairman stepping down and the retirement of the Head of 
Policy & Partnerships, the Community Safety Officer has been consulting 
members on a revised structure and membership of the CSP.  Proposals will 
be discussed at the next meeting and named substitutes may be something 
to consider. 

Guildford Guildford CSP are due to discuss this issue at their next meeting. 

Mole Valley Mole Valley CSP is involved in the collaboration to create an East Surrey 
CSP with Reigate & Banstead and Tandridge.  Named attendees and 
substitutes are being decided as part of the new Terms of Reference for this 
group. 

Reigate & 
Banstead 

Reigate & Banstead CSP is involved in the collaboration to create an East 
Surrey CSP with Mole Valley and Tandridge.  Named attendees and 
substitutes are being decided as part of the new Terms of Reference for this 
group. 

Runnymede All CSP partner organisations have been asked to provide both primary and 
substitute names for the CSP.  Responses have been mixed and this was 
discussed again at the last Runnymede CSP meeting on 13 March 2014.  
Some partners such as the Clinical Commissioning Group have failed to 
engage at all since becoming a statutory partner last year and the Probation 
service is rarely able to attend.  The CSP are still trying to address this, but 
attendance at CSP meetings seems to remain a low priority for some. 

Spelthorne Spelthorne CSP already has a list of substitutes for members of their CSP. 
 

Surrey Heath The Community Safety Partnership meetings are generally well supported by 
partner organisations, with substitutes already encouraged to attend. 

Tandridge Tandridge CSP is involved in the collaboration to create an East Surrey CSP 
with Mole Valley and Reigate and Banstead.  Named attendees and 
substitutes are being decided as part of the new Terms of Reference for this 
group. 

Waverley Waverley Community Safety Partnership do not have a set list of substitutes 
but some partners (Police and Waverley Borough Council) do send 
alternatives if the regular member cannot attend the meeting. The CSP do 
however have Deputy Chairs identified for The Strategy Group, the various 
delivery groups such as the Coordinating Group, CIAG and JAG. 

Woking It has been agreed that Woking will form a Joint Committee in place of the 
current local committee.  The CSP will become a community safety sub-
committee which will report directly to the Joint Committee.  It is proposed 
that there are two members appointed from either authority, and under 
responsibility of attendees, they are required to provide a consistent 
representative from each organisation. 

 
 
 

9

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



9

Page 139



9

Page 140



9

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Surrey Police’s approach to 

tackling domestic abuse

© HMIC 2014

ISBN: 978-1-78246-371-9

www.hmic.gov.uk

9

Page 143



2

Introduction

The extent and nature of domestic abuse remains shocking. A core part of the 

policing mission is to prevent crime and disorder. Domestic abuse causes both 

serious harm and constitutes a considerable proportion of overall crime. It costs 

society an estimated £15.7 billion a year.1 77 women were killed by their 

partners or ex-partners in 2012/13.2 In the UK, one in four young people aged 

10 to 24 reported that they experienced domestic violence and abuse during 

their childhood.3 Forces told us that crime relating to domestic abuse constitutes 

some 8 percent of all recorded crime in their area, and one third of their 

recorded assaults with injury. On average the police receive an emergency call 

relating to domestic abuse every 30 seconds.

People may experience domestic abuse regardless of their gender, ethnicity, 

religion, sexuality, class, age or disability. Domestic abuse may also occur in a 

range of different relationships including heterosexual, gay, lesbian, bi-sexual 

and transgender, as well as within families. 

While both men and women can be victims of domestic abuse, women are 

much more likely to be victims than men. 

The cross-government definition of domestic violence and abuse is:

“any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening 

behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over who are, or have 

been, intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or sexuality. 

The abuse can encompass, but is not limited to:4

! psychological

! physical

! sexual

! financial 

! emotional”.

1
Walby, S. (2009). The cost of domestic violence. Retrieved from: 

www.lancaster.ac.uk/fass/doc.../Cost_of_domestic_violence_update.doc

2
Office for National Statistics (2013). Focus on violent crime and sexual offences 2012/13 –

Chapter 4: Intimate Personal Violence and Partner Abuse. Retrieved from: 
http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171776_352362.pdf

3
Radford L, Corral S, Bradley C et al (2011) Child abuse and neglect in the UK today. London: 

NSPCC.

4
All definitions are taken from www.gov.uk/domestic-violence-and-abuse

9

Page 144



3

Controlling behaviour is defined as a range of acts designed to make a person 

subordinate and/or dependent by isolating them from sources of support, 

exploiting their resources and capacities for personal gain, depriving them of the 

means needed for independence, resistance and escape and regulating their 

everyday behaviour.

Coercive behaviour is defined as: an act or a pattern of acts of assault, threats, 

humiliation and intimidation or other abuse that is used to harm, punish, or 

frighten their victim. This definition includes so-called honour-based violence, 

female genital mutilation and forced marriage.

Tackling domestic abuse and keeping its victims safe is both vitally important, 

and incredibly complicated. The police service needs to have the right tools, 

resources, training and partnerships in place to help it identify victims and keep 

them safe. It also needs to investigate and bring to justice offenders, when no 

two domestic abuse environments are the same, and some victims have 

suffered in silence for years or even decades.

In September 2013, the Home Secretary commissioned HMIC to conduct an 

inspection.5 We were asked to consider:

! the effectiveness of the police approach to domestic violence and abuse, 

focusing on the outcomes for victims;

! whether risks to victims of domestic violence and abuse are adequately 

managed;

! identifying lessons learnt from how the police approach domestic 

violence and abuse; and

! making any necessary recommendations in relation to these findings 

when considered alongside current practice.

To answer these questions, HMIC collected data and reviewed files from the 43 

Home Office funded forces. We spoke to 70 victims of domestic abuse in focus 

groups throughout England and Wales and surveyed over 100 victims online. 

We also surveyed 200 professionals working with victims of domestic abuse.

We inspected all police forces in England and Wales, interviewing senior and 

operational leads in forces, holding focus groups with frontline staff and 

partners, and carrying out visits to police stations (which were unannounced) to 

test the reality of each force’s approach with frontline officers. Our inspection 

teams were supplemented by expert peers, which included public protection 

5
www.gov.uk/government/news/major-review-of-police-response-to-domestic-violence

9

Page 145



4

experts from over 15 forces and those working with victims of domestic abuse in

voluntary and community sector organisations.

This report details what HMIC found in Surrey Police and at the end of the 

report we set out some recommendations. These recommendations should be 

considered in conjunction with the recommendations for all forces made in the 

national report.6 A glossary of frequently used terms also appears at the end of 

the report.

6
There is a requirement under section 55(5) and section 55(6) of the Police Act 1996 for the 

police and crime commissioner to publish a copy of their comments on this report, and the 
recommendations for all forces in the national report, and forward these to the Home Secretary. 

9

Page 146



5

Domestic abuse in Surrey
7

Calls for assistance

In Surrey, domestic abuse accounts for 2% 

of calls to the police for assistance. The 

force was unable to provide the number of 

these calls that were from repeat victims.

Crime

9% Domestic abuse accounts for 9% of all 

recorded crime.

Assault with intent

16%
Surrey recorded 82 assaults with intent to 

cause serious harm, of these 13 were 

domestic abuse related. This is 16% of all 

assaults with intent to cause serious harm 

recorded for the 12 months to end of 

August 2013.

Assault with injury

36%
The force also recorded 2,969 assaults with 

injury, of these 1,071 were domestic abuse 

related. This is 36% of all assaults with 

injury recorded for the 12 months to end of 

August 2013.

7
Data in this section is based upon forces' own definition of calls for assistance and domestic 

abuse, and forces’ use of domestic abuse markers on IT systems. 

Source: HMIC data collection. Crime figures are taken from police-recorded crime submitted to 
the Home Office.

9

Page 147



6

Harassment

51%
The force recorded 1,013 harassment 

offences, of these 520 were domestic 

abuse related. This is 51% of all 

harassment offences recorded for the 12 

months to end of August 2013.

Sexual offences

10%
The force also recorded 590 sexual 

offences, of these 61 were domestic abuse 

related. This is 10% of all sexual offences 

recorded for the 12 months to end of 

August 2013.

Risk levels

On 31 August 2013 Surrey had 71 active 

domestic abuse cases; 8% were high risk, 

28% were medium risk, and 63% were 

standard risk.

Arrests

For every 100 domestic abuse crimes 

recorded, there were 45 arrests in Surrey. 

For most forces the number is between 45 

and 90.

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

high risk 

medium 

risk 

standard 

risk 

9

Page 148



7

Outcomes

Surrey recorded 4,339 domestic abuse 

related crimes for the 12 months to the end 

of August 2013. Of these crimes, 17% 

resulted in a charge, 6% resulted in a 

caution and, 28% had an out of court 

disposal, for example, a fixed penalty notice 

for disorderly conduct.

9

Page 149



8

Executive summary 

There are a number of areas that require further development by Surrey Police 

in order to tackle domestic abuse and make victims safer.

Tackling domestic abuse is a priority for the police and crime commissioner and 

the chief constable. However, the force recognises that more must be done to 

improve its response. The chief constable has taken personal responsibility for 

ensuring that improvements are delivered.

There is a fragmented approach and gaps in service to some victims, 

particularly those who are assessed as having a standard risk of serious harm.

There is a lack of clarity about who is responsible for safeguarding these victims 

through the criminal justice process and updating victims when a perpetrator is 

released from prison. This is a concern.

There is sound partnership working and the multi-agency risk assessment 

conferences (MARACs) are regarded as working well, with information being 

shared promptly.

There is no structured process in place to ensure that learning from domestic 

homicide reviews is embedded and reflected in the way the force will deal with 

domestic abuse in the future.

This report outlines a number of areas where the force could further strengthen 

its response.

Identifying victims

Victims of domestic abuse are identified by the force through calls to the contact 

centre through their attendance at police stations and referrals from other 

agencies, such as the health service or social care or through the MARAC.

Where incidents require deployment, they are flagged to the force control room 

(FCR) which then manages the deployment process.

Within the contact centre staff are trained to question callers to establish the 

nature of the call, the risk level to the victim and other people involved in the 

incident. Officers should be sent to all incidents that are identified as domestic 

abuse. Contact centre staff research police databases to gather available 

information about a caller, the victim, alleged perpetrator and family or address. 

This information is passed via the FCR to attending officers to help build a 

picture of the threat of harm and risk to the victim and other people involved, for 

example a child. This part of the process works well.

9

Page 150



9

Keeping victims safe

Domestic abuse is regarded as important by the force. Officers and staff have 

had relatively little training in respect of domestic abuse. However, they are 

encouraged to use their own discretion to think beyond using the domestic

abuse, stalking and harassment (DASH) risk assessment as a ‘box-ticking’

exercise. This helps them make a rounded assessment of the level of risk that a 

victim of domestic abuse faces, which is vital if appropriate measures are to be 

put in place to keep the victim and children safe. 

All victims who are assessed as high or medium risk are referred to and 

supported by, the public protection investigation unit’s (PPIU) officers and staff. 

Force policy is that standard-risk domestic abuse is dealt with by the prisoner 

investigation unit (PIU). However, there is some evidence of confusion over who 

deals with those victims who have been assessed as being at a standard risk. 

Ownership of cases moves through the organisation, with different officers, staff 

and departments being responsible for the case and victim safety at different 

stages. This can mean that victims receive a disjointed response, particularly in 

respect of contact about their case. They may not be contacted at all, as officers 

or staff think it is someone else’s responsibility, or they may be contacted by a 

number of different people, which can be equally concerning (as victims may 

lose confidence in the police response if they are repeatedly asked similar 

questions by different staff).

Management of risk

Officers and their supervisors review the completed DASH risk assessment 

form to make sure the assessment made is accurate, based on the information 

available. All cases of domestic abuse are referred to the PPIU. Those cases 

that are assessed as standard risk are dealt with by the force’s PIU. This team 

deals with domestic abuse in the same way as any other crime and does not 

have staff with specialist skills. 

The force has recently introduced a multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH) and 

its MARACs are regarded as working well. There are good relationships with 

partners which means that information is exchanged promptly, and victim safety 

plans are put in place to reduce risk. 

However, there is a lack of knowledge among frontline officers about what the 

specialist team does. Despite force policy, there is also a lack of clarity about 

who is responsible for victim safety throughout the investigation and criminal 

justice process, particularly for standard-risk cases.

9

Page 151



10

Organisational effectiveness for keeping people safe

The PCC and force are keen to improve services for domestic abuse victims 

and they are working with partners to do this. 

Domestic abuse performance, strategy and delivery of services are discussed 

at a number of police and multi-agency meetings. The force has a number of 

plans, either directly focused on domestic abuse or with a domestic abuse 

element within them. However, at present, the force needs to apply more rigour 

and improve the implementation process in order to achieve success.

It is not always clear who is responsible for updating victims and re-assessing 

their risk when perpetrators are released from custody. This could result in a 

victim being contacted by a number of people or not contacted at all, and the 

force and partner agencies might not be aware of the victim’s increased risk. 

The force does not have a clear process to make sure any learning from 

domestic abuse incidents is understood and that action is taken to improve.

9

Page 152



11

Findings

How does the force identify victims of domestic abuse, 

and in particular repeat and vulnerable victims?

Victims of domestic abuse are identified by the force through calls to the contact 

centre through their attendance at police stations and referrals from other 

agencies, such as the health service or social care or through the MARAC. 

Where incidents require deployment, they are flagged to the force control room 

(FCR) which then manages the deployment process.

Within the contact centre staff are trained to question callers to establish the 

nature of the call, the risk level to the victim and other people involved in the 

incident. Officers should be sent to all incidents that are identified as domestic 

abuse. Contact centre staff research police databases to gather available 

information about a caller, the victim, alleged perpetrator and family or address. 

This information is passed via the FCR to attending officers to help build a 

picture of the threat of harm and risk to the victim and other people involved, for 

example a child. This part of the process works well.

Contact centre staff must complete certain actions when dealing with callers 

reporting a domestic abuse incident. These actions ensure that they obtain 

enough detail to accurately assess risk, such as whether there are children 

at the address. There is a set of questions that call handlers follow to 

determine if the incident being reported is domestic abuse. The call handler 

will try to keep the conversation free flowing to try and draw as much 

nformation from the caller as possible and therefore better understand the risk 

presented. Staff within the contact centre and FCR receive regular training on 

domestic abuse and those spoken to by HMIC had a good understanding of 

their responsibilities.

HMIC listened to a small sample of calls and found in the majority of the cases 

(90 percent) the call handlers asked questions which established whether the 

caller or any other person, for example a child, was at immediate risk of harm. 

This risk assessment was recorded in the incident log. 

When a call is received by the control centre, the system does not automatically 

identify whether there has been a previous call from that person. However, call 

handlers are required to ask the caller whether they have previously suffered a 

domestic abuse incident. Having a record of the history is important for the call 

handler as it means they are in possession of information that may help to 

inform them of what initial actions need to be taken to keep a victim safe. This 

information can also be passed to attending officers. Staff within the contact 

9

Page 153



12

centre were confident and empathetic when dealing with callers who were 

experiencing domestic abuse.

Other police systems should also be checked to establish whether there is any 

information available which will help the contact centre staff (and officers who

attend the incident) establish the level of risk the caller faces. The systems hold 

information such as previous calls to the address; information about the caller 

and alleged perpetrator; information relating to children in the house, who may 

also be at risk; and other actions that may have been taken in the past, for 

example court proceedings or the involvement of other agencies. There are 

intelligence officers within the FCR to do these checks. This information is 

passed to the call handler, and is then given to the attending officers. In the 

majority of the incident logs (90 percent) reviewed by HMIC there was a record 

of these checks having been done. However, frontline staff stated that the 

information they receive from the FCR is often about officer and staff safety, 

rather than the victim, perpetrator and incident. While this is important, it is 

essential that officers attending a domestic abuse incident are given as much 

information as possible, to help them understand the risk faced by a victim and 

their family.

The force has a policy to attend all reported incidents of domestic abuse. The 

decision on how quickly resources have to attend is based on the contact 

centre’s assessment of threat, harm and risk faced by the victim. The FCR call 

handler then locates and dispatches the nearest available officer, usually a 

response officer (called the targeted patrol team), to the incident. Unless there 

is a risk to an officer’s safety the FCR do not usually deploy more than one 

officer to incidents of domestic abuse. This means that the officer is unable to 

easily separate the parties involved in the incident, and hear each account for 

what has happened in isolation. 

Contact centre staff receive inputs on domestic abuse at their regular training 

days. These inputs include learning from incidents. A wide spectrum of what 

domestic abuse is, including coercive control is recognised and understood by 

officers and staff. 

A repeat victim is defined by the force as someone who has experienced more 

than one incident in the previous 12 months. Staff demonstrate a good 

understanding that any case where a victim has reported domestic abuse to the 

police or another agency or where a victim states they have been subjected to 

abuse in the past is a ‘repeat case’. This will influence any risk assessment that 

is made. 

All domestic abuse incidents are reviewed by a local policing supervisor to 

make sure that relevant evidence has been captured at the scene of an 

9

Page 154



13

incident. They also review the DASH risk assessment form to make sure it is 

completed correctly, and the assessment, based on the information available, is 

accurate. They will provide support and advice to those officers attending 

incidents. Supervisors have not been given any specific training to oversee 

domestic abuse incidents.

How does the force respond to victims of domestic 

abuse? This includes initial action, including risk 

assessment

Domestic abuse is regarded as important by the force. Officers and staff have 

had relatively little training in respect of domestic abuse. However, they are 

encouraged to use their own discretion to think beyond using the domestic 

abuse, stalking and harassment (DASH) risk assessment as a ‘box-ticking’ 

exercise. This helps them make a rounded assessment of the level of risk that a 

victim of domestic abuse faces, which is vital if appropriate measures are to be 

put in place to keep the victim and children safe. 

All victims who are assessed as high or medium risk are referred to and 

supported by, the public protection investigation unit’s (PPIU) officers and staff. 

Force policy is that standard-risk domestic abuse is dealt with by the prisoner 

investigation unit (PIU). However, there is some evidence of confusion over who 

deals with those victims who have been assessed as being at a standard risk. 

Ownership of cases moves through the organisation, with different officers, staff 

and departments being responsible for the case and victim safety at different 

stages. This can mean that victims receive a disjointed response, particularly in 

respect of contact about their case. They may not be contacted at all, as officers 

or staff think it is someone else’s responsibility, or they may be contacted by a 

number of different people, which can be equally concerning (as victims may 

lose confidence in the police response if they are repeatedly asked similar 

questions by different staff).

For every 100 domestic abuse crimes recorded there were 45 arrests in 

Surrey. For most forces the number is between 45 and 90.8 The low arrest 

rate compared to other forces indicates that this is an issue the force may 

want to review.

8
Based on forces' own definition of domestic abuse and use of a domestic abuse marker on IT 

systems.

9

Page 155



14

Figure 1: Number of domestic abuse related arrests per 100 crimes with a domestic 

abuse marker for the 12 months to 31 August 2013
9

Source: HMIC data collection 

Dealing with domestic abuse is a priority for the force. The PCC has a number 

of ‘people’s priorities’, two of which relate to and specifically refer to domestic 

abuse:

! Take a zero-tolerance approach to policing.

! Put the victims at the centre of the criminal justice system.

The force has a strong customer focus of “putting Surrey public first”. It is 

seeking to increase the levels of reported violence related to domestic abuse as 

this will show confidence in victims in feeling able to report incidents. There is 

an additional focus on reducing the level of repeat victims. 

Officers and staff understand that tackling domestic abuse is one of a number of 

priorities for the force. They understand the importance of their role in properly 

assessing threat, harm and risk at each incident they attend. However, frontline 

officers state that their focus is on volume crime detection and reduction, for 

9
Based on forces' own definition of domestic abuse and use of a domestic abuse marker on IT 

systems.

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

S
u
rr

e
yN
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
o

m
e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 r
e
la

te
d

 a
rr

e
s
ts

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
 

c
ri
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
o

m
e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 m

a
rk

e
r

Note: Six forces were 

unable to return this data

9

Page 156



15

example, on vehicle crime and burglaries, rather than the detection and 

reduction of domestic abuse incidents. This is due to the messages they receive 

from the force about the need to reduce volume crime (rather than domestic-

abuse-related crime) and the lack of recognition they get when they deal well 

with an incident and victim. 

The force works with partner agencies such as the health service and social 

care at both a strategic and operational level to deal with violence against adults 

and children. There is a structure of meetings in place, for example the 

community and public safety board and the domestic abuse development 

group, which ensures that the necessary programmes of work to improve police 

and partnership response to domestic abuse are delivered. The PCC, force and 

partners recognise the importance of these groups and ensure that the

appropriate level of representation and support is given to them.

Officers and staff have previously received training specifically about domestic 

abuse. This is included the completion DASH risk assessment process which 

must be completed at every domestic abuse incident. However, other than for 

those who have recently joined the force, or attended other ad hoc training, for 

the majority of officers and staff, this training was approximately three or four 

years ago. There are force policies and procedures that officers can refer to for 

guidance. The force recognises that it needs to develop officers’ knowledge, 

understanding and awareness. To address this, refresher training is being 

developed. DASH risk assessment refresher training has started, with the first 

session taking place in mid-November 2013. Some 75 officers and staff from 

the PPIU, domestic abuse champions (see below) and other supervisors within 

the local policing divisions have been trained. A training package is also being 

created which supervisors can cascade to their staff.

Despite this lack of formal training, staff display a good understanding of 

coercive control, stalking and harassment. They display commitment and 

willingness to obtain the best evidence at domestic abuse incidents and taking 

action to make the victim feel safe. 

The force has recently introduced domestic abuse champions. These are 

frontline officers (mostly supervisors) based in the local policing divisions, who 

will be receiving a higher level of domestic abuse awareness training. Their role 

is to offer support, advice and guidance to those officers dealing with domestic 

abuse incidents.

The DASH risk assessment form is used to establish the level of risk to a victim. 

It has a number of questions that must be asked in order to assess the risk to 

the victim accurately, and officers understand why they are asking these 

questions. In addition to the assessed level of risk identified through the 

9

Page 157



16

questions, officers are able to use their own professional judgement, should 

they feel that a victim is at greater risk than the assessment has indicated. 

Officers cannot reduce the assessed risk based on their own judgement. Those 

attending incidents have a good understanding of how they need to establish 

any threat, harm and risk to victims, and that their role is to do whatever they 

can to reduce this.

There is a clear commitment displayed by staff in the contact centre and FCR, 

and attending and specialist officers to understand the risk to everyone 

connected to domestic abuse incidents, in particular, children and any 

vulnerable adults. Officers attending a domestic abuse incident – where children 

have been present in the past, or where children have been identified as being 

at risk – are informed of this. This helps them establish the current level of risk 

and take any action necessary to protect the children. 

The force has a policy that officers will attend incidents – including domestic 

abuse incidents – alone, unless it is thought their safety is at risk, in which case, 

more than one officer will be sent. This means that if they are on their own, they 

are not able to speak to each party separately to gain an understanding of what 

has taken place, which could mean they are not being given the full or correct 

details of an incident. Once in attendance, officers’ main priority is the safety of 

the victim and anyone else who may be at risk, so they must take some form of 

‘positive action’. Positive action does not necessarily mean arrest, but can mean 

support for victims and witnesses, and referral to social services. The action 

must provide the necessary safety arrangements for the victim and other people 

present. Officers are expected to make an arrest where an offence has been 

committed. Officers are also expected to complete safety planning for the 

victim. The management of risk is the responsibility of the attending officer until 

– if it is a high or medium risk case – it is passed to the PPIU, or if a standard-

risk crime case, to the PIU. If it is a standard-risk incident, then no further 

safeguarding is provided to the victim after the officer has left the incident,

unless the victim has been given details of support agencies to contact. 

Immediate action taken by officers is monitored by their supervisors. 

When officers attend a domestic abuse incident and make an arrest, the case is 

dealt with by either the PPIU or the PIU. The cases are allocated for 

investigation based on the threat, harm and risk to the victim, rather than the 

seriousness of the crime committed. This means that a case where a minor 

crime is committed, but the risk to a victim is high or medium will be dealt with 

by an experienced officer who will have the skills and confidence to achieve the 

best possible outcome for a victim. This is positive. 

The investigation of offences where the victim has been assessed as standard 

risk are dealt with by a PIU officer. This means that a victim may be supported 

9

Page 158



17

and managed by an inexperienced officer, who may not have the skills or 

confidence to achieve the best possible outcome for them. Staff and officers, 

both on the front line and in the specialist units, indicate they would benefit from 

better communication between teams. There is some confusion as to who 

(which team or unit) is responsible for what. This means that where cases are 

passed between teams and units, there is a danger that appropriate action may 

not be taken, as there may be an expectation from one team or unit that another 

would take the action. It could also be the case that a number of different 

people could be taking the same or similar action, which can be equally 

concerning. The responsibility of and support to those victims who have been 

assessed as high and medium risk was robust, but it was less so in respect of 

those victims who are assessed as standard risk. 

All domestic abuse incidents where a DASH risk assessment has been 

completed are reviewed and re-assessed by supervisors. They are then 

reviewed again by staff within the PPIU. This means that, at the start of police 

involvement, there is a level of scrutiny of risk which helps to ensure that the 

action taken and level of support given to victims is appropriate.

HMIC reviewed a small number of files, and found that in the majority of 

cases the actions taken by officers when initially attending the scene of a 

domestic abuse crime help to provide a better prospect of a successful 

outcome for the victim. 

How are victims of domestic abuse made safer as a 

result of the police response and subsequent action?

Officers and their supervisors review the completed DASH risk assessment 

form to make sure the assessment made is accurate, based on the information 

available. All cases of domestic abuse are referred to the PPIU. Those cases 

that are assessed as standard risk are dealt with by the force’s PIU. This team 

deals with domestic abuse in the same way as any other crime and does not 

have staff with specialist skills. 

The force has recently introduced a multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH) and 

its MARACs are regarded as working well. There are good relationships with 

partners which means that information is exchanged promptly, and victim safety 

plans are put in place to reduce risk. 

However, there is a lack of knowledge among frontline officers about what the 

specialist team does. Despite force policy, there is also a lack of clarity about 

who is responsible for victim safety throughout the investigation and criminal 

justice process, particularly for standard-risk cases.

9

Page 159



18

Surrey recorded 4,339 domestic abuse related crimes for the 12 months to the 

end of August 201310. Of these crimes, 17 percent resulted in a charge, six

percent resulted in a caution and 28 percent had an out-of-court disposal, for 

example a fixed penalty notice for disorderly conduct.

Figure 2: Percentage of different outcome types used for crimes with a domestic abuse 

marker for the 12 months to 31 August 2013

Source: HMIC data collection 

Surrey Police charges a higher proportion of crimes with a domestic abuse 

marker than recorded victim-based crime. This may indicate that the force has a 

different approach to domestic abuse outcomes than other crimes.

10
Based on forces' own definition of domestic abuse and use of a domestic abuse marker on IT 

systems.

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

S
u
rr

e
y

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
 w

ti
h
 a

 d
o

m
e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 m

a
rk

e
r

b
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
y
p

e

Charges Cautions Out of court disposals

9

Page 160



19

Figure 3: Percentage of charge summons and cautions used for victim-based crime, 

violence against the person, sexual offences and all crimes with a domestic abuse 

marker
11

Sources: HMIC data collection, Home Office Crimes detected in England and 

Wales, ONS Crime in England and Wales

The force has specialist officers and staff within its PPIU. They deal with child 

abuse, vulnerable adult abuse and domestic abuse crimes and incidents. They 

have not received any additional training in respect of tackling domestic abuse 

and managing the safety of the victims. However, their level of expertise is 

enhanced by the experience they gain on a daily basis when dealing with 

domestic abuse incidents, victims, offenders and other partners and agencies. 

Work is allocated to these officers and staff based on the level of threat, harm 

and risk. This means that, due to staffing pressures, a domestic abuse incident, 

particularly a historic case, may not always get a timely allocation of resources 

to it. The force is aware of this and a business case is being prepared,

proposing an increase in the number of staff within the PPIU, to ensure that all 

11
Based on forces' own definition of domestic abuse and use of a domestic abuse marker on IT 

systems.

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Victim-based 
crime

Violence 
against the 

person

Sexual 
of fences

Crimes with a 
domestic abuse 

marker

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
c
o

rd
e
d

 c
ri
m

e
s

12 months to 31  March 2013 

Charge summons Cautions

12 months to 31 
August 2013

9

Page 161



20

incidents of abuse get the appropriate level of response and resource allocated 

to them.

Specialist officers and staff within the PPIU review all completed DASH risk 

assessment forms. They use additional information from partner agencies to 

help them develop a more complete picture of the risk a victim may be facing. 

This means that a victim facing high or medium levels of risk, or those who are 

repeat victims, should receive appropriate support and actions to reduce risk, 

for example, help to secure their house or a mobile phone to contact the police 

in an emergency. If there are cases that raise further concerns, or there are 

standard-risk cases that are repeat incidents, the PPIU will conduct the 

investigation and support the victim and manage safety arrangements. This 

provides reassurance that all victims will receive the appropriate support as 

dictated by the information available to the reviewing officers at the start of 

police involvement. However, HMIC is concerned that once the investigation 

has been concluded, there is a gap on reviewing and re-assessing the risk level 

for victims, and who has the responsibility for this. 

The specialist officers within the PPIU have not received any additional training 

in relation to domestic abuse awareness and investigation. However, the 

majority of the specialist officers are very experienced and have been working 

in the domestic abuse area for a number of years. When speaking to them they 

were very confident and knowledgeable. Unfortunately, officers on the front line 

and other teams do not really understand what the specialist unit does, and who 

has responsibility for what. 

The force has a MASH, where police and partner agencies (children services 

and mental health) work together to protect vulnerable people. This unit risk-

assesses cases (domestic abuse, child abuse and vulnerable adult abuse) and 

shares information with other agencies. The MASH will continue to be 

developed, and other partners have agreed to join it (health and probation). A 

countywide Domestic Abuse Strategy for Surrey 2013–201812 has been agreed. 

This is a joint strategy with other partners and agencies, as much of the victim 

support and assistance is provided by partners, who have considerable 

influence over keeping victims safe. An action plan to deliver the objectives 

within the strategy is under development. 

The force has access to two independent domestic abuse advisers (IDVAs) and 

ten IDVA trained outreach workers. The role of the IDVAs and outreach workers 

is to offer advice, advocacy, information and support via face-to-face meetings, 

12
Available from: www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/709532/Surrey-DA-

Strategy-2013-18.pdf

9

Page 162



21

telephone calls, text messages and email. They offer advice on a range of 

issues including benefits, debt, criminal and civil law, homelessness and 

housing, safety planning and risk, safeguarding children, and child contact. 

They also undertake risk assessments using the DASH risk assessment 

process and safety planning to maximise safety and minimise risk and harm. 

They are not managed or controlled by the police. 

They are currently jointly-funded by the force, PCC and Surrey County Council. 

There are good working relationships with partners including health, housing 

and the local authorities. This helps reduce risk to victims through sharing 

information between organisations in order to develop a better understanding of 

risk. There are four MARACs within the county. These each meet on a monthly 

basis and are attended by police and partner agencies. The purpose of the 

MARACs is to review high-risk cases, which have been referred by any of the 

attending agencies. The MARACs assesses any new information and ensures 

that every organisation takes responsibility for what they can do to reduce the

risk to a victim. The Surrey MARACs are regarded as well run, and they have 

good representation from each of the agencies. This means that when high-risk 

victims’ cases are discussed, they are likely to receive a good multi-agency 

response to reduce risk. A detective inspector from the PPIU chairs each of the 

MARACs. 

The PPIU re-assess all incidents and risk assessments. Safety plans are also 

reviewed to ensure that all that needs to be done to help make victims safe is 

being done. There are no formal mechanisms in place to ensure that at key 

stages in the investigative process, risk is routinely re-assessed and appropriate 

action taken to protect the victim. For example, there is no re-assessment on 

release of a perpetrator from police custody, or when a court date is 

approaching. However, staff from the PPIU said that risk assessments were re-

assessed at trigger points. HMIC spoke to a number of frontline officers who 

said they would benefit from having more information about domestic abuse 

victims, perpetrators and locations of offences. This would help them provide a 

better service, particularly in respect of keeping the victim safe.

The majority of information on victims, perpetrators and incidents, together with 

information received from the MARAC, is available on police systems. However, 

particularly in the case of the MARAC, information officers were either not 

aware of it or did not access it.

There is a lack of clarity about who is dealing with the victims of domestic abuse 

throughout the investigation and criminal justice process. The role of the PPIU 

is unclear to many staff, who do not understand the structures and processes 

within it. The identity of the domestic abuse champions is also not widely known 

within the contact centre or among frontline officers. Therefore, they are not 

9

Page 163



22

being sent routinely to domestic abuse incidents or asked for advice. This 

means that the skill and expertise of these officers is not being made available 

to support the victims of domestic abuse and attending officers. 

Officers attending incidents are expected to produce a safety plan to reduce risk 

to victims. This might include re-housing the victim or perpetrator, or ensuring 

that any future call to an address is treated as an emergency by marking police 

systems to show this. At the start of police involvement these safety plans are 

reviewed and updated by the PPIU. Any change in circumstances, for example, 

when a perpetrator is released from police custody, should mean the risk 

assessment is reviewed. In such a situation, it is not certain that a safety plan 

would be reviewed and updated to deal with any changes in risk. It is also not 

clear – particularly in those cases where the PPIU is not available, or in those 

cases that have been assessed as standard risk – who has responsibility for 

doing this or who makes sure a victim is aware that this had happened or is to 

happen. The PIU deals with standard risk domestic abuse crime as they would 

any other crime, such as burglaries or vehicle crime. No additional focus is 

given to incidents of domestic abuse and in particular victim safety and support.

The MARAC process in Surrey is regarded as working well. Both police and 

partner agencies, including the voluntary sector (for example, Women’s Aid and 

Refuge) refer cases into the MARACs and each is discussed to ensure that risk 

is being managed by all agencies and information is shared. Co-ordinated 

Action Against Domestic Abuse (CAADA) has recently analysed the outcomes 

from the MARAC process. The findings will help the force understand how the 

process is working and where it can be improved.

All staff, throughout Surrey Police, display a commitment to reducing threat, 

harm and risk to victims of domestic abuse. Each understands their role in this, 

although there is a lack of clarity about what the specialist team is responsible 

for. In addition, there are no minimum standard for how the safer 

neighbourhood teams (SNTs) across the force should respond to and manage 

domestic abuse victims on their areas. In some areas, this work is not being 

done by SNTs because it is not recognised as a priority. 

9

Page 164



23

Does the force have appropriate systems, processes 

and understanding to manage domestic abuse and risk 

to victims in the future? 

The PCC and force are keen to improve services for domestic abuse victims 

and they are working with partners to do this. 

Domestic abuse performance, strategy and delivery of services are discussed 

at a number of police and multi-agency meetings. The force has a number of 

plans, either directly focused on domestic abuse or with a domestic abuse 

element within them. However, at present, the force needs to apply more rigour 

and improve the implementation process in order to achieve success. 

It is not always clear who is responsible for updating victims and re-assessing 

their risk when perpetrators are released from custody. This could result in a 

victim being contacted by a number of people or not contacted at all, and the 

force and partner agencies might not be aware of the victim’s increased risk. 

The force does not have a clear process to make sure any learning from 

domestic abuse incidents is understood and that action is taken to improve.

It is essential that victims are updated prior to a perpetrator being released from 

prison and their levels of risk re-assessed in light of this. There is a lack of 

clarity about who is responsible for informing a victim of a release; it could be 

the witness care officers within the criminal justice department, the specialist 

officers within the PPIU, the IDVAs, outreach workers, or the officer who dealt 

with the case. This means that some victims may not be updated before a 

perpetrator is released, and a true understanding of their risk may not be 

established because the professionals involved may think someone else has 

done this. In addition, a victim might be contacted by a number of people, which 

could again be an issue for them. However, if a perpetrator is bailed or released 

by a court, then the victim should be updated in a timely way, as the force has 

made a commitment that an officer will attend every court hearing relating to 

domestic abuse crime. This means that their level of risk should be re-assessed 

at this critical time. 

At the time of inspection, the force did not have a process to manage, or 

actively police, those serial domestic abuse perpetrators who pose the greatest 

risk. Frontline officers state that they do not routinely receive information about 

those perpetrators who are living or visiting their areas. Officers and staff were 

keen to know who the high-risk perpetrators and victims are in their 

communities so that they will be able to provide a better service to help keep 

victims safe. By not being involved in the whole process and by not knowing all 

the information available about a person or incident, they felt they were just 

9

Page 165



24

providing an immediate response to an incident, rather than being fully 

equipped to give the best service possible. 

SNT officers are invited to MARACs and their area inspector sends details of 

the high-risk cases in their area. However, there is evidence that SNT officers 

are not consistently made aware of the vulnerable and repeat victims of 

domestic abuse in their area. There is no electronic system or list of high-risk 

victims, and knowledge of them is through previous attendance at a domestic 

abuse incident, or from colleagues. Access to systems which contain details of 

domestic abuse incidents and the intelligence associated with these is 

available, however, not all officers were aware of the full range of information 

that can be accessed, for example details of the involvement of, and actions 

from, the MARAC. As with other frontline officers, those SNT officers we spoke 

to during the inspection stated they want to be made aware, on a regular basis, 

of vulnerable and high-risk victims in their area. These are missed opportunities 

for the force to equip officers with improved information about those who 

present the most risk, and those who are at greatest risk in their area. 

Where there have been no further calls from victims who have been victims on 

a number of occasions, there is no mechanism to understand why they have 

stopped calling. This is a gap for the force, as the reason repeat victims of 

domestic abuse stop calling is often not because the abuse has stopped.

There are two domestic homicides currently under review. Recommendations 

from these reviews have action plans which are led by the head of the PPIU. 

The public protection programme board has oversight of this process (see 

below). However, while the force states that corporate learning is embedded 

from these reviews or any other reviews through its own internal communication 

campaigns, at the time of the inspection the HMIC found no evidence of this. 

The PCC’s police and crime plan has a number of ‘people’s priorities’, two of 

which are related to domestic abuse. There are no actual targets in relation to 

these priorities. The force recognises that its approach to domestic abuse 

performance management needs to change. It has recently introduced a crime 

performance board which scrutinises key domestic abuse data, for example the 

number of repeat victims, arrests and criminal charges. In addition, the board 

looked at links to other crimes, and the number of DASH risk assessments (at 

each risk level). By analysing these data, the force is able to understand what 

the issue is, what this means for the force and what actions it needs to take to 

reduce the number of repeat victims. These actions are included in the 

Domestic Abuse Tactical Plan 2013/14. While the most important measure for 

the force, for domestic abuse, is how victims feel about the service, there has 

been no work at this time which gives the force a good understanding of this.

9

Page 166



25

The force had identified a number of actions it needs to take to improve its 

response in tackling public protection and safeguarding issues which include 

domestic abuse. To do this, it has a number of plans which are either directly 

focused on domestic abuse or they have a domestic abuse element within 

them. However, at present, the force needs to apply more rigor, oversight and 

governance to these plans. This, together with a review of the actions within 

each of the plans, to identify the interdependencies between them, and to 

assess the risks and priorities associated with each of them, will help ensure 

that the force achieves success in its ambition to improve the delivery of 

services to the people of Surrey.

The force had recognised that it needs to have more robust governance and 

oversight arrangements and so it has recently introduced a public protection 

programme board. The purpose of this board is to provide strategic leadership 

and direction for the force’s approach to public protection and safeguarding,

oversee the delivery of strategic and tactical plans related to public protection 

and safeguarding, and to support the crime performance board in its oversight 

of public protection performance. 

The force does not have a formalised process that manages perpetrators. Its 

focus is predominantly on victim support through other agencies. However, the 

force recognises this as an area for improvement and is developing a process 

that will focus on managing serial domestic abuse perpetrators and actively 

policing those who pose the greatest risk to victims. Frontline officers indicated 

that they are not aware of who the serial perpetrators or repeat victims are in 

their areas, because, at the time of the inspection, this information was not 

communicated routinely. Staff and officers said that they would benefit from 

having this information given to them at the regular briefings they have. 

9

Page 167



26

Recommendations

As a result of this inspection, HMIC has developed recommendations which are 

designed to tackle any risks identified in the service to victims of domestic 

abuse. These force-specific recommendations should be considered in 

conjunction with recommendations to all forces set out in HMIC’s national report

on domestic abuse.

1. The force should publicise to staff that domestic abuse is a priority, both 

in terms of investigation (reduction and detection of incidents) and victim 

safety.

2. The force should publicise the role of the public protection investigation 

unit in order that all staff understand what it does, and how it can help 

make victims safer. 

3. The force should review the training and guidance currently provided to 

all staff including enhanced training for those staff within the public 

protection investigation unit. 

4. The force should review the current policy on deployment and 

attendance at domestic abuse incidents where only one officer is sent. 

Two officers would enable the separation of parties in order to get a true 

account of what has happened.

5. The force should review the contact officers and staff have with victims 

throughout their involvement with the police, to give one single point of 

contact who is able to update them and ensure that the risk assessment 

is reviewed at every stage, to avoid fragmentation of service. This should 

include a process to update and re-assess risk to victims when 

perpetrators are released from prison.

6. The force should review the mechanism of how information is provided to 

officers in respect of both victims and those perpetrators assessed as 

being the greatest risk to victims.

7. The force should set minimum standards, through a mandated policy, of 

how safer neighbourhood teams across the force should respond and 

manage domestic abuse victims on their areas. 

8. The force should apply more rigor, oversight and accountability in 

respect of the various domestic abuse and associated action plans.

9. The force should review the actions within each of the plans and identify 

interdependencies between each plan, and the risks and priorities 

associated with each of the actions.

9

Page 168



27

10.The force should review the domestic abuse training programme for the 

force to ensure all staff have an understanding of, and recognise all 

types of domestic abuse.

11.The force should ensure there is a process by which learning from 

domestic homicide review, and other learning is embedded in the way 

the force deals with domestic abuse in the future.

9

Page 169



28

Glossary

Bail conditions

A court can remand a defendant in custody or grant bail, with or without 

conditions attached. Before the first court hearing, the police can also retain a 

defendant in custody or grant bail, with or without conditions attached, but their 

powers to do so are more limited than the court's. Conditions can only be 

imposed to ensure that the defendant attends the next court hearing, commits 

no new offences in the meantime, and does not interfere with any witnesses or 

obstruct the course of justice.

Body worn camera

A video camera, worn on the helmet or upper body of an officer, which records 

visual and audio footage of an incident. 

CAADA (Co-ordinated Action Against Domestic Abuse)

CAADA is a national charity supporting a strong multi-agency response to 

domestic abuse. Its work focuses on saving lives and public money.

CAADA provides practical help to support professionals and organisations 

working with domestic abuse victims. The aim is to protect the highest risk 

victims and their children – those at risk of murder or serious harm.

CCTV

Evidence from Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) can be used to support police 

investigations. It is primarily used for corroborating what is already known in 

investigating incidents and to trigger further opportunities to carry out 

investigation, such as the identification of witnesses and suspects. 

Clare’s Law

Clare’s Law – the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme – is designed to 

provide victims with information that may protect them from an abusive situation 

before it ends in tragedy. The scheme allows the police to disclose information 

about a partner’s previous history of domestic violence or violent acts. The 

9

Page 170



29

Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme is named after Clare Wood who was 

brutally murdered in 2009 by her former partner George Appleton, who had a 

record of violence against women.

Code of Practice for Victims of Crime

The Code of Practice for Victims of Crime (the Victims' Code) places a statutory 

obligation on criminal justice agencies to provide a standard of service to 

victims of crime or, where the victim died as a result of the criminal conduct, 

their relatives. The obligations the Victims' Code places on the agencies 

concerned include that:

! They provide victims, or their relatives, with information about the crime, 

including about arrests, prosecutions and court decisions;

! They provide information about eligibility for compensation under the 

Criminal Injuries Compensation Scheme;

! Victims be told about Victim Support and either be referred on to them or 

offered their service;

! Bereaved relatives be assigned a family liaison police officer; and

! Victims of an offender who receives a sentence of 12 months or more 

after being convicted of a sexual or violent offence have the opportunity 

to make representations about what licence conditions or supervision 

requirements the offender should be subject to on release from prison.

There are enhanced entitlements for victims of the most serious crime which 

includes domestic violence. 

Coercive control

This is term and concept developed by Evan Stark which seeks to explain the 

range of tactics used by perpetrators and the impact of those on victims. It

highlights the on-going nature of the behaviour and the extent to which the 

actions of the perpetrator control the victim through isolation, intimidation, 

degradation and micro-regulation of everyday life. Crucially it sets out such 

abuse can be psychological as well as physical. Coercive control is explicitly 

covered by the definition of domestic abuse.

9

Page 171



30

Control room

A police control or communications room manages emergency (999) and non-

emergency (101) calls, and sending police officers to these calls.

Counter-allegation

Where someone initial identified as the perpetrator makes an allegation against 

the victim. If counter-allegations are not identified and resolved agencies may 

be providing services to the perpetrator and inadvertently helping them isolate 

and control the victim. The victim may not get access to the services they need 

because they are labelled ‘the perpetrator'. 

Crime Scene Investigator

Police staff who work alongside uniformed and plain clothed police officers 

during the investigation of a crime to locate, record and recover evidence from 

crime scenes.

DASH – domestic abuse, stalking and harassment (DASH 2009)

DASH is a risk identification, assessment and management model adopted by 

UK police forces and partner agencies in 2009. The aim of the DASH 

assessment is to help front-line practitioners identify high risk cases of domestic 

abuse, stalking and so-called honour-based violence.

Domestic Homicide Review

Local areas are expected to undertake a multi-agency review following a 

domestic homicide. The process aims to assist all those involved, to identify the 

lessons that can be learned from homicides where a person is killed as a result 

of domestic violence, with a view to preventing future homicides and violence.

Domestic Violence Prevention Notices (DVPN)

A DVPN is the initial notice issued by the police to provide emergency 

protection to an individual believed to be the victim of domestic violence.

9

Page 172



31

This notice, which must be authorised by a police superintendent, contains 

prohibitions that effectively bar the suspected perpetrator from returning to the 

victim’s home or otherwise contacting the victim.

A DVPN may be issued to a person aged 18 years and over if the police 

superintendent has reasonable grounds for believing that:

! the individual has been violent towards, or

! has threatened violence towards an associated person, and

! the DVPN is necessary to protect that person from violence or a threat of 

violence by the intended recipient of the DVPN

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)

Female genital mutilation (sometimes referred to as female circumcision) refers 

to procedures that intentionally alter or cause injury to the female genital organs 

for non-medical reasons. The practice is illegal in the UK.

Frontline 

These are police officers or police staff who are in everyday contact with the 

public and who directly intervene to keep people safe and enforce the law. The 

HMIC publication, Policing in Austerity: Rising to the Challenge (2013) sets this 

out in more detail.

Golden hour

Commonly used to refer to the time after a crime has been committed during 

which there is maximum potential for recovery of forensic evidence

Harassment

The term harassment is used to cover the 'causing alarm or distress' offences 

under section 2 of the Protection from Harassment Act 1997 as amended 

(PHA), and 'putting people in fear of violence' offences under section 4 of the 

PHA.

9

Page 173



32

House-to- house

House-to-house enquiries are likely to feature in many investigations to: identify 

suspects and canvas for witnesses in areas connected to an incident, establish 

who lives or works in a particular location, and obtain an account of their 

movements during relevant times. 

High risk

Term used when, following a DASH risk assessment, there are identifiable 

indicators of risk of serious harm. The potential event could happen at any time 

and the impact would be serious. Risk of serious harm (Home Office 2002 and 

OASys 2006): ‘A risk which is life threatening and/or traumatic, and from which 

recovery, whether physical or psychological, can be expected to be difficult or 

impossible’.

IDVA – independent domestic violence adviser

Independent domestic violence advisers or advocates (IDVAs) are trained 

specialists who provide a service to victims at high risk of harm from intimate 

partners, ex-partners or family members, with the aim of securing their safety 

and the safety of their children. Serving as a victim’s primary point of contact, 

IDVAs normally work with their clients from the point of crisis, to assess the 

level of risk, discuss the range of suitable options and develop safety plans.

Incident 

When a member of the public calls for police assistance, or a police officer 

observes or discovers a crime the police usually create an incident record. This 

is the first step, the police will then decide whether a crime has been committed 

and, if it is appropriate, create a crime record.  

Intimate Partner Violence

This describes physical, sexual, or psychological harm by a current or former 

partner or spouse. This type of violence can occur among heterosexual or 

same-sex couples and does not require sexual intimacy.

9

Page 174



33

MARAC (Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference)

MARACs are regular local meetings where information about high risk domestic 

abuse victims (those at risk of murder or serious harm) is shared between local 

agencies. By bringing all agencies together at a MARAC, and ensuring that 

whenever possible the voice of the victim is represented by the IDVA, a risk 

focused, co-ordinated safety plan can be drawn up to support the victim. There 

are currently over 270 MARACs are operating across England, Wales, Scotland 

and Northern Ireland managing more than 64,000 cases a year.

MASH – Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub

A Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) brings together staff from police and 

partner agencies who work from the same location, sharing information and 

ensuring a timely and joined-up response to protect children and vulnerable 

adults.

Medium risk

Term used when following a DASH risk assessment there are identifiable 

indicators of risk of serious harm. The offender has the potential to cause 

serious harm but is unlikely to do so unless there is a change in circumstances, 

for example, failure to take medication, loss of accommodation, relationship 

breakdown, drug or alcohol misuse.

National Domestic Abuse helpline

A Freephone 24 Hour National Domestic Violence Helpline, run in partnership 

between Women's Aid and Refuge, is a national service for women 

experiencing domestic violence, their family, friends, colleagues and others 

calling on their behalf. 

The Helpline can give support, help and information over the telephone, 

wherever the caller might be in the country. The Helpline is staffed 24 hours a 

day by fully trained female helpline support workers and volunteers. All calls are 

completely confidential. Translation facilities for callers whose first language is 

not English, and a service for callers who are deaf or hard of hearing are 

available.

9

Page 175



34

Partnership

A term used where collaborative working is established between the police and 

other public, private or voluntary organisations.

Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE)

The Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 and the PACE codes of practice 

provide the core framework of police powers and safeguards around stop and 

search, arrest, detention, investigation, identification and interviewing detainees.

www.gov.uk/government/collections/police-and-criminal-evidence-act-1984-pace-

current-versions

Positive action

The term refers to the steps and action taken at all stages of the police 

response to ensure effective protection of victims and children, while allowing 

the criminal justice system to hold the offender to account. It is often used in the 

context of arrest policy, police guidance states that “arrest will normally be 

‘necessary’ under the terms of PACE to protect a child or vulnerable person, 

prevent the suspect causing injury and/or to allow for the prompt and effective 

investigation of the offence”.

Problem-solving

Problem-solving is a term used in policing where forces systematically identify 

and analyse crime and disorder problems, develop specific responses to 

individual problems and subsequently assess whether the response has been 

successful.

Refuge

A refuge is a safe house where women and children who are experiencing 

domestic violence can stay free from abuse. Refuge addresses (and sometimes 

telephone numbers) are confidential. According to Women’s Aid on a typical 

day, over 7000 women and children are resident in refuge accommodation in 

England

9

Page 176



35

Risk assessment

A risk assessment is based on structured professional judgment. It provides 

structure and informs decisions that are already being made. It is only a 

guide/checklist and should not be seen as a scientific predictive solution. Its 

completion is intended to assist officers in the decision-making process on 

appropriate levels of intervention for victims of domestic violence.

Safeguarding

The term safeguarding is applied when protecting children and other vulnerable 

people. The UK Government has defined the term ‘safeguarding children’ as: 

“The process of protecting children from abuse or neglect, preventing 

impairment of their health and development, and ensuring they are growing up 

in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care that 

enables children to have optimum life chances and enter adulthood 

successfully.”

Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC)

SARCs are specialist medical and forensic services for anyone who has been 

raped or sexually assaulted.

They aim to be a one-stop service, providing the following under one roof: 

medical care and forensic examination following assault/rape and, in some 

locations, sexual health services. 

Standard Risk

Term used following a DASH risk assessment where current evidence does not 

indicate likelihood of causing serious harm. 

Victim Personal Statement

The Victim Personal Statement (VPS) gives victims an opportunity to describe 

the wider effects of the crime upon them, express their concerns and indicate 

whether or not they require any support. 

Provisions relating to the making of a VPS and its use in criminal proceedings 

are included in the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime (Victims' Code), which 

was published on 29 October 2013 and came into force on 10 December 2013.

9

Page 177



36

Vulnerable

A term used to describe a person who is in need of special care, support, or 

protection because of age, disability, or risk of abuse or neglect.

What Works Centre for Crime Reduction

The What Works Centre for Crime Reduction is hosted by the College of 

Policing. The What Works Centre for Crime Reduction will: review research on 

practices and interventions to reduce crime, label the evidence base in terms of 

quality, cost and impact, and provide police and crime commissioners and other 

crime reduction partners with the knowledge, tools and guidance to help them 

target their resources more effectively.

It will be led by a core team from the College of Policing, and supported by a 

"commissioned partnership programme" which has been jointly funded by the 

College and the Economic and Social Research Council. 

9

Page 178



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 

 
 
 

Communities Select Committee 
19 May 2014 

RENEW CONTRACT ARRANGEMENTS FOR SPECIALIST 

RESCUE AND CONTINGENCY CREWING 

 

Purpose of the report:  Scrutiny of Services and Budgets/Performance 
Management/Policy Development and Review 
 
In 2012, Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) entered into a pilot contract 
with a private contractor to secure the provision of specialist rescue and 
contingency crewing capacity. Communities Select Committee is asked to 
scrutinise the evaluation of the pilot contract, and consider the proposal to 
renew the contract with a broadened scope. 
 

 

Introduction: 

 
1. Surrey Fire and Rescue Authority (SFRA) must provide contingency 

cover for Industrial Action, according to the Fire and Rescue Services 
Act 2004, National Framework and Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 

 
2. In 2012, Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) entered into a 

contract with a private provider for specialist rescue on a day-to-day 
basis, and contingency crewing, run as a pilot (for proof of an 
innovative concept). The pilot has been extended until 31 March 2015. 

 
3. This paper includes a review of the pilot scheme, as announced to 

Cabinet previously (October 2013), and explores options on how to 
proceed. 

 
4. SFRS propose to commence a full tender process for a long term 

contract for the provision of this service and for the possibility to extend 
the full use of capabilities to obtain better value for money and to 
develop new ways of working. 

 

Background: 

 
5. Sir Ken Knight’s national review of efficiencies and operations in fire 

and rescue authorities in England (‘Facing the Future’, 2013) 
recognised that fire and rescue services are facing a changing 
demand, so they must adapt to provide more effective and efficient 

10

Item 10

Page 179



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 

services. In particular the review identified that the biggest 
opportunities lie in wider transformative structural and collaborative 
approaches, requiring ambition and leadership to achieve. SFRA are 
refreshing the current Public Safety Plan setting out their longer term 
vision against the changing environment and national and local 
demands. This will be presented as the Public Safety Plan (PSP) 2015-
2025. 

 
6. The increasing financial pressures faced by public services emphasise 

the need to consider alternative models of delivery and operation to 
support the broadening range of activities delivered by fire and rescue 
services. The PSP 2015-2025 will set out a framework within which 
alternative models for service delivery are evaluated and 
recommended. 

 
7. In addition to strategic challenges that require SFRS to consider 

alternative ways of working, SFRS also need to meet the service 
requirement under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004, National 
Framework and Civil Contingencies Act 2004 for the provision of 
contingency crewing during industrial action or due to degradation of 
capability (for example, Pandemic Flu).  

 
8. In October 2012, Surrey County Council Cabinet approved for SFRS to 

enter a contract (as a pilot scheme) to provide contingency crewing 
and other rescue capabilities to support SFRS to meet their special 
rescue requirements for example surface and sub-surface water 
rescue/recovery, high level working, cave or other confined space 
rescue. A Surrey-based contractor was identified and since December 
2012, SRFS have had a contract in place for the provision of 
contingency crewing and specialist rescue delivery on a day to day 
basis, until 31 March 2015 when the contract, extended, ends. 

 

Evaluation of pilot scheme 

 
9. Surrey County Council first contracted the services of a private 

company (‘the incumbent supplier’) on 1 December 2012. 

10. The initial pilot was intended to run for one year with the ability to 
extend. In October 2013, Cabinet approved the extension of the 
contract until 31 March 2015. The incumbent supplier provides support 
to SFRS at all times when the Service is unable to fully crew 
appliances such as during industrial action, or to assist with specific 
incident types including: 

• Persons requiring water or underwater rescue or recovery 

• Persons missing or trapped underground 

• Persons trapped or protesting/threatening suicide at height 

• Persons trapped or missing in collapsed structures 

• With an additional resource of a helicopter which provided daily 
critical aerial reconnaissance during the recent flooding period. 

 

10

Page 180



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 

11. There are a number of services and capabilities provided by the 
incumbent supplier that have developed outside of the original 
specification e.g. 

• Co-responding (with vehicles supplied by SFRS) – providing support 
for South East Coast Ambulance Service in Surrey (a fire-fighter 
when first to arrive at an incident can administer first aid including 
the use of a defibrillator, in the absence of a Paramedic). 

• Incidents on or near water training which was procured. 

• Chainsaw operation. 
 

12. 15 personnel of the incumbent supplier received initial recruit fire-
fighter training over 14 weeks, which they all passed to a highly 
competent level. Further, personnel of the incumbent supplier 
underwent training on specialist SFRS vehicles. Employees of the 
incumbent supplier are trained to the same standards as SFRS 
operational staff with ongoing competency based assessment and 
training using the systems in place for SFRS staff. This enables a full 
range of fire and rescue service operations to be undertaken as a 
direct force replacement when it is required albeit in reduced volume. 

13. The specialist rescue capability that is supplied through the contract 
consists of one crew of five personnel available on an immediate 
response basis on weekdays from 08:00 – 17:00 hours, with the same 
capability available on a one hour delay at all other times. Additionally 
other crews are available on request and the whole of the incumbent 
supplier’s capability can be brought up to immediate readiness at any 
time with just a few hours’ notice.  

14. This provision of staff, vehicles and equipment (capability) for Fire and 
Rescue in accordance with Surrey competency standards plus 
specialist rescue operations is a unique model which gives both 
flexibility in how capability is drawn together and the ability to rapidly 
change the focus and priority of the rescue effect required as the 
situation changes. 

15. The incumbent supplier’s services provided during the contract period 
are listed below: 

Flooding Major Incident 
Dec 2013 – Feb 2014 

1215 persons rescued by SFRS and assisting Fire 
and Rescue services 
119 persons rescued by the incumbent supplier  

233 rescued by others e.g. military 

Incumbent supplier’s 
use for specialist rescue 
at times outside of 
Industrial Action 
Apr 2013 – Mar 2014 

115 incidents (attended on water rescues) 
 

Traditional Fire and 
Rescue duties – 
undertaken during 
Industrial Action 
Sep 2013 – Jan 2014  

Number of appliances on strike days: 
Mixed crewing on all appliances  

Date SFRS 
appliances* 

Personnel of 
incumbent supplier 

25/09/13 12 11 

01/11/13 10 13 

10

Page 181



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 4 of 8 
 

 

04/11/13 8 11 

13/11/13 12 11 

13/12/13 12 10 

14/12/13 8 10 

31/12/13 8 10 

03/01/14 11 13 

* SFRS providing all appliances 
 

 

16. The SFRS’s use of the incumbent supplier during industrial action has 
varied from the concept that was described in the contract, with SFRS 
officers now commanding fire appliances that were crewed with the 
incumbent supplier’s personnel, clearly this increased the effect 
achieved on strike days.  

17. SFRS continuity arrangements require a minimum of six appliances 
available in the event of Industrial Action. The table above shows the 
number of operational appliances during each strike action. This varied 
from eight to twelve appliances, with an average of ten. 

18. On each of the eight strike days (listed above) SFRS had in total 
between 45 and 55 crewing staff comprising a mix of Flexi Officers, 
Retained Duty System personnel and commercially contracted fire-
fighters available for emergency cover. The incumbent supplier was 
able to provide a secure and planned availability for the hours of 
industrial action enabling on average an additional three operational 
appliances through the use of their staff. Having compared the 
contractual requirements against what has been delivered at each day 
of industrial action by the incumbent supplier, the level of cover has 
exceeded the contractual requirements.  

19. By entering into the contract, the Fire Authority was able to comply with 
its obligations and requirements as set out in paragraphs 62-64 
governing Fire and Rescue Authorities to ensure business continuity in 
the case of an emergency.  

20. With their specialist skills the incumbent supplier provided full support 
and equipment throughout the recent flooding major incidents within 
Surrey and carried out numerous rescues and evacuations saving 
lives. 

21. Since the beginning of the pilot the trend for use of the incumbent 
supplier has significantly increased as SFRS Officers gain confidence 
in the incumbent supplier’s ability and cultural difficulties are starting to 
be overcome.  

Conclusion 

22. The pilot contract has worked successfully and SFRS are looking to 
continue to have contingency crewing and specialist rescue capabilities 
in place, provided through a contract. 

10

Page 182



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 

23. The contract in its present form is a new concept and it was 
recommended that this innovative approach offered the potential to 
explore income generating possibilities for the future and new ways of 
working. To date this has not been fully explored therefore it needs to 
be part of the scope and specification of a new contract. 

Options 

 

Option 1: Cease current contract 
24. It is a statutory requirement, under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 

2004 and Civil Contingencies Act 2004 for SFRS to provide 
contingency crewing insofar as is reasonably practicable.  

25. The Fire and Rescue National Framework for England published by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) on 11 
July 2012 states that all Fire and Rescue Authorities must have 
effective business continuity arrangements in place in accordance with 
their duties under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and to meet the full 
range of service delivery risks: such business continuity plans should 
not be developed on the basis of Armed Forces assistance being 
available. 

26. Ceasing the contract would result in SFRA not meeting its statutory 
requirements. 

27. This option is not recommended, due to legal implications. 

 
Option 2: Continuing with current provision  
28. In 2012, a waiver was issued to establish a pilot contract for specialist 

and contingency crewing for SFRS, which meant that a full tender 
process was not needed. 

29. The arrangement with the incumbent supplier could be continued to 
deliver current services (contingency crewing, specialist rescue). By 
maintaining the status quo, SFRA would meet its legal obligations for 
contingency cover but would not realise any benefits of a full 
competitive tender process or achieve the planned Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) savings. 

30. Whilst a budget provision has been made for the cost of the contract, 
this option would mean that it is not possible to achieve the planned 
efficiency savings from 2015/16 leading to an annual £650,000 
pressure against the budget. 

31. This option is not recommended, due to financial implications. 

 
Option 3: Broadening the contract scope  
32. SFRS could seek to tender a contract that continues the provision of 

contingency crewing and specialist rescue services, but also allows the 
development of innovative ways of working to create MTFP savings. 

10

Page 183



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 

33. It is possible that S.E. Business Services Ltd may respond to the 
tender.  S.E. Business Services was created in June 2013 by the 
County Council and is a wholly owned Local Authority Trading 
Company. The company has recently entered into a contract to provide 
contingency fire services. The decision to respond to the tender will be 
a commercial decision taken by the Directors of the company. In 
recognition that this may be a possibility, the procurement process will 
be carefully managed to avoid any potential conflict of interest. 

34. The MTFP has been based upon this option. Following the tender 
exercise, provided that the cost of the new contract can be contained 
within the allowed budget, and, it is possible for the planned efficiency 
savings to be achieved, this option enables the service to meet the 
assumptions built into the MTFP. The cost of the new contract cannot 
be stipulated with full certainty at this point, as there is no comparable 
set up in the country to test the market or benchmark costs. Further the 
tender process will shine further light on the likely cost based on tender 
negotiations and establishing detailed contractual specifications. The 
cost and savings assumed in the MTFP are based on the previous 
experiences with the pilot period, and the predictions of what future 
savings might be achieved from SFRS’s experience. See Part 2 for 
further details. 

35. This option is recommended, as it delivers value for money, 
covers legal requirements and supports the service’s strategic 
direction of travel. 

36. SFRS are recommending Cabinet to approve option 3 (to broaden the 
scope of the existing contract and commence the tendering process) 
funded through the development of mainstream savings and integrating 
the use of contingency contract’s capacities and capabilities (see Part 
2 for details).  

Tender Process 

37. The contract must meet following criteria: 

Strategic 
objectives and 
operational 
requirement of 
the service 

• Implementation of transformation agenda: SFRS is 
responsive to changing demands, uses different 
partnerships to assist in the delivery of change, 
efficiency and innovation.  

• Ensure the service business continuity arrangements 
are maintained through business continuity planning 
and assurance. 

• Contractor shares SFRS values and meets its 
standards and community’s expectations of fire and 
rescue services 

Value for Money • Benefits derived from competitive bidding for contract 

• Robust contract management to ensure contractor’s 
performance adheres to agreed levels 

• Include new ways of service delivery that save SFRS 
money / generate income 

Flexibility • Contract must be able to grow to meet the strategic 
needs of the fire service for the period of the contract 

10

Page 184



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 

term.  

• Contract must include the appropriate break clauses 
with a clearly defined exit strategy within the contract. 

• Contract must include an option for the supplier to 
consider any joint venture, joint venture contract or 
other corporate vehicle that the Service may choose to 
enter into 

Legal 
requirements 

• Cover the requirements to the service (Fire & Rescue 
Services Act 2004, National Framework and Civil 
Contingencies Act 2004)  

• Ensures the set up and delivery complies with the 
current legal framework. 

 

38. The tendering process and outcome must: 

o Ensure stakeholder engagement and support for the delivery 
and implementation of the project through a fair, equitable and 
transparent process. 

o Ensure the provider will strengthen public confidence in SCC 
and SFRS reputation and brand by delivering improved services 
whilst meeting the SCC and SFRS strategic aims and vision. 

o Plan for contractor and SFRS cooperation (equipment, training, 
relationship between SFRS and contractor staff). 

o Ensure that all Equalities and Diversity considerations have 
been fully explored and requirements met. 

39. The exact length of the contract will be determined during the tender 
process; however it is likely to be a five year contract with the option to 
extend by two years. The aim is that at the end of the tendering 
process, SFRS will have a long term partner to work with to meet its 
aims and objectives to deliver a sustainable service with different and 
challenging ways of working. 

Conclusions: 

 
40. The pilot contract has worked successfully and SFRS are looking to 

continue to have contingency crewing and specialist rescue capabilities 
in place, provided through a contract. SFRS have identified and need 
to further explore additional opportunities to increase value for money 
and improve service delivery through broadening the contract. 
 

Recommendations: 

 
41. The recommended option is to commence a full tendering process to 

renew the contract for contingency crewing and specialist capabilities, 
while also broadening the contract scope to include new innovative 
ways of working. 

42. Adopting the proposal would secure the following benefits: 

10

Page 185



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 

• SFRA remains compliant with legal requirements (Fire and Rescue 
Services Act 2004, National Framework and Civil Contingencies Act 
2004). 

• SFRS could develop opportunities for the supply of specialist rescue 
capability to / with partners. 

• This move assists progress on the SFRS’s transformation agenda, and 
by broadening the contract scope would meet the increasing financial 
pressures and create a partnership to deliver new and innovative ways 
of working to the benefit of all Surrey residents. 
 

43. It is hence recommended that the Communities Select Committee 
endorses the proposal to be presented to Cabinet on 27 May 2014. 

Next steps: 

 
On 27 May 2014, Cabinet decides on SFRS’s proposal to renew the contract 
with a broadened scope. Should the proposal be approved, SCC Procurement 
will commence the tendering process: 

• 2 June 2014 – publish advertisement for tender 

• 15 December 2014 – Recommendation to appoint contract presented to 
Cabinet 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact: Malcolm Styles, Area Commander - Operational 
Development 
 
Contact details: 01737 224003 
 
Sources/background papers:  

• Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 

• Civil Contingencies Act 2004 

• Fire and Rescue National Framework for England. July 2012 

• SCC Cabinet Paper (23 October 2012) Surrey Fire and Rescue 
Service Specialist Rescue and Contingency Capability  

• SCC Cabinet Paper (26 November 2013) Specialist Rescue and 
Contingency Crewing extension 

 

10

Page 186



12

Item 12

Page 187

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 15 JANUARY 2014 and 20 MARCH 2014
	20 March 2014 minutes

	5 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE SELECT COMMITTEE
	6 RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	Draft Forward Work Programme 2014 - 19 May 2014

	8 UPDATE ON MAGNA CARTA ANNIVERSARY PROPOSALS
	Annex A - Consultation Activity Log
	Annex B - List of Consultees
	Annex C - Summary of Magna Carta Consultation

	9 PROGRESS REPORT ON COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS (FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS MADE AT THE ANNUAL SCRUTINY MEETING ON 31 OCTOBER 2013)
	Annex 1 - CSP Closer Collaboration
	Annex 2 - Surrey ASB Strategy 2014-17 FINAL
	Annex 3 - CSP Substitue Lists
	Annex 4 - Jeff Harris response from HO re DHRs
	Annex 5 - Surrey approach to tackling domestic abuse

	10 SCRUTINY OF EVALUATION OF PILOT SPECIALIST RESCUE AND CONTINGENCY CREWING CONTRACT AND PROPOSALS TO TENDER FOR A NEW CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CONTINGENCY CREWING AND SPECIALIST RESCUE
	12 SCRUTINY OF EVALUATION OF PILOT SPECIALIST RESCUE AND CONTINGENCY CREWING CONTRACT AND PROPOSALS TO TENDER FOR A NEW CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CONTINGENCY CREWING AND SPECIALIST RESCUE

